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Dear Fellow Shareholdeérs, . .. ;.

As | take a moment to share with you my thoughts on the past year as well as where we are
heading, | cannot help but feel great anticipation and enthusiasm for our future.

Last year | highlighted three factors of ‘barticu'lar”fbcus fo‘:ri Sirit: Continued Growth, Customer Focus
and Operating Improvements. | am very satisfied with how the Sirit team managed to execute in
achieving these cbjectives.

For the second consecutive year, Sirit attained double digit growth and a record revenue level of
$24.5 million. The Company announced significant partnerships with major customers like METRO

“*" Group, Transportation Corridor Agencies and BenQ Corporation. We were able to control expense

levels as we experienced ongoing quarterly fluctuations in revenue levels. We achieved our primary
goal of being cash flow neutral by the end of the year. These actions demonstrated that we
executed on our strategy and accomplished what we set out to do.

Another area | am particularly proud of is that Sirit established a worldwide leadership position
for our ‘best of breed’ UHF, fixed positicn reader: the INfinity 510. We received top placement
in customer and independent performance testing of the INfinity 510 compared to our primary
competitors. We continue to see increasing demand.for this leading technology. We are utilizing
the flexible architecture to add customized features, to expand our product line based on the
success of the platform and to address many innovative applications.

We make RFID work. This simple concept has lead to our current success and will continue to be
the basis for our future success. This has been demonstrated by our produgss being tested and
accsepted in wide ranging RFID ejgglifa_tj?n_s.“f_[om retail to asset management o e!gc{:rgpi;;_ttm\tlj?g.).,‘
We ‘will continue to generate revenue growth by ensuring successful RFID i[ﬁplemen’c‘atiéns and-
generating ROI for our customers. We will continue to leverage our highly skiliéd team to support
new installations and ensure the continued success of ongoing projects.

szt v L aed 0
As | now turn to 2008, we will continue our focus on the same three factors: Continued Growth,)_ .
Customer Focus and Operating Improvements. The objective will be to pasititns Sirit r"ér"li'mg-'ti"fm"'a

. success and profitability. Through organically growing our base while at the same time fhvestitigto_
..build both our capabilities and offerings, we will take advantage of new andkexc’itihgrapp{'gcatibhsa’v:

and opportunities. A good example of this strategy is our recently announced acq_qisiqtrion of RSI 1|Db
Technologies, Inc. which will allow us to offer more complete solutions to our customars in'arkets - *

like Electronic Vehicle Registration (EVR). saed”  malad e thikeiol
.o ) -7 - i e

During 2008, | expect to be telling you about new partnerships, making ne‘W‘mfodﬁat%hnbUriéemeEts".3 :
and participating in more global projects. | believe these will be thewatedysts:tobring theCompiny
to higher levels of growth, resultant profitability and increased overall value for ousharzholaeas.

Sirit is continuing to deliver and will continue to grow. On behalf of the entiré&Sirit céakotHppratiate |
your enthusiasm for the Company and would like to thank you for your continued curifill&ice and

ssupport. L St . I A
PP ! boisbiloerud 0y 29304 WA

- iemsicie i8iDnEns
A D HoIROICIAE 51y a5 ) |
ioNorbeft Dawalibi < - v
President and Chief:Executive Officér, Sirit Inc.
P ANNUAL REPORT
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Management’s Discussion & Anatysis

.

The following MD&A has been prepared to help investors understand the
financigl performance of the Company and provides information that
management betieves is reflevant to an assessment.and understanding of the
Company’s risks, opportunities and performance measures. Management has
prepared this document in conjunction with its broader responsibilities for the
accuracy and retiability of the financial statements and the development and
maintenance’ of appropriate internal controls in its effort to ensure that the
financial information is complete and reliable. The Audit Committee of the
Board of Directors, consisting of three independent directors, has reviewed this
document and all- other publicly reported financiat information, for integrity,
usefulness, reliability and consistency.

This discussion, which has been prepared as of February 22, 2008 at which time
145,703,308 shares were outstanding, should be_read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements including the notes thereto, included
in this annual report. Except for the statements df historical fact contained
herein, the information presented constitutes “forward-looking statements”
within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such

forward-locking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and
other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievement

of Sirit to be materially different from any future results, performance or
achievements expressed or impiied by such forward-looking statements. Readers

are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements.

Actual results may differ materially from those indicated by these forward-

looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties impacting Sirit’s
business. Although Sirit has attempted to identify important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause
results not to be as anticipated, estimated or intended. All amounts presented
in this MD&A are in thousands of Canadian dollars unless otherwise specifically
noted. Financial data has been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles. '

CORE OPERATIONS

Sirit Inc. (“Sirit” or the “Company”) is a Radio Frequency Identification
(“RFIB™) company that has been designing, developing, manufacturing
and selling RFID hardware and solutions for over 14 years. Sirit has been
providing its RFID technology to customers based primarily in the United
States and Europe and continues to.expand throughout the Americas and
Asia. More information on the Company, including the Company's Annual
Information Form can be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.

Sift’s operations are dedicated to, RFID technology and the practical
applications of this technology. The first of the Company’s RFID sales
efforts is tanl'geted towards Automatic Vehicle Identification ("AV1")

applic_ations. _Sirit provides technology for use in vehicle tracking, )

tolling, access control as well as parking and fleet management solutions.
AVl is considered one of the most accepted, as well as most widely
implemented, uses of RFID technology in the world today. Electronic
toll collection systems were introduced as early as 1986 and gained
widespread acceptance as new toll roads were built and existing toll
roads added electronic payment capabilities.

Additional markets and sales efforts tilizing RFID technology zre
combined within Sirit's Radio Frequency Solutions (“RFS") applications.
Some of these areas include asset tracking, cashless payments, supply
chain, inventory control and near field communications; Sirit manages
its sales, development and strategic efforts along these two -primary

Sirit [ne

application areas, all within the RFID Business Segment. The following
presents a further description of Sirit"s AVl and RFS activities.

The composition of Sirit"s AVI sales has not changed significantly in 2007.
Revenue is comprised primarily of hardware sales including specialized,
battery assisted tags or transponders, readers and peripherals. Sales may
also include separately negotiated software development, integration
and support services. Sirit considers itself to be one of the top three
suppliers of electronic toll collection hardware in North America with sales
primarily made into the western United States and Canada. Toll product
sales are based upon open standard protocols permitting competitors to
bid on new or renewal contracts from primarily government agencies.
The Company continues to win in these competitive bidding processes
for contracts with toll agencies utilizing these open standards. These
contracts generally range between one and five years in length and provide
reasonably predictable recurring annual revenue streams. During 2006
and 2007, Sirit was successful in all of its toll transponder contract bids.
Sirit also designs, develops and integrates lane level electronic totling
systemns based on its unique system architecture and support platform.

AVl activities will continue to be a major focus for Sirit in 2008 and
beyond. Vehicle tracking, vehicte identification and tolling applications
have garnered increasing interest from government agencies outside
North America. With Sirit's expertise in these areas, the Company sees -
significant opportunities far revenue gfowth by supparting these projects
worldwide. Environmental concerns, governrﬁent revenue generation as
well as vehicle congestion issues can all be addressed with Sirit’s RFID
technology. Sirit has proven expertise in this area and will be participating
in future projects to support these initiatives.

Included within AVl activities, Sirit supplies a complete solution for
vehicle Parking and Access Control Systems (“PACS”) applications
through its ‘IDentity Series’ product line, These solutions, which include
the provision of readers, tags/transponders, antennae and supporting
infrastructure as well as extended services encompassing software
devélopment and integration, facilitate tracking vehicle location,
movement, identification and access inte and out of a contained site.
Sirit’s PACS revenue consists of small to medium size installations with
potential for recurring transponder sales and upgrades generated through
a well established reseller and distributor network,

In April 2007, the Company secured an order totaling U552.0 million from
the Orange County Trans[)ortation Authority in Southern California. The
contract calls for Sirit to deliver its Ultra High Frequency (“UHF") RFID
transponder technology over the next 4 years. Deliveries under this
contract commenced in Q3 2007.

In April 2007, Sirit introduced a European version of its market leading
iDentity MaX UHF RFID reader for use in vehicle parking and access control
deployments. The reader operates at the 865-868 MHz band for automatic
vehicle identification performance in single-lane read applications.

In May 2007, the Cdmpany announced that it had been awarded, through
a competitive bid procéss, an order valued up to US54.8 million from
the Bay Area Toll Authority (“BATA") in California. Commerfcing in July
2007, the contract called for Sirit to deliver its RFID Title 21-based toll
transponders with an option for an additional U551.6 million once the
initial contract has been satisfied.

+/




Management’s Discussion & Analysis

In June 2007, Sirit was awarded a contract worth approximately UsS$10.6
million over three years from the Transportation Corridor Agencies
in Southern California.
transponders with shipments‘under this renewal contract which began
in July 2007. - :

In October 2007, Sirit introduced its latest AVl reader solution, the
IDentity 5100, which builds on the Company's AVl expertise and
advanced architecture to deliver an RFID reader solution for use in a
variety of traditional and new AVl applications including Electronic
Vehicle Registration (“EVR™) and Electronic Vehicle Identification (“EV1”)
deployments.

Sirit's AVI applications generated 'approiimately $18.7 million or 76% of
2007 revenue compared to $16.8 mitlion or 77% of 2006 revenue, a 1%
annual growth rate.

Sirit’s RFS sales encompass the design, manufacture and sale of Low
Frequency (“LF"), High Frequency (“HF") and UHF RFID ‘INfinity Series’
readers and reader modules. These products are embedded into original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) customer's products such as handheld
devices, portable and fixed data collection terminals, mobile devices
including telebhones,' PDAs and computers, printers, forklifts, and
fixed 'position devices. Sirit’s RFID technology enables a wide range of
applications lncludmg contactless payments, asset tracking, supply chain
management and product authentication. Sirit readers are embedded in
closed loop (single entity, controlled system} and open loap (information
sharing across multiple organizations) infrastructures. As customers begin
to roll-out their products, Sirit’s embedded technology is automatically
included in the sales process.

In January 2007, Sirit was appointed NXP Software’s first global reseller
and integration partner for Java-based Near Field Communication (“NFC")
middleware.
availability of the Sirit Mobile NFC Platform (“Sirit MNP™} middleware
solution and related technology enginéen'ng services for mobile phope
OEMs.

In February 2007, Kyocera Technology Research Corp. ("KTRC")ﬁselected
Sirit to supply its MNP NFC software and related technology engineering
services. KTRC wilt make the NFC technology available for new wireless
handsets from Kyocera Wireless Corp., a leading global supplier of code-
division muttiple access {CDMA) wireless devices and accessories.

In March 2007, Compenent Distributors, Inc. (“CDI"), a high-tech
electronics distributor based in Denver, Colorado, signed an extended
distributor agreement with Sirit to carry its full line of INfinity RFID
reader modules throughout the United States, Canada and Mexico. CDI
officially launched their support of Sirit’s INfinity product line with an
eWave campaign. ’

In June 2007, Sirit secured a NFC contract with BenQ Corporation
(“BenQ"), one of the world’s largest consumer electronics OEMs. Sirit
will serve as BenQ's supplier of embedded NFC software and technology
engineering services for BenQ's forthcoming NFC mobile smartphones and
handsets.

In June 2007, METRO Group, the world's fourth largest r_etai_lgr, selected
Sirit’s INfinity 510 UHF reader for its 2007 rollout program at 99 Real

L
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Sirit will supply its RFID Title 21-based toll _

In connection with this, the Company also announced the .

hypermarket locations throughout Germany. This rollout program
installed one INfinity 510 -reader at each of the 99 locanon. to track
incoming products-using Gen 2 tag technology :

In August 2007, Sirit hosted its first interactive Webinar with ODIN
technotogies {“ODIN") and reviewed the QDIN European RF'D Reader .
Benchmark ™, the first vendor neutral evaluation of European RFID readers
available on the market. In the test, Sirit’s INfinity 510 worlcwide Gen
2 certified reader took top rankings over six other leading ccmpetitive
European Telecommunication Standards Institute complian: readers
including adiacent dock door pertal testing to existing and proposed
regulations.

In November 2007, Sirit partnered with Japan Information 'System Co.
Ltd. (“JIS"} to sell a customized version of Sirit’s INfinity 510 RFID reader
in Japan. JIS intends to make this product their flagship UHF r=ader and
expects it will be available to customers in early 2008. Their version of
the INfinity 510 will be installed into a number of applications including
supply chain, logistics, healthcare, asset tracking, manufacturing, airline
baggage, parking access and factory automation, :

Sirit’s RFS sales efforts contributed approximately $5.8 ri'!illic:h'or 24%
of 2007 revenue compared to $4.9 million or 23% of 2006 revenue. This
represents an 18% annual growth rate.

Sirit maintains offices in three primary locations:

Torento, Ontario, where the Company’s head office admiristration,
finance, human resources, sales and investor relations fum.tlons are
located and 10 staff members reside;

Carrollton, Texas, where the primary design, development, assembty,
distribution and sates activities are concentrated comprised of 28
staff; and,

Morrisville, Morth Carelina, where a speaallzed design and
development team of t1 staff resides. _

The second reporting Business Segment is represented by Portfalio
Investments. These investments are historical, minority interest
investments inherited from the Company's previous operatlons, as
iTech Capital’ Corp where the operatlonal focus was as an lnvestment
company.

On January 10, 2007, the Company sold its non-core investment in Applied
Data Systems, Inc. for total proceeds of US51,823 (CDNSZ2,140), resulting
in a gain on the sale of $1,40%. Of the total proceeds, $130 is being held
in escrow and has been included in accounts receivable as the escrow
balance is expected to be received in the first quarter of 2008.

On December 14, 2007, the Company sold its final non-core investment in
Horizon Wimba, In¢. for total proceeds of US$368 (CDN$373), resulting in .
a gain on the sale-of $263.

VlSIO‘\T A\ID STRATEGY '

In fiscal 2007 Slnt s strategy- was to demonstrate it could effectively
execute at a level which allowed for growth across all application
areas while simultaneously maintaining key assets to ensure long-term
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Management’s Discussion & Analysis

sustainability. This was managed very effectively throughout the year.
The Company successfully built new partnerships as well as executed
on maintaining key customers while-explering new avenues for future
growth. The Company achieved a record revenue level for fiscal 2007,
reached its highest quarterly revenue of almast $7.0 million in the second
quarter of 2007, announced significant contracts and partnerships with
customers throughout the year including METRO Group, Transportation
Corridor Agencies and BenQ Corporation and accomplished its key
objective to bé tash flow neutral in the fourth quarter of 2007.

The Company’s vision-is to be a profitable, high-growth business
recognized as a leader in providing RFID solutions that drive the world's
RFID applications. Sirit's plans for 2008 will bring the Company closer
to realizing this vision. We intend to more aggressively pursue key
markets that are taking shape where Sirit can provide near term return
on investment for our customers to support their long-term needs. With
this in mind, it will be important for the Company to invest in its future
in order to capitalize on opportunities in a timely manner. Execution will
involve maintaining key relationships and developing new partnerships,
investing in development efforts that will improve gross margins as
well as introduce new products and participating in emerging countries
implementation of RFID all with a goal to be profitable starting early in
2009, - :

Sirit’s AVI efforts will continue to support and build upon relationships
with our customers in the western US and Canada as well as seek
opportunities to expand our product offerings in other regions in North
America. We see a large emerging oppartunity to apply Sirit’s AVl
technology to EVR applications as well as Congestion. Pricing initiatives.
We believe significant strides are being made towards large EVR project
implementations to commence in the next 12 to 18 months. Management
continues to foresee substantial opporiunities to supply transponders,
readers and complete system solutions. Funded development efforts
with the US Federal Highway Administration.under its Dedicated Short
Range Communications (“DSRC") project continue as a longer-term
growth opportunity. The Company is excited about the growth potential
in AVl and will more aggresswely pursue new opportunities to ensure our
efforts coincide with upcoming decision cycles.”

Sirit's strategy for its RFS applicatiqns is to.continue to participate in
expanding roll-outs and production pitots,
increase- penetration in geographies such as Asia and Europe and
accelerate the integration of RFID technology at current and new QEM

partners. We are seeing increasing use of our ‘best of breed' INfinity_

510 UHF fixed position reader and will continue to strongly promote
the attributes and benefits of using this reader. Sirit will target its sales
into areas where our products provide the most compelling advantages,
while offering the greatest expansion potential for RFiD. These areas

include supply chain, asset management, closed loop asset tracking and .

NFC as well as targeting unique or industry specific applications which

inctude inventory éontrol factory automation, distribution/logistics and )

security. We will continue to invest in the NFC opportumty as this market
continues.to mature.

- .

Product Development

Development activities in 2007 were directed towards both AVI and RFS
applications. Effort was placed on enhancing performance and expanding

Sirit [ne,

introduce new products, -

compatibility to meet standards in various countries as well as improving
the cost structure of the [Nfinity 510. We introduced the |Dentity 5100
for use in AVI related applications late in-2007- and are seeing some
key customers implement this technology in 2008. We are working on
improving the cost structure and updating many of our RFS and PACS
products. We will continue to develop our portfolio of products in 2008,
either through internal devetopment efforts or through acquisition.

The Company will continue to direct efforts to develop new, innovative
and cost effective technology supporting both AVl and RFS opportunities
as well as ensuring the current product offerings are kept up-to-
date. In response to changing customer requirements or technological
advancements, future product'rationalization costs may result.

Strategic Industry Partnerships

Part of the Company’s strategy involves pursuing strategic partnerships
with world recognized, well established and reputable companies. This
approach has historically been a major contributing factor in the continued
success of the AVl vertical where Sirit's business has concentrated on
a few large, key customers and partners. Sirit’s partnership strategy
and customer service focus resulted in the successful renewal of all of
its toll transponder contracts during 2006 ‘and 2007: Sirit will continue
to establish itself as a key technology prowder through 5|mllar strong
partner relationships in 2008. * -

Sirit's RFS readers and reader modules are being embedded into targer
solutions in both open loop and closed loop environments. The Company
announced its INfinity 510 was being installed in METRO Group's 2007
rollout program at 99 Real hypermarket stores and is actively working
with several partners that are also in early stage roll-out programs. In
addition, private-label users of our INfinity 510 are taking follow -on
orders supporting our OEM model strategy.

RFID Adoption Rate

Large scale growth of the Company depends upon the speed and adoption
rate of RFID across all industries and applications.  Progress towards
large scale growth was again below expectations in 2007, especially in
the supply chain market. We are seeing increases in the first phases of
several roll-out programs with full scale adogtion continuing at a slower
pace than originally anticipated. In an effort to mitigate any uncertainty,
Sirit is diversified across several market segments, in most RFID
frequencies and protocols while overall operations are supported by the
financial resources generated from the solid AVI vertical. Regardiess of
the speed of overall RFID industry implementation, in 2007 the Company
demanstrated its ability to sustain operations for the long-term and will
be a key player whén'larger orders become a reality.

Patent Portfolio-

Part of the Company’s ongoing commitment to product and solution
innovation includes developing or purchasing patents and intellectual
property. This has been accomplished through acquisitions in 2006
and new filings. The Company is dedicated to expanding is intellectual
property portfolio either through acquisition or internal initiatives and
currently has over 30 patents that have either been granted or are
pending approval.

L =N
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RESULTS I

Selected Annual Information

Years Ended December 371

$000s except per share amounts 2007 2006 2005
Revenue N $24,524 $21,715 516,419
Net loss for the year {3,518) (8,959} (8,698}
Basic and diluted loss (0.02} {0.07) {0.09)
per share )

Total assets 20,669 24,282 18,426
Long-term finanical liabilities Nil Nil Nil

Overall Performance

In 2007, the Campany was able to realize its key strategic obJectwes
including:

» US dollar revenue growth of $3.7 million, or 20% over 2006. The
reported Canadian dollar revenue growth is lower, however, since

96% of the Company’s revenue -is generated in US dollars, the

US dollar growth is a more accurate indicator of the Company’s
performance,

» Decrease in operating expenses {(exctuding foreign exchange loss)
of $3.9 million or 24% from 2006. This improvement is primarily
the result of the operational integration undertaken in the second
half of 2006, streamlining of development efforts and a greater
focus on revenue generating engmeenng services.

« (ash used in operations decreased from $7.4 million in 2006 to $1.0
million in 2007. The Company’s primary objective was to become
cash flow neutral in the fourth quarter of 2007: this objective was
achieved.

Revenue

Approximately 96% (2006 - 98%; 2005 - 97%) of the Company’s revenue is
generated in US Dollars. During 2007, the value of the US dollar compared
to the Canadian dollar declined by approximately 15%. For comparison
purposes, the following presents revenue in Canadian dollars compared
to US dollars demonstrating the impact of the fluctuation in the exchange
rates over the past three years:

Years Ended December 31 2007 2006 2005
Revenue, Canadian Dollars $24,524 $21,715 $16,419
Growth rate 13% 32%

Revenue, US Dollars $22,863  $19,132  $13,554
Growth rate W 41%

As can be seen above, although the Company continues to display double

digit growth in revenue reported in Canadian dollars, the growth is even

higher when displayed in US dollars.

AVi

AVl revenue increased by $1.9 million (11%} from $16.8 million in 2006
to $18.7 million in 2007. AVI sales represent 76% of total sales in 2007
(2006 and 2005 - 77%). AVl is considered to'be comprised cf two primary
markets, Toll related applications and PACS.

The majority of Sirit’s Toll revenue is recurr_i_ngv in nature and :ompr@sed
of the sale of battery assisted, UHF transponders. Toll revenue increased
by 51.8 miltion {13%) from $14.0 million in 2006 to $15.8 millicn in 2007.
The largest contributor to this increase was the revenue associated with
the opening of the SR-125, a new toll read in California:

PACS revenue has remained relatively consistent at $2.9 million in 2007
and $2.8 million in 2006. .o -

We expect 2008 to bring another year of increased revenue growth across
all application areas. This growth however, will follow a different revenue
trend when compared to prior years as we anticipate that the majority of
our revenue will come in the second half of the year.

Within the AVl applications, the Company’s largest. customer,. which
last year contributed 30% of revenue in the first half of 2007, has been
shifting a portion of its projected deliveries under its existing agreement
with Sirit to the second half of 2008. This will result in AVl revenue being
lower in the first half of 2008 when compared to the first hatf of 2007.

RFS

RFS revenue increased by $0.9 mitlion or 18% from 54.9 millicn in 2006
to $5.8 million in 2007. RFS revenue represents 24% of total ravenue in
2007 (2006 and 2005 - 23%). The growth in 2007 is primarily the: result of
increased sales of the INfinity ‘510 which started shipping in September
2006. This product has exceeded expectations of superior performance
and interoperability compared to other readers in its class as evidenced
by the ODIN report discussed earlier.

RFS applications supported by Sirit include not-only supply. chain .
applications but also other areas such as asset tracking, factory process
automation, shipping, logistics and security. Management cortinues to
believe in and remain comimitted to the potential growth of both the
supply chain as well as other market verticals. Recent experience has
demonstrated increased interest in RFID through implementations and’
increased utilization of this’ technology outside the supply chain. To
date, orders have been in small quantities. The Company will continue
to experience quarterly fluctuations in RFS revenue due to the tlmlng of
specific deliveries and deployments by our customers.

Gross Profit . -

The Compariy manages margins by ;irodhét line based on direct material
costs. The additional overhead components of cost of sales are managed
as'a whole and are ot dlrectly attributable to each product or vertical.
Therefore, total gross profit cannot specifically be broken down between
the two major revenue generating areas but is managed by the m.ompany
on a total gross profit basis. P

The total gross profit for fiscal 2007 was 35.0% compared to 32.7% in
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2006. In 2006, margin was negatively impacted by product rationalization
efforts in the fourth quarter. Ignoring the impact of the inventory write-
off required as a result of this rationalization (50.4 million), gross profit
in 2006 w{ould have been 34.6%. The remaining increase in gross profit
in 2007 is'a resulf of measures taken to reduce costs of its highest selling
products These efforts will continue into 2008 and should continue to
improve margins in future years.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses ( "SG&A") are managed at a
total or Company-wide basis. Slgmﬁcant éstimaticns would be necessary
to derive a split of SG&A expenses supporting each of the AVl and RFS
areas. These estimations would not yield meaningful results due to the
overlap of staff responsibilities, fluctuating time and efforts dedicated to
each area, as well as estimations regarding resource utilization.

At the end of 2006, the Company undertook efforts to focus on fully
integrating the two companies acquired during the year. This resulted
in a 50.8 million, or 9% decrease in SG&A expense from $9.1 million in
2006 to 58.3 million in 2007 (2005 - 57.7 million). The largest component
of-SG&A is salaries and benefits which has decreased to $4.7 million in
2007 (2006 - 55.0 million; 2005 - $4.0 million). The integration discussed
above effectively eliminated all additional SG&A positions from the two
acquisitions.

Sales and marketing expenditures included in SG&A expense totaled $1.0
million in 2007, a $50.2 million decrease from 2006 expense of $1.2 million -
{2005 - 50.9 million). The decrease in 2007 is the result of reduced
headcount in late 2006, ' '

The remaining 52.6 million (2006 - $2.9 miltion; 2005 - 5$2.8 million)
includes items such as rent, communications, public company costs,
office expenses, directors fees, insurance and professional fees. The
slight decrease in these costs is due primarily to the elimination of two
locations in 2007 which reduced rent and related overhead costs.

Stock-Based Compensation

Non-cash stock-based compensation costs associated with the issuance of
stock options-totated 50.6 million in-2007 (2006 - $0.8 million; 2005 - 51.0

million): sThese costs are calculated:and reported in accordance with .-

CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-Based Compensation and other Stock
Based Payments™” For'moredetails on stock compensation please refer to
the notes to the financial statements included in this annual report

€

Development Expenses

The integration efforts in 2006 had the biggest impact on development
expenses as engineering headcount was reduced as part the
rationalization efforts resulting from the two acquisitions earlier in the
year. In addition, 4 engineering positions were reclassified into SG&A
as this more clearly represented daily activities. These actions explain
the overall lower development expenses in 2007 when compared to both
2006 and 2005. Total development expenses decreased from $5.5 million
in-2006-to $2.6'million in 2007 (2005 - 53 2 miltion).” In addition to- the“
changes in development salaries, the Company also reduced associated

expenses by streamlining development effbr‘g§ to focus on enhancements

/

Sint Ine. 8

>

to current products as well as improvements to the cost structure of
current products.

Amortization s Tl

Amortization expense remained consistent at $0.9 million in both 2007
and 2006 (2003 - 50.6 million).

Foreign exchange loss

During 2007, the US dollar has decreased in value relative to the Canadian
dollar by approximatety 15%. As the Company’s net current assets are
predominantly maintained in US dollars, currency devaluation generates
a foreign exchange loss when the US dollar denominated assets are
converted to Canadian dollars for financial reporting purposes.

Day-to-day activities and transactions are conducted primarily in US
dollars and are not converted inta Canadian dollars; therefore, reported
exchange losses have minimal impact from an operations perspective.

Other Income

In 2007, other income includes a gain on sale of long-term investments
of $1.7 million. This relates to the sale of the two remaining non-

core portfolio investments (Applied Data Systems, In¢c. and Horizon
wimba, Inc.) discussed earlier, The remaining balance relates to $0.4

miltion of interest income (2006, - $0.3 million; 2005 - $0.1 million).

RESOURCES

Cash Flows, Liquidity and Capital Resources

The following discusses cash flows, liquidity and capital resources during
2007 and as at Decernber 31, 2007 with comparisons to prior year.

Cash and cash eguivalents decreased from 59.4 million at December 31,
2006 to $8.9 million at December 31, 2007. As the Company’s cash and
cash equivalents are primarily denominated in US dollars, the balance has
been negatively impacted by the 15% decrease in US dollar to Canadian
dollar exchange rate experienced in 2007. The exchange rate impact
on cash and cash equivalents in 2007 was a loss of $1.7 million (nominal
impact in 2006). As the Company transacts atmost exclusively in US
dollars, the reported loss on cash and cash equivalents related to foreign
exchange is not a realized loss’ (i.e. funds will not need to be converted
to Canadian dollars).

~Operating Activities

The Company significantly reduced cash used in operations in 2007 with
$1.0 million used in 2007 versus 57.4 million used in 2006, an improvement
of 56.4 million. This is primarily the result of efforts to control costs in
2007 to match revenue levels, which supported a lower net loss for the
year. In addition, the Company has made significant improvements in
managing working capital balances, with $1.0 million of cash generated
from working capital in 2007 (2006 - use of 50.2 millicn of cash).

The Company has improved its collection efforts in 2007 resulting in a
decrease in accounts receivable balance from $4.0 million at December
31, 2006 to 53.0 million at December 31, 2007. The average age of
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receivables for 2007 is 47 days compared to 54 days for 2006.

Inventory has decreased from $3.0 million at December 31, 2006 to $2.5 '

million at December 31, 2007 due primarily to timing of purchases and
sales of inventory.

Prepaids and deposits decreased to $0.2 million at December 31, 2007
(December 31, 2006 - $0.3 million). Prepaids and deposits fluctuate
based on timing of required payments for various items such as rent,
insurance and purchases from new vendors.

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities decreased by $0.8 million from
$5.0 million at Decernber 31, 2006 to $4.2 million at December 31, 2007,
This decrease is primarily the result of compensation related accrued
liabilities. The Company closely monitors its trade payables position with
an average ageing of trade payables of 53 days for both 2006 and 2007.

Warranty obligations consist of an amount set-aside to cover potential
warranty Costs under the Company’s industry standard warranty
abligations.
received in advance of products or services being completed as well as
limited extended warranties.

investing Activities

The Company generated $2. 1 mﬂl:on from mvestmg activities in 2007
as a result of 52.4 million cash proceeds received from the sale of the
remaining non-core, tong-term investments, Applied Data Systems, Inc.
and Horizon Wimba, Inc. In 2006, the Company utilized approximately
$0.9 million in investing activities. The principal contributors to this
usage of cash in 2006 were $2.7 million spent on the acquisition of two
entities: TradeWind Technologies LLC for just over $0.8 miltion and SAMSys

Technologies Inc. for just over $1.8 million. This was offset partially-by -

$2.1 million of cash proceeds from the sale of the Company’s first non-
core, long-term investment, Medsite, Inc. The balance of $0.3 million in
both 2007 and 2006 relates to investment in equipment which to support
operating activities. ’ ’

SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY RESULTS

Deferred revenue relates to specific customer payments

Financing Activities

The necessity for financing activities to support operations in 2007 has
been minimal. In 2006, the Company generated cash of $11.6 million
from financing activities.. In the second quarter of 2006, the Company
generated gross proceeds of 512. & million from a publlc otfering of
48,500,000 shares at a price of $0.26. Expenses related to this offering
totaled $1.1 million for net proceeds of $11.5 million. '

Commitments

Off-balance sheet obligations are comprised of .premises rental costs
associated with the Company’s three primary operating locations. These
rental costs are expected to be incurred as follows:

Payments; due by Period

Contractual Upto1 2to3 4to5 After 5
Obligations Total year years years years
Premises Leases $1,014 S5 358 S 498 $ 152 $-6

Sirit is subject to a secunty agreement with one of its suppliers whereby
certain receivables and inventories are pledged as security equivalent
to the total amount owing to this supplier. As at December 31, 2007,
$0.2 million (2006 - $0.2 million) -is pledged -as security under. this
agreement. '

The Company had no other commitments as at December 31, 2007
and 2006, The Company had no additional off- batance sheet financing
arrangements.as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and has not enzered into’
any financial instruments. -

In 2007, no consulting or proféssional fees were paid to its direc:ors (2006
- paid 55 to one director for legal services). - .

June 30

Mar 31.

Quarterly Period Ended Dec 31 Sept 36 . Mar 31 Dec 31 Sept 30. June 30

$000s except per share amounts 2007 . 2007 2007 2007 2006 - 2006 .-2006 2006

Revenue $ 542 5 5635 S ‘694 S 6499 5 57097 5 508 $° 55% $ 5384
Cost of sales 3,631 3,610 4,465 4,236 4,144 3,399 3,685 3,396
Gross profit 1,795 2,025 2,499 2,263 1,565 1,687 1,851 1,988
Expenses 2,983 - 3,869 3,980 3,297 3,770 4,382 " 5,178 3,017
Operating loss {1,188) (1,844) - {1,481) {(1,034) ~  (2,205) (2,695) (3,327) (1,029)
Other income 353 T . 89 . 1,497 SRR 1 .8t 49 36
Net (loss)fincome for the period  $  (835) $ (1,754) S (1,392) §$ 463 § (2,074 S (2,614) § (3,278) $ (993)
Basic and diluted loss per share ~ $ -8 ©on $ (o) $. - S (001 $ (0.02) § (0.03) .5 (0.01)
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Fourth Quarter 2007
Revenue

Reported revenue in Canadian dollars decreased in the fourth quarter of |
2007 when compared to the fourth quarter of 2006, however this is due
primarily to the decline in the US dollar to Canadian dollar exchange
rate. In US dollars, revenue has increased by approximately $0.6 million
from 55.0 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 to $5.6 million in the
fourth quarter of 2007. The following revenue discussicn is noted in US
dollars. -

AVl revenue increased by .approximately US$0.5 million from US$3.8
million in the fourth quarter of 2006 to US54.3 million in the fourth’
quarter of 2007. This increase is the result of an increase in toll revenue
from US$3 0 million in the fourth quarter of 2006 to US$3.4 million in the
fourth quarter of 2007, largely a result of revenue from SR-125, the new
toll road in California. PACS revenue has remained relatively consistent
at USSO 9 million in the fourth quarter of 2007 and US50.8 million in the
fourth quarter of 2006.

RFS revenue increased from US51.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2006
to US51.3 million in the fourth quarter of 2007. The increase 1s due
primarily to increased sales of the INfinity 510,

Gross Profit

Gross profit in both the fourth quarter of 2007 and 2006 are negatively
impacted by an adjustment for product rationalization efforts. Fourth
quarter of 2007 results include a $0.1 million adjustment while the fourth
quarter of 2006 includes a $0.4 million adjustment. Excluding these
adjustments, gross profit would have been consistent at 34.7% for both
the fourth quarter of 2007 and 2006.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

SGRA expenses remained relatively consistent at $1.8 million for the
fourth quarter of 2037 and $1.9 million for the fourth quarter of 2006.

Stock- Based Compensation

Stock-based com'pensatiqn of 0.2 million was consistent with the prior

year fourth guarter,

Development Expenses

Development expenses decreased from $1.5 mllhon in the fourth quarter
of 2006 to 0. 8 million in the fourth quarter of 2007. The decrease is due

pnmanly to reduced headcount as the mtegratlon of the two acquisitions '_

earlier in the year were completed during the fourth quarter of 2006 as
wellas the reclassification of 4 employees into SG&A to better reflect daily
responsibilities: The Company has been able to streamline development
efforts to focus on both improvements and variants of current product
offenng as well ‘as improvements to the cost structure of products

Foreign Exchange Loss/ (Gam)

The us dollar decreased in value relatwe to the Canadlan dollar by
approximately 2% during the fourth quarter of 2007, Assuch, the Company
reported an unrealized foreign exchange loss for its net assets which are

o/
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predominantly denominated in US dollars of approximately $0.1 million.
In the fourth quarter of 2006, the exchange rate increased slightly and
resulted in a foreign exchange gain of $0.1. million.

Cther Income/(Loss)

Other income in the fourth quarter of 2007 consists of a $0.3 million
gain on the sale of the Company’s last long-term investment in Horizon
Wimba, Inc. as well as 50.1 million of interest income.

Quarterly Results Sumrnary

Revenue decreased in the third quarter™ of 2007 primarily due to
seasonality experienced during the quarter. Excluding the irnpact of the
foreign exchange loss of $0.6 million in the third quarter, total expenses
increased by approximately S0.2 million due primarily to increased
product development.

Revenue once again increased in the second quarter of 2007, as a result
of increased sales to new customers and increased sales volumes to
recurring customers. Total expenses were negatively impacted by the
decrease in US dollar relative to Canadian dollar- which resulted in
a foreign exchange loss:of $0.9 million for the quarters Excluding the
impact of foreign exchange, total expenses were $3.1 mitlion..

Revenue increased in the ﬁrst quarter .of 2007 due to 1ncreased sales
volume with the Company’s .largest toll customer. Total expenses
decreased as the first quarter of 2007 was the first full quarter of savings
related to the integration of the two acquisitions completed in 2006.
Other income included a $1.4 million gain recognized on the sale of the
Company’s investment in Applied Data Systems, Inc.

Revenue in the fourth guarter of 2006 increased as a result of the
continued rebound in toll revenue as well as the sale of new products in
both PACS and RFS apphcatlons Gross profit and net loss were negatively
impacted by product rationalization efforts that resulted in a 50.4 million
inventory write-down,

Third quarter 2006 revenue decreased when compared to the prior
quarter due to timing of transponder shipments. Q3 2006 expenses were
lower than the prior quarter as a result of severance costs incurred in the
second quarter as well as resulting lower salary costs incurred during the
third quarter.

Revenue in the second quarter of 2006 increased as toll transponder
sales returned to historical levels. Net loss for the second quarter of
2006 was high as a result of incremental salaries, benefits, SG&A and
developmant expenses related to the SAMSys Technologies Inc. and
TradeWind Technologies LLP acquisitions which were completed during
the quarter.

Revenue in the first quarter of 2006 was higher than the fourth quarter
of 2005 due primarily to increased toll transponder.sales. Net loss for
the first quarter was consistent with the prior year as increased sales
are offset by increased development expenditures as well as a slight
decrease in gross margin.
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OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA

As of February 22, 2008 the Company had 145,703,308 common shares
outstanding.

As of February 22, 2008 the Company had 7,707,683 issued and assumed
stock options outstanding and are exerusable for commen shares of Sirit
tnc. on a one-for-one basis.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
MANAGEMENT ESTIMATES

Revenue Recognition

Sale of finished product

Sirit sells finished products on similar terms te OEM customers, dealers,
integrators and government agencies. Revenue is recognized when
manufacturing requirements to ensure the product operates according
to specifications have been completed, the risk of ownership of product
has transferred to the customer, the value of goods has been established,
shipping and payment terms are accepted by the customer upon invoicing
and collection is reasonably assured. When terms of shipment are FOB
Siri't, the customer is invoiced and revenue is recognized as the goods leave
the Company premises. When terms of shipment are FOB destination,
revenue is recognized when the product reaches its destination and fs
accepted by the customer.

Each product carries a standard one-year warranty period. Product returns
are only accepted when there is a manufacturing defect acknowledged
by the Company. The Company will report revenue on a gross basis and
record a warranty provision based on historical return patterns. For
those customers who choose to purchase extended term warranties, the
Company will charge an additional fee which is recorded as deferred
revenue and recognized over the term of the extended warranty.

Sirit does not enter into consignment arrangements or bill and hold
transactions in the normal course of operations.

Integration project revenue

From time to time, Sirit will enter into long-term integration projects
which involve the development, building and installation of a complete
system primarily for tolling applications. The terms of such projects
range from 6 months.to 24 months and generally are non-cancetable by
either party without penalty. Prior to initiation of such projects, full
budget, technical specifications, performance outputs and timelines
are established and agreed upon by all parties to the contract. Service
or maintenance contracts which may be entered into at the end of
the project are generally subject to separately negotiated contracts.
Revenue is recognized on a percentage of completion basis, based on the
ratio of costs incurred to date to the projected total cost of the contract,
on a monthly basis. When it is determined by the Company’s project
managers that certain specifications or technical requireménts of the
contract will not be met in accordance with plan timelines, no further
revenue is recognized untit the deficiency is corrected and accepted by
the customer. When it is determined that actual costs incurred exceed

budgeted values, the gross margin for the project is recalculated, the
margin recorded to date is adjusted and the new expected margin rate is
applied to the remainder of the contract period. .

Service revenue b

For service and/or maintenance contracts, the terms and price of the
contract are agreed upon by all parties in advance of the commencement
of the service period. S5tandard industry terms of cancellation are
included as part of the contract terms. The Company recognizes revenue -
evenly over the term of the contract as services are performed. There is
generally no warranty period associated with service contracts.

Development revenue

From time to time, the Company may enter into a development project
whereby certain products are developed according to the specifications
of the customer. The terms of each development contract will vary. For
certain contracts, revenue may be recognized based on the successful
completion of milestones as evidenced by written approval from the
customer or in other situations, revenue may be recognized razably over
the period of the contract. .

Amortization

Management establishes an amortization rate for each significant category
of asset based on the lesser of the expected useful life of the asset and
the expected timeframe the asset will contribute future benefit to the
Company. Future benefit of each asset is assessed as generating revenue
and efficient utilization in daily operations. Management reviews the
expected useful lives of tangible and intangible assets at least annually.
If the estimated productive-life of an asset is evaluated to be shorter
than the current recorded life, the asset amortization period is shortened
thereby more quickly reducing asset value.

Inventory Obsolescence Reserve

Management reviews slow moving inventory items at least once per year ~
and performs monthly cycle counts and full physical counts at the end of
the fiscal year. Due to the nature of the AVl business, individual preducts
have more than one application and a useful life of certain products can
be greater than 2 years. As at December 31, 2007, the chsalescence
reserve is approximately 21% of total inventory value (2006 - 13%).

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets relate to the purchase of the toll division assets and the i
2006 acquisitions of TradeWind Technologies LLC and SAMSys Tec hnologies
Inc. The intangible assets are amortized over the anticipated expected
life of 5 years. The Company assesses the sales volumes of each of the
associated products ona monthly and annual basis, the margins earned by
the products, the intended markets.and customers who use the product_s

estimated sales for the next fiscal period, potent1al obsolescence of
the products and intentions of the Company to continue to support the
product. Based on an analysis of these issues, the Company determined
that there is no ampalrment in the value of the 1ntang1ble assets as at

December 31, 2007 and 2006, " _ h
~N ~ g - - .
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Goodwill -

Goodwill arose upon the acquisition of Sirit Technologies Inc. by iTech
Capital Corp. on November 1, 2002 and the purchase of TradeWind
Technologies LLC by Sirit Inc. on April 3, 2006, In order to establish that
there has been no impairment in the value of goodwill, management

performs a valuation analysis en the Company on an annual basis in

accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3062, “Goodwill and other
Intangible Assets”. Analysis includes assessment of operating income/
loss, working capital levels, ability to obtain financing, ability to comply
with terms of existing obligations, if any, review of contingencies, future
plans for the Company, forecasts, competitive issues and industry reports.
Based on an analysis of these issues, the Company has assessed that at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 there was no 1mpa1rrnent in the value of
the goodwill, B .

Warranty Obligations

The Company maintains a warranty provision to cover any costs of
repairs for product defects directly attributable to the initial product
manufacturing process. Any costs of repair are netted directly against
this provision as they are incurred. The Company assesses its warranty

provision at least once per year and assesses reasonableness based on -

historical warranty costs.
Stock Compensation

In accordance with CICA Handbook Section 3870 “Stock-Based
Compensation and other Stock Based Payments” the Company estimates
the current fair value of options issued to key persons during the year
based on a standard option pricing model. Inherent in this model are
assumptions regarding interest rates, life of the options and volatility of
themarket price per share. . :

RISKS S

Sirit’s management team has the responsibility for the daily evaluation”

and management of risk factors affecting the Company. The following is
manggemen’t's assessment of the most significant potential risks which
would have the greatest impact on the Company over the ensuing 12 to
24 menths given currently available information. This analysis contalns

forward looking statements that may dtffer matenally from future actual

results.

Ability to Achieve Commercialization on a Timely Basis

Sirit's_success will depend, to a great extent, _on“its ability to achieve

commercial sales of products incorporating its RFID technology on
a timely basis. There can be no assurance that Sirit’s technology and
products based on such teéhnology will achieve commercial .'acceptance
ona timely basis or that, if market acceptance is achieved, Sirit will be
able to maintain such acceptance for a significant period of time. Failure
to obtain commercial sales, or to achieve commercial sales on a timely
basis, would have an’adverse impact an Slnt s financial condltlon and its
abllity to sustain its operatlons

Sirit Ine.

Ability to Achieve Commercial Acceptance

Sirit’s targeted end-users will be required to make significant investments
in their business processes and systems in order to achieve the intended
benefits associated with RFID technology.. There is no assurance that
targeted end-users will be willing to make these investments and
adopt RFID techndlogy or, if they are, that they will choose Sirit’s RFID
products and services. Although development of Sirit’s products has been
largely completed, sales of Sirit’s current_products, which to date have
been primarily for evaluation and pilot 't'esting purposes have yielded
inconsistent revenues and there_is no assurance that Sirit’s products will
achieve commercial acceptance.

Management of Expanding Qperations

If Sirit achieves significant commercial sales of its products, it will be
required to expand its operations rapidly, which will place significant
demands on Sirit’s managerial, operationat and financial personnel and
systems. There can be no assurance that Sirit’s systems, procedures,
controls and existing facilities will be adequate to support expansion of
Sirit’s operations. Sirit’s future operating results will substantially depend
on the ability of its officers and key employees to manage changing
business conditions and to implement and improve its operational,
financial control and reporting systems. If Sirit is unable to respond to and
manage changing business conditions, the quality of Sirit’s preducts and
services, its abili]‘.} to6 retain key personnel and its results of operations
could be materially adversely affected.

Intellectual Property Rights -

Sirit’s success and competitiveness substantially depends on its internally-
developed proprietary technologies which are protected through trade
secrets, trademarks, copyrights and patents. Patent applications and
trademark registrations may not be approved, or, if approved, may be
challenged by third parties or jnvalidated. In addition, patents granted to
Sirit may not provide a distinctive or enduring competitive advantage.

Sirit is also dependent on proprietary technologies licensed from third
parties. There can be no assurance that these third party licenses will
continue to be available to Sirit in the future or that they will not be
successfully challenged by third parties.

From time to time, third parties may assert claims or initiate litigation
against Sirit alleging that Sirit’s products infringe upon their proprietary
rights and Sirit may become ihcreasingly subject to claims of infringement
or mi.sappropriation of the intellectual property rights of others. In
addition, Sirit may in the future initiate claims or litigation against third
parties for infringement of its proprietary rights. Litigation claims, with or
without merit, could be t'i‘rne-consuming and (fostly, divert management’s
attention, cause product shipment delays, and require Sirit to develop
non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or licensing agreements.
Such agreements, if required, may not be available on acceptable terms,
if at ali, which could have a material adverse effect on Sirit's business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Sirit may be subject to additional risks as it enters into transactions in
countries where intellectual property laws are not well developed or are
poorly enforced. Legal protections of its rights may be ineffective in such

TN
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countries. Litigation to defend and enforce its intellectual property rights
could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and could
have a material adverse effect on Sirit’s business, financial condition and
results of operations, regardless of the final outcome of such titigation.
Despite Sirit's efforts to safeguard and maintain its proprietary rights
in Canada, the United States and abroad, there can be no assurance
that it will be successful in doing so, or that the steps taken by Sirit in
this regard will be adequate to deter misappropriation or independent
third-party development of its technology or to prevent an unauthorized

third party from copying or otherwise obtaining and using its products or

technology. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on
Sirit's business, financial condition and results of operations.

Complexity of Products

Many of Sirit’s new products and products under development are highly
complex and innovative. As a result, they may contain defects or errors
that are detected only after installation into its customers’ systems which
could have a negativé impact on 5irit's future revenues and its ability to
meet its projections.

Dependence on Resellers and Distributors

Sirit intends to achieve some of its sales through value-added resellers and
distributors. Reliance upon third-party distribution sources subjects Sirit
to risks of business failure by such value-added resellers and distributors,
as well as credit, irﬂentory‘and busir]e_ss concentration risks. In addition,

if there is a shortfall in demand from third-party distribution sources, |

Sirit's operating results may be negatively affected.

Dependence on Customers

Sirit is dependent on a number of significant customers and on large
complex contracts with respect to sales of the majority of its products
and services. In fiscal 2007, two customers accounted for approximately
25.7% and 14.7% of total consolidated revenues. If any significant
customer discontinues its relationship with Sirit for any reason, or reduces
or postpones current or expected purchase commitments for its products
and services, it could have a material adverse effect.on Sirit’s business,
operating results and financial condition. -

Integration of Acquisitions

Sirit continues to seek out opportunities to acquire or invest in businesses,
products and technologies that expand, complement or are otherwise
related to Sirit's current business. These activities create risks such as
the need to integrate and manage the businesses and products acquired
with the business and products of Sirit, additional demands on Sirit’s
management, resources, systems, procedures and_controls,. disruption
of Sirit’s ongoing business, and diversion of management’s attention
from other business concerns, Such acquisitions, investments or other
business cotlaborations may involve significant commitments of financial

and other resources of Sirit. Any such activity may not be successful in’

generating revenue, income or other returns to Sirit, and the financial or
other resources committed to such activities will not be available to Sirit
for other purposes. Sirit’s inability to address these risks could negatively
affect Sirit’s operating results. . )

=~

RFID Market Evolution

Future revenue generation and profitability will depend on the adoption .
rate of RFID both in the supply chain as well as in other verticals and -~
the Company’s ability to effectively respond to the changing demands
of an emerging market. As with any emerging technology such as RFID,
adoption rates have been slow on initial introductions of technological
advancements. While EPC has recently released finalized protocols
and standards primarily for open loop UHF supply chain management
applications, this initial introductory phase has been met by the industry
with hesitation as extensive testing and piloting continues to be the norm.
Sirit has been able to effectively weather this slow transition period with
its recurring AVl revenue stream providing cash to support operations.
Renewed efforts to both grow the AVl vertical as well as expand into new
closed loop and emerging verticals will position 5irit to take advantage of
future high growth opportunities.

Profitability and Cash Flow Requirements

The Company does not expect it will achieve a profitable level of sales.
volumes for the year ended December 31, 2008. Revenue growith-during

2008 is anticipated in both AVl and RFS applications with recurring large

volume orders not expected until pilot projects are converted into full

scale RFID implementations. Sirit believes that at current operating levels,

it has sufficient cash and liquidity to support its ongoing requirements.

New Product Introduction / Technology Risk

Sirit’s development process makes use of the optimal mix of strong internal
engineering talent as well as external consultants and developers, The
process of developing technology frem concept stage through design to
final production involves time to complete proper testing, redesigning,
standards approvals and conversion to production. Unexpected testing
results or performance irregularities are the normin a development process
and can result in new product offerings being deferred beyond projected
timeframes. Management continually assesses market demands and -
attempts to mirror those demands with internal development initiatives.
The risk of not developing and introducing reliable pfoducts on a timely
basis into customer tests or pilots presents one of the greatest risks to
Sirit. Sirit can mitigate this risk through its product development plan,
continuous communications with customers and partners, assessment of
market trends, and participation in standards development groups such
as EPC and the DSRC development group.

Competitive Pricing

Recurring toll revenue is generated through successful tids in a
competitive tender process. Sirit won all bids submitted for trensponder
contracts in 2006 and 2007. In order to pr_ol:qr_e these results a1d secure
long-term contracts in a competitive environment, price concessions are
required. While volumes of sales are expected to increase with increased
number of drivers as well as increasing penetration within the existing
driving population on toll highways, revenue growth and gross profit will
be at risk due to lower sales price per tag. Sirit is mitigating some of
this risk by constantly seeking ways to reduce product costs including _
purchasing parts in bulk and manufacturing products overseas.

7
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Staff Retention

In an expanding market where innovation, new product development
and customer support require specialized technical knowledge, there is
an increased demand for skilled resources. The Company attempts to
maintain market accepted remuneration levels and continuously seeks
to complement strategic needs with a qualified workforce. Sirit faces
the risk of not being able to meet increasing market expectations or face
the loss of current employees to competitors, customers or suppliers.
This risk of loss is managed through communication of corporate goals
and strategy, individual contribution to achieve these goals as well as
remuneration emphasizing longer-term commitment to the Company.

Strategic Partnerships

Sirit is focusing current sales and marketing efforts on establishing,
formalizing and maintaining long-term strategic relationships. These
relationships will enable Sirit to act in a timely manner in response
to customers’ changing requirements. The establishment of these
relationships is one of the key inputs to generating revenue growth for
the Company. Should these partnerships not materialize in a timely
manner, this may negatively impact Sirit’s ability to gain market share and
achieve growth targets in the future. A key strategic focus is to continue
to develop new relationships and nurture those already established.

Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

As 5irit continues to purchase and sell product in various currencies as
well as and employ staff in various countries, Sirit will be subject to
foreign exchange risk. While the majority of revenue and a large portion
of operating expenses are incurred in US -Dollars resulting in an almost
natural hedge position, fluctuations between the Canadian and US Dollar

Sirit Ine. 1

will impact financial results which are reported in Canadian Dollars. Sirit
does not enter into any foreign currency hedging or other similar contracts
and has no plans to enter into these forms of financial instruments in the
next year.

Disctosure Controls and Procedures

In accordance with Multilateral Instrument 52-109, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have implemented and tested disclosure
controls and procedures and have concluded that such disclosure controls
and procedures provide management a reasonable level of assurance that
all material information required to be disclosed by the Company on a
continuous basis and in annual and interim filings is disctosed in a timely,
accurate and reliable manner.

Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting .

In accordance with Multilateral Instrument 52-109, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have designed or caused to be designed
under their supervision, internal controls over financial reporting to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes.

Based on Sirit’s small size, the Company recognizes that there are internal
control limitations with regards to segregation of duties and matters of
taxation. The existence of these limitations is compensated for by senior
management monitoring and in the case of complex transactions, by
utilizing external experts to assist management in their analysis.

There have been no material changes to the Company's internal controls
during the year that have had a material effect on the Company’s internal
controls over financial reporting.”




Management’s Report

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR |
FINANCIAL REPORTING '

The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Sirit Inc. have been prepared by
the Company’s management. The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in Canada and contain estimates based on
management’s judgment. Internal control systems are maintained by management to provide
reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and financial information is reliable.
Financial information contained throughout this Annual Report is consistent with the financial
statements. :

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its
responsibilities for financial reporting and is ultimately responsible for reviewing and approving
the consolidated financial statements and the accompanying management’s discussion and
analysis. The Board carries out this responsibility principally through its Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee is appointed by the Board and all of its members are non-management
directors. It meets with the Company’s management and auditors and reviews internal - -
control and financial reporting matters to ensure that management is properly discharging

its responsibilities before submitting the financial statements to the Board of Directors for
approval,

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte & Touche LLP, has examined these consolidated financial
statements and their report follows.

Norbert Dawalibi Anastasia Chodarcewicz
President Chief Financial Officer
and Chief Executive Officer and Corporate Secretary

February 22, 2008
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Auditors” Report - f

To the Shareholders of Sirit Inc. S

-

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Sirit Inc. as at December 31,-2007 and
2006 and the consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive loss and cash flows for
the years then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Canadian generally accepted-auditing standards.
Those, standards require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement < °
presentation. '

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Company as at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles.

b dsta~ downda Lt

Deloitte & Touche LLP
Chartered Accountants

Licensed Public Accountants *
Toronto, Canada

February 22, 2008
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

{expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)
As at December 31

Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable (note 5)
Inventory
Prepaids and deposits

Long-term investments {note 6)
Property and equipment {(note 7)
Intangible assets {note 8}
Goodwill {note 8)

Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Warranty obligations

Long-term deferred revenue
Long-term warranty obligations

Commitments and contingencies (note 14)

Shareholders’ Equity
Share capital (note 9)
Contributed surptus (note 9)
Deficit

Approved by the Directors:

e Dp_o/%-

Norbert Dawalibi

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

See accompanying notes

2007 2006

S 8,855 9,397
2,951 3,957
2,450 2,997
233 348
14,489 16,699

. 849

1,070 1,095
1,205 1,734
3,905 3,905

S 20,669 24,282
$ 4,178 4,954
306 293

134 136
4,618 5,383
569 507

124 162
5,311 6,052
47,852 47,830
2,699 2,075
(35,193) " (31,675)
15,358 18,230

] 20,669 24,282

e fn

Howard E. Johnson

Director
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Consolidated Statements of Operations, Comprehensive Loss and Deficit

{expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars except per share amounts)
Years ended December $1

i 2007 2006
Revenue S 24,524 S -~ 21,715
Cost of sales 15,942 . 14,624
Gross profit 8,582 © 7,091
Expenses
Selling, general and administrative 8,298 9,130
Stock-based compensation (note 11) 624 759
Development 2,625 5,517
Amortization ] 871 872
Foreign exchange loss 1,711 69
14,129 16,347
Operating loss (5,547) (9,256) -
Other income - - 78
Loss on disposat of assets - (34)
Gain on sale of long-term investments (note 6) 1,664 -
Interest income, net 365 253
Net loss and comprehensive loss for the year (3,518) (8,959)
Deficit, beginning of year (31,675) (22,716)
Deficit, end of year $  (35,193) $ (31,675)
Basic and diluted loss per share $ (0.02) S {0.07)
Basic and diluted weighted average number of common
145,657

.shares {*000s)

See accompanying notes

"

124,859
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(expressed in thousands of Canadian dollars)
Years ended December 31

2007 2006
Cash provided by/(used in):
Operating Activities
Net loss for. the year ) (3,518) S (8,959)
Items not invqlving cash and cash equivalents {note 13a) 1,495 1,665
Gain on sale of long-term investments (1,664) -
Foreign exchange loss 1,711 - 69
(1,976) - . {7,225)
Net change in non-cash working capital items {note 13b) 995 (207)
(981) ] (7,432)
Investing Activities
Additions to property and equipment (316) (282}
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired - (2,667)
Proceeds on sale of long-term investments 2,384 . . 2,063
2,068 . .. (886}
Financing Activities i
Public offering of common shares, net of associated expenses - 11,506
Issuance of common shares upon exercise of stock options 22 109
' 22 11,615
Exchange rate impact on cash and cash equivalents (1,651) 21
Increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ' (542) . 3,318
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 9,397 6,079
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 8,855 $ 79,397
Cash and cash equivalents consist of:
Cash S 1,826 $ 1,277
Short-term commercial paper 7,029 8,120
$ 8,855 $ 9,397

See accompanying notes

~
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Notes to Consohdated Financial Statements

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Sirit Inc. {“Sirit” or the “Company”} designs, develops, manufactures and sells radio frequency identification (“RFID"} solutions.

2. CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants (“CICA™) Handbook Section 1530, “Comprehensive Income™; Section 3251,
“Equity”; Section 3855, “Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement”; and Section 3865, “Hedges™. These standards result in changes in the accounting for
financial instruments and hedges as well as introduce accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. As required, these
standards have been adopted retrospectively without restatement of the comparative figures.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is the change in Shareholders' equity, which results from transactions and other events and circumstances from non-shareholder sources. These
transactions and events include unrealized gains and losses resulting from changes in fair value of investments classified as available-for-sale and from foreign currency
transtation of self-sustaining foreign subsidiaries and changes in gains and losses on derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges. The Company does nat currently
have any other comprehensive income {*0C1”} and accordingly no separate statement of OC| is presented in these financial statements,

Equity )
This section establishes the standards for presentation of equity. and changes in equity during the peried. It requires that separate presentation of changes in equity for the

period arising from net income, OCI, contributed surplus, retained earnings, share capital and reserves. Accumulated OC| would be included in the consolidated balance
sheet as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. The Company does not currently have accumulated OCI.

Financial Instruments - Recognition and Measurement

This section establishes standards for the recognition and measurement of financial instruments which are comprised of financial assets, financial liabilities and financial
derivatives.

A financial asset is cash or a contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset, 1nclud|ng equity, from another party. A financial hablhty is the contractual obligation
to deliver cash or another financial asset to another party.

A derivative is a financial instrument whose value changes in response to a specified variable, requires little or no net investment and is settled at a future date. An
embedded derivative is a derivative that is a part of a non-derivative contract and not directly related to that contract. Under this standard, embedded derivatives must
be accounted for as a separate financial instrument recorded in net income/{loss) except for derivatives that are designated as cash flow hedges for which the fair value
change is recognized in OCl. A non-financial derivative is a contract that can be settled net in cash or another financial instrument. )

Under this standard, all financial instruments are initially recorded at fair value and are subsequently accounted for based on one of four classificaticns: held-for-trading,
held-to-maturity, loans and receivables or available-for-sale. The classification of a financial instrument depends on its characteristics and the purpose for which it was
acquired. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities are classified as other financial liabilities and are measured at amortized cost. Fair-values are based upon quoted market
prices available from active markets or are otherwise determined using a variety of valuation techniques and modeis.

Held-for-trading

Held-for-trading financial instruments are financial assets or financial liabilities that are purchased with the intention of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Any financial
instrument can be designated as held-for-trading as long as its fair value can be reliably measured. A derivative is classified as held-for-trading, untess designated as and
considered an effective hedge. Held-for-trading instruments are recorded at fair value with any subsequent gains or losses from changes in the fair vatue recorded directly
into earnings. All of the Company's cash equivalents are designated as held-for-trading.

The fair values of cash equivalents approximate their carrying value due to their short-term nature.
Held-to-maturity ’

Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and a fixed maturity that the Company has the intent and ability to hold to maturity.
These financial assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Any gains or losses arising from the sale of a held-to-maturity investment are
recarded directly into net income/(loss}.

Loans and receivables

Receivables continue to be accounted for at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Any gains or losses on the realization of receivables are recorded in net
income/ {loss). -

The fair value of accounts receivable approximate their carrying values due to the short-term nature of this instrument.
Avaitabie-for-sate

Available-for-sale assets are those financial assets that are not classified as held-for-trading, held-te-maturity or loans and receivables. Available-for-sale instruments are
recorded at fair value, Any gains or losses arising from the change in fair value are recorded in OC! and upon the sale of the instrument or other-than-temporary impairment,
the cumulative gain or {oss is transferred to net income/(loss).

During 2007, the Company seld its two remaining long-term investments which were classified as available-for-sale, These investments were recorded at cost in the financial
statements as they were both private companies which did not have quoted prices in an active market. The Company does not have any available-for-sale instruments as
of December 11, 2007.

Transaction costs

Transaction costs relating to all financial instruments are expensed as incurred.

There was no impact on the financial statements as a result of the adoption of this standard.

Sirit Inc. | | ’@)




i . December 31, 2007 and 2006
{expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share info)

Hedges - T

Hedge accounting is optional and the Company may elect not to designate the hedging instrument as a hedge for accounting purposes. When hedge accounting is net applied,
the change in the fair value of the hedging instrument is recorded directly into net income/{loss).

The Company currently daes not have any hedging instruments. . - - e -
Future accounting changes -
Inventories

In June 2007, the CICA issued Section 3031, “Inventaries”, replacing Section 3030, “Inventories”. The new Section will be applicable to financial statements relating to fiscal
years heginning on or after January 1, 2008, Accordingly, the Company will adopt the new standards for its fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008. It provides more guidance
on the measurement and disclosure requirements for inventories. For example, it requires that fixed and variable production overheads be systematically allocated to the
carrying amount of inventory. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this new Section on its consolidated financial statements. 'I'he' Company
does not expect that the adoption of this new Section will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Financial instruments

tn December 2006, the CICA issued Section 3862, “Financial Instruments - Disclosures™; Section 3863, “Financial Instruments - Presentation™; and Section 153%, “Capital
Disclosures”. All three Sections will be applicable to financial statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2007. Accordingly, the Cornpany will
adopt the new standards for its fiscal year beginning January 1, 2008. Section 3862 on financial instruments disclosures requires the disclosure of information about: a)
the significance of financial instruments for the entity's financial position and performance and b) the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments'to which
the entity is exposed during the period and at the balance sheet date, and how the entity manages those risks. Section 3863 on the presentation of financial irstruments

is unchanged from the presentation requirements included in Section 3861. Section 1535 on capital disclosures requires the disclosure of information about an entity's
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. ’

The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these new Sections on its consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect that the
adoption of these new Sections will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

¢

Goadwill and intangible assets

In Febnuary 2008, the CICA issued Section 3064, “Goodwill and intangible assets™, replacing Section 3062, “Goodwill and other intangibe assets” and Section 3450, “Research
and development costs”. Various changes have been made to other sections of the CICA Handbook for consistency purposes. The new Section will be applicable to financial
statements relating to fiscal years beginning on or after October 1, 2008. Accordingly, the Company will adopt the new standards for its fiscal year beginning January 1,
2009. It establishes standards for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of goedwill subsequent to its initial recognition and of intangible: assets by
profit-oriented enterprises. Standards concerning goodwill are unchanged from the standards included in the previcus Section 3062. The Company is currently avaluating
the impact of the adoption of this new Section on its consolidated financial statements. The Company does not expect that the adoption of this new Section wsill have a
material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The cansolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian generally accepted accounting principles and reflect the following significant
accounting policies: .

Basis of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents inctude investments which are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments and include marketable securities with original .
maturities of 120 days or less.

Inventory
Inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, cost being determined by the first-in, first-out {FIFQ) method. Market is based on estimated net realizable value.
Investments ’

Investments in companies-which are not subject to control or significant influence by the Company are accounted for using the cost method whereby earnings from such
investments are recognized only to the extent received or receivable. [f there is a decline in value of the investment which is other than temporary, the invistment’is
written down to its estimated net realizable value.

Property and equipment

Maintenance and repair costs are charged to operations as incurred. Amartization is provided at rates and on bases designed to amortize the cost of the assets over their,
estimated useful lives as follows:

Equipment - 20% declining balance T . e e . »
Computer hardware & software © - 3 to 5 years straight-line
Furniture & fixtures - 20% declining balance or over the lease term

Long-lived assets i oo
Long-lived assets are tested for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. Long-lived assets are
grouped at the lowest level far which identifiable cash ftows are largely independent, when testing for and measuring impairment. A two-step pracess is used to assess the
impairment of long-lived assets held for use, with the first step determining when impairment is recognized and the second step measuring the amount of the impairment. An

| impairment loss is recognized when the carrying value of the long-lived asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected from its use and eventual ¢lisposition

and is measured as the amount by which the long-lived asset’s carrying amount exceeds its fair value.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Intangibles with- finite useful lives

The Company’s intangible assets représént'technology related to the two acquisitions in 2006 (note 4) as well as to the Toll technology. These assets are considered to have
finite useful lives and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of five years. Management reviews the amortization methods and useful
life estimates for these intangible assets annually.

Goodwill . - ) : , : .

Goodwill represents the excess of purchase price over the fair value of net identifiable assets acquired in a business combination. Goodwill and intangible assets with
indefinite lives are not amortized but are subject to fair value impairment tests on an annual basis and, additionally, whenever events and changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value might not be recoverable. Impairment of goodwill is tested at the reporting unit level by comparing the reporting unit’s carrying amount, including
goodwill, to the fair value of the reporting unit. The fair values of the reporting units are estimated using a combination of the income or discounted cash flows approach
and the market approach, which utilizes comparable companies’ data. If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value, then a second step is performed
to measure the amount of impairment loss, measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its fair value. Any impairment
loss measured as the amount by which the carrying value of the reporting unit’s goodwill exceeds its fair value, would be expensed in the consolidated statements of
operations.

Revenue recognition

The Company is engaged in several types of revenue generating activities. The following summarizes these activities as well as when revenue is recognized. All revenue is
generated from the RFID segment.

Sale of finished product

Sirit sells finished products on similar terms to OEM customers, dealers, integrators and government agencies, Revenue is recognized when manufacturing requirements to
ensure the product operates according to specifications have been completed, the risk of ownership of product has transferred to the customer, the value of goods has been
established, shipping and payment terms are accepted by the customer upon invoicing and collectibility is reasonably assured. When terms of shipment are FOB Sirit, the
customer is invoiced and revenue is recognized as the goods leave the Company’s premises. When terms of shipment are FOB destination, revenue is recognized when the
praduct reaches its destination and is accepted by the customer.

Each product carries a standard one-year warranty. Product returns are only accepted when there is a manufacturing defect acknowledged by the Company. The Company
will report revenue on a gross basis and record a warranty provision based on historical return patterns. For those customers who choose to purchase extended term
warranties, the Company will charge an additional fee which is recorded as deferred revenue and recognized over the term of the extended warranty. ’

Sirit does not enter into consignment arrangements or bill and held transactions in the normal course of operations.
integration project revenue

From time to time, Sirit will enter into long-term integration projects which involve the development, building and installation of a complete system primarily for toll related
applications. The terms of such projects can range from 6 months to 24 months and generally are non-cancelable by either party without penalty. Prior to initiation of such
projects, full budget, technical specifications, performance outputs and timelines are established and agreed upon by all parties to the contract. Service or maintenance
contracts which may be entered into at the end of the project are generally subject to separately negotiated contracts. Revenue is recognized on a percentage of comnpletion
basis, based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to the projected total cost of the contract, on a monthly basis. When it is determined by the Company's project managers
that certain specifications or technical requirements of the contract wilt not be met in accordance with plan timelines, no further revenue is recognized until the deficiency
is corrected and accepted by the customer. When it is determined that actual costs incurred exceed budgeted values, the gross margin for the project is recalculated, the
margin recorded to date is adjusted and the new expected margin rate is applied to the remainder of the contract period.

Service revenue

For service and/or maintenance contracts, the terms and price of the contract are agreed upon by all parties in advance of the commencement of the service period.
Standard industry terms of cancellation are included as part of the contract terms. The Company recognizes revenue ratably over the term of the contract as services are
performed, There is generally no warranty period associated with service contracts.

Development revenue

From time to time, the Company may enter into a development project whereby certain products are developed according to the specifications of the customer. The
terms of each development contract will vary. For certain contracts, revenue may be recognized based on the successful completion of milestones as evidenced by written
approval from the customer or in other situations, revenue may be recognized ratably over the period of the contract.

The Company is not economically dependent on any one particular customer.
Stock-based compensation

The Company uses the fair-value based method to account for all stock-based payments to employees and non-employees granted after January 1, 2002 by measuring the
compensation cost of the stock-based payments using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. The fair value of the stock-based compensation is recorded as a charge to
earnings based on the vesting peried with a corresponding charge to contributed surplus. When employees exercise their stock options, share capital is increased by the sum
of the consideration paid by the employees together with the related portion previously added to contributed surplus when compensation costs were charged to earnings.

Research and development
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs are expensed as incurred unless they meet the criteria for deferral and amortization.
Income taxes

Income taxes are catculated using the asset and liability method of accounting. Temporary differences arising from differences between the tax basis of an asset or
liability and its carrying amount on the balance sheet are used to calculate future income tax liabilities or assets. Future income tax liabilities or assets are calculated
using substantively enacted tax rates and laws anticipated to apply in the periods that the temporary differences are expected to reverse. Temporary differences arising
on acquisitions result in future income tax liabilities or assets. The measurement of future tax assets is_reduced, if necessary, by a valuation allowance where, based on

available evidence, the probability of realization of the future tax asset does not meet a more likely than not criteria.
Foreign currency translation

All foreign operations are considered integrated as they are financially and operationally dependent on the parent. Accordingly, the temporal method of foreign currency
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December 31, 2007 and 2006
(expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share info)

translation is followed whereby monetary assets and liabilities are translated into Canadian dollars at the balance sheet date rate of exchange and non-monetary assets and
liabilities are translated at historical rates. Revenues and expenses are translated at average annual rates except for amomzanon which is translated at historical rates
Gains and losses on translation are mcluded in the statement of aperations.

Income/(loss) per share . . P,

Basic and diluted income/ (loss) per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net loss for the year by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during .~
the year.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian generally accepted accounting pn‘ncipies requires management to make estimates and a:-Su'mptions )
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as at the date of the financial statements as welt as the reported
amount of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates and assumptions. Estimates are included in the following:
allowance for doubtful acco'unts, inventory reserve, valuation of investments, purchase price allocation for acguisitions, warranty reserve, valuation of goodwil. and long-
lived assets and estimates used in the valuation of stock options.

Foreign exchange risk

The Company is exposed to foreign currency exchange risk in that a significant portion of the Company’s revenues are denominated in US Dollars while expenses are
denominated in US Dollars, Canadian Dollars, Euros and British Pounds. The Company does not use any financial instruments to mitigate this risk.

Interest rate risk

The Company is exposed to reductions n interest rates, which could adversely impact expected returns from the Company's investment of corporate funds in r1arketable
securities upon maturity of such instruments.

Credit risk

The Company is exposed to credit risk through investments in marketable securities and accounts receivable. The Company holds its investments with reputable ﬁnénclal‘
institutions and in hlghly liquid financial instruments. Accounts receivable credit risk is mitigated by the Company’s largest customers bemg government supported '
agencies.

4. ACQUISITIONS

{a) OnApril 3, 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of TradeWind Technologies LLC (“TradeWind"}, a private Knoxville, Tennessee
based RFID development company. The results of TradeWind's operations are included in the financial statements since that date. TradeWind specializes in the
development of high frequency (“HF"} preducts and brings to Sirit an immediate complementary suite of HF plug and play readers. ’

Sirit acquired TradeWind for aggregate consideration of 51,858 including US$600 (CDN$702) cash, 3,000,000 common sﬁares valued at $1,020 and associated acquisition
costs of 5136, The value of the 3,000,000 common shares issued was 50.34 per share and was determined based on the average market price of Sirit’s comon shares
over the five trading days prior to and the five tradlng days subsequent to the February 27, 2006 public announcement of the acqu151tlon

The following table summarizes the est|mated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition: -

Intangible assets 1 840 ' K . ’ L
Goodwill 1,076
Total assets acquired 1,916
Current liabilities i (58)
Total fiabilities assumed (58) ’
Net assets acquired $ 1,858

The intangible assets acquired cansist of RFID reader-writer technology and software developed by TradeWind. The entire balance is bemg amomzed on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful life of 5 years. The year ‘ended December 31 2007 results includes amomzauon expense for these intangible assets of $168 (2006 -
$112).

(b) On April 13, 2006, the Company completed the acquisition of the assets and undertakings of SAMSys Technologies Ihc. {(“SAMSys™) out of a court ‘appeinted rezeivership
proceeding. The results of SAMSys’ operations are included in the financial statements since that date, SAMSys was a publicly listed company on the TSX {synbol SMY) *.
and provided RFID reader hardware solutions to customers in the autematic identification and data capture industry, specifically targetmg supply chain manag(-ment and
asset management targets. . N

The aggregate purchase price was 94,335 including 54,000 in cash and $335 in associated acquisition costs. ‘ - . oo

The following table summarizes the estimated fair values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:’

Current assets (including cash of $2, 506) S 3.63_’2 N
Property and equipment ‘380 -
Intangible assets 967
Total assets acquired . 5,019 N _
Current liabilities . - - (684) " . - . .
Total liabilities assumed {684) - . )
Net assets acquired $ 4,335 PR A

J/
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The intangible assets acquired consist of technology related to a new platform for UHF readers and RFID tag and module technologies. The entire balance is being
" amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of 5 years. The year ended December 31, 2007 results includes amortization expense for these intangible
assets of $193 (2006 - $129).

5. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

2007 2006
Trade S 2,749 $ 3,584 R
Other 202 373
S 2,951 $ 3,957
6. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
2007 2006
Applied Data Systems, Inc. S - $ 739
Horizon Wimba, Inc. - 110
5 - 5 849

Applied Data Systems, Inc.

The Company owned 294,986 Series A 7% redeemabie convertible participating preferred stock of Applied Data Systems, Inc., a private Maryland corporation. On January 10,
2007, the Company sotd its non-core investment in Applied Data Systems, Inc. for total proceeds of US51,823 (CDNS2,140), resulting in a gain on the sale of CDNS1,401. Of
the total proceeds, CDON$130 is being held in escrow and has been included in accounts receivable as the escrow balance should be received within the next 12 months.

Horizon Wimba, Inc.

The Company owned 875,512 comman shares of Horizon Wimba, Inc. On December 14, 2007, the Company sold its nen-core investment in Horizon Wimba, Inc. for total
proceeds of U$5368 (CDNS373), resulting in a gain on the sale of CDONS263. The Company has no further ownership in Horizon Wimba, Inc,

7. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

2007
Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
Equipment 5 1,498 5 746 $ 752
Computer hardware & software 957 718 229
Furniture & fixtures ) 400 n B9
$ 2,855 $ 1,785 $ 1,070
2006
Accumulated
Cost Amortization Net
Equipment’ . S 1,340 $ 579 5 761
Computer hardware & software 825 608 n7
Furniture & fixtures 428 3N . 117 ..
§ 2,593 $ 1,498 $ 1,095
8. GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Intangible
Goodwill Assets Total

Net book value, December 31, 2005 ) 1,829 S 370 S 3,199
Additions 1,076 - 1,807 + 2,883
Amartization - (443) (443)
Net book value, December 31, 2006 3,905 1,734 5,639
Amartization - (529) (529)
Net book value, December 31, 2007 $ 3,905 $ 1,205 $ 5,110
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December 31, 2007 and 2006
{expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share info}

The 2006 addition to goodwill relates to the TradeWind acquisition {note 4}. The 2006 additions to tntangible assets consist of téchnology acquired from TradeWind and
SAMSys (note 4). The Company is amortizing the intangible assets over their estimated useful lives of 5 years. :

9. SHARE CAPITAL AND CONTRIBUTED SURPLUS - . ..
The Company is autherized to issue an unlimited number of common shares and 300,000,000 preferred shares.

A summary of the changes in issued and outstanding comman shares is as foltows:

Shares Amount
Balance at December 31, 2005 93,273,786 5 35,195
Issued on public offering 48,500,000 12,610
Issued on TradeWind acquisition (note 4) 3,000,000 1,020
Issued on exercise of stock options 762,495 109
Expenses related to stock issuances - (1,104)
Balance at December 31, 2006 145,536,281 47,830
Issued on exercise of stock options 167,027 2
Balance at December 31, 2007 145,703,308 $ 47,852 -

During the second quarter of 2006, the Company completed a public offering of 48,500,000 common shares at a price of $0.26 per commeon share, for total gross proceeds
of $12,610. The Company incurred expenses totalling 51,104 related to this equity offering.

e

The following table reconciles the contributed surplus for the years ended December 31;

Amount
Balance at December 31, 2005 S 1,316
Stock-based con}pensation 759
Balance at Dece-mber 31, 2006 2,075
Stock-based compensation 624 _
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 2,699

10. STOCK OPTION PLANS - -
Stock Option Plan for Key Persons

The Company has a Stock Option Plan for Key Persons {the “Plan”). -Kéy Persons include any individual being a director, officer or employee of the Company or any other
person, individual or otherwise who provides services, who is, in the judgment of the Board of Directors, of special value to the Company.

On April 26, 2007, pursuant to the Annual General and Special Meeting of Sirit Inc., the shareholders approved certain amendments to the Stock Option Plan for Key Persons.
One amendment increased the aggregate number of common shares available for issuance upon the exercise of options issued from 11,500,000 to 21,750,000, including
the replenishment of 3,057,989 previously exercised options. In addition, the amendments extended the term of issued and issuable options that expire in a Company self-
imposed blackout period for up to ten business days following the lifting of such blackout period. -

Conditions governing the granting of options under the Plan include: .
- the aggregate number of options the Company may grant under the Plan is 21 ,750,000 common shares,
- no options exceeding 5% of the shares then outstanding of the Company, on a non-diluted basis, may be granted to any one optionee or their associa'tes;‘
- vesting and terms are at the discretion of the Board of Directors;
- the maximum option life is 10 years from grant date; '

- The maximum number of Common Shares issued to insiders {and their associates and affiliates) within any one year period under the Plan, and all other security based
compensation arrangements of the Company, shall not exceed 10% of the outstanding number of Commen Shares from time to time;

- except for options granted to directors of the Company, each option issued shall terminate no later than 30 days after an optionee ceases to be a Key Perion of the
Company or the expiry date of the option, unless terminated earlier by the Board; and

- for options granted to directors of the Company, the option shall terminate no later than one calendar year after an optionee director ceases to be a Key Person of the
Company or the expiry date of the option, unless terminated earlier by the Board.

As at December 31, 2007, the number of options available for issuance under the Plan is 14,072,317 options (2006 - 1,640,911 options).
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Sirit Transaction Options

It connection with the acquisition of Sirit Teéhnologies Inc, an November t, 2002, the Toronta Stock Exchange approved the listing of an additional 1,682,084 common shares
of the Company. The Compary then issued stock options for an aggregate 1,570,777 common shares to certain current and former employees, directors, and cansultants of
Sirit Technologies Inc. generally on'the terms and cenditions of the Plan of the Company. As at December 31, 2007, 1,307 (2006 - 1,307) of these common shares not granted
are available for new grants. With respect to the above 1,682,084 comman shares, any cancelled or expired options may not be re-granted.

The following summarizes stock option activity for the years ended December 31:

2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Number Average Number Average
of Shares Exercise Price  of Shares Exercise Price
Sirit Transaction Options Outside the Plan
Balance, beginning of year 227,797 S 0.14 240,292 $ 014
Exercised (167,027) 0.t3 . {12,495) 0.13
Expired/terminated {30,770) 0.13 - .
Balance, end of year 30,000 0.22 227,797 0.14
Options Qutstanding Inside the Plan
Balance, beginning of year 6,801,100 0.55 7,599,233 0.68
Granted:
Directors 340,000 0.29 480,000 0.28
Employees 1,735,334 0.29 2,605,000 0.23
Consultant 50,000 0.36 - -
Exercised - - {750,000) 0.14
Expired/terminated (1,248,751} 0.49 13,133,133 0.69
Balance, end of year 7,677,683 0.49 6,801,100 0.55
Options Outstanding Outside and Inside the Plan
Balance, end of year 7,707,683 $ 0.48 7,028,897 $ 0.53

The weighted average fair value for stock options granted during 2007 was $0.22 {2006 - $0.12).

The following summarizes the outstanding stock options and options exercisable at December 31, 2007:

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Numberof  Weighted Weighted Number of Weighted
Range of Options Average Average Options Average
Exercise Price Outstanding Exercise Price Life in Years Qutstanding Exercise Price

$0.13 - 50.20 1,416,500 $ 0.20 - 3.9 478,831 $ 0.20
$0.21 - $0.50 3,710,283 5 0N 4.7 945,193 S 0.37
$0.51 - $1.00 2,145,000 $ 0.80 2.1 1,645,000 S 0.7%
$1.00 - §1.43 413,900 5 1.39 2.0 324,064 5 1.37
Total Issued 7,707,683 $ 0.48 3.7 3,393,088 $0.63

11. STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In 2007, the Company granted stock options pursuant to the Stock Option Ptan for Key Persons (the “Plan™) to employees, directors and an external consultant totalling
2,125,334 (2006 - 3,085,000}. All options in 2006 and 2007 were issued with an exercise price equal to market value at grant date and vesting over a three-year period.

The total fair value of the options granted in 2007 was determined to be $475 {2006 - 5368). In 2007, 5624 (2006 - 5759} was inctuded in contributed surplus and in the
statement of operations. The fair value was estimated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model. Assumptions used in the pricing model are as follows:

2007 2006
(a) Risk-free interest rate: ) 3.95% - 4.59% 3.94% - 4.47%
{b) Expected life T 3 - 7 years 3 years
{c) Expected volatility 67% - 106% 68% - 7T7%
{d) Expected dividends il Nit
N
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December 31, 2007 and 2006
{expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share info)

12. INCOME TAXES =

The Company's activities are carried out through operating subsidiaries in a number of countries. The income tax effect of operations depends on the income tax legaslatlon
in each country and the operating results of each subsidiary.

The difference between the provision  for income taxes and the ameunt computed by multiplying net income/{loss} from continuing operations before taxes by the statutory
Canadian tax rate is reconciled as follows:

2007 2006
_Net loss S (3,518) S (8,959
- en
"' ~ Tax at statutory rate of 36.12% (2006 - 36%) : {1,271} (3,225)
""" Differences in income taxes resulting from:
Foreign tax rate differences (91} ) (136)
Non-deductibl e items [} 283
Utilization of losses not previously recognized (94) {179)
Losses and temporary differences not recognized 1,450 3,257
Provision for income taxes 5 - S -

Future income taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpcses and the
amounts used for income tax purposes. Future income tax assets and liabilities consist of the fotlowing temporary differences:

2007 2006
Future tax assets/(liabilities):
Non-capital loss carry forwards $ 7,028 $ 7.741
Net capital loss carryforwards . 3,742 4,150
Property and equipment (44} 87
Intangible assets 764 902
Liabilities and reserves 692 651
Investments - 70
Financing costs 225 362 ,'
Unrealized foreign exchange loss/{gain) - 1,213 (244)
Valuation allowance {13,620} {13,719)
Net future tax asset/(liability) " S - $ -

The Company has accumulated non-capital losses for income tax purpeses of approximately $22,565 (2006 - '$24,484) which are available to reduce taxable income in future
years, The Company alse has capital losses of $20,557 (2006 - $20,930} which can be applied against future capital gains. The potential tax benefit of these losses has not
been recorded in these financial statements. 518,517 of the capital losses can be carned forward indefinitely.with the balance of $2,040 expiring in 2008. The non- capital
tosses will expire as follows:

Expiry Amount
2008 1,104
2009 1,214
2010 420
2012 6
2013 169
2014 560
2015 1,097
) 2020 * 353 ] .
2021 248
2022 277 . o .
2023 1,189 h ) .
2024 197
2025 To3,647
2026 - 7 s182
2027 T 1975 . .
Indefinite 3,897
$ 22,565
PR ANNUAL BEPORT
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13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES RELATED TO CASH FLOWS

(a} Items not involving cash and cash equivalents: -

2007 2006
Amortization:
Property and equipment "8 342 S 370
Intangible assets . . 529 . 443 .
Deferred development costs = . . . - 59
Loss on disposal of assets - 34
Stock-based compensation 624 759

$ 1,495 5 1,665

{b) Non-cash and non-cash equivalents working capital:

2007 2006
Accounts receivable . s 677 S (156}
Inventory 407 1618}
Prepaids and deposits 77 {207)
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 273) B87
Warranty obligations F¥s (120}
Deferred revenue B5 7
5 995 $ (207)
(¢} Cash paid for the fallowing:
2007 2006
Interest 5 - s .
tncome tax ) - -
5 - $ -
14. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(a) The Company has the following commitments for prerﬁi-ses operati}\g le.ases: .
—_Amount
2008 5 358
2009 282
2010 216
2011 . 75
012 77
Thereafter 6
$ 1,014

{b) At December 31, 2007, certain accounts receivable and in\;éntory were pledged as security in connection with accounts payable in the amount of $189 (2006 - $207).

{c) The Company faces potential contingencies, such as contract disputes, tax issues or lawsuits, as part of its ongoing operations and judgment is required when
assessing each situation. The Company is not able to determine with reasonable certainty the outcome of any potential contingency and may take reserves in certain
situations. .

15. SEGMENTED INFORMATION

The Company and its subsidiaries operate in the technology sector in two reportable business segments. As of December 31, the Company’s property and equipment and
goodwill by business segment and by geographic segment are as follows:
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December 21, 2007 and 2006

(expressed in thousands of Canadian Dollars except per share info)

2007
RFID Purtfolio - -
Business Investments Total

Property and equipment L

United States. * - . ... .8 . 971 5 . $ 971

Canada 99 - . 99
Property and equipment S 1,070 - $ 1,070
Goodwill

United States $ 3,905 S - S 3,905

Canada - - -
Goodwill ] 3,905 $ - $ 3,905

2006 .
RFID Portfolio
Business Investments Total

Property and equipment .

United States 5 972 $ - $ 972

Canada 123 . 123
Property and equipment S 1,095 - S 1,095
Goodwill ’

United States s 3,905 5 -8 3,905

Canada . . .
Goodwill 5 3,905 $ - 8 3,905

For the years ended December 31, the Company's revenue and expenses by reportable business segment are as follows:

2007
RFiD Portfolio :
Business Investments Total
Revenue L. 5 24,524 5 - $ 24,524
Cost of sales . 15,942 - 15,942
Gross profit 8,582 : - 8,582
Operating expenses 14,129 - - 14,129
QOperating toss ) (5.547) - {5,547)
Gain on sale of long-term investments - 1,664 1,664
Interest income, net i 365 - 365
Net (loss}/income for the year $ (5,182) S 1,664 $ (3,518)
2006 '
RFID Portfolio
Business Investments Total
Revenue $ 21,715 $ - $  sn,Ns
Cost of sales . 14,624 - 14,624
Gross profit 7,091 . ) 7,091
Operating expenses 16,347 ’ - 16,347
Operating loss (9,256) . (9,256)
Other income 78 - 78
Loss on disposal of assets (34} - (34)
Interest income, net 253 253
Net loss for the year $ {8,959} S - $  (8,959)

N
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For the years ended December 31, the Company's revenues by geographic segment are as follows:

ey R ld nia ) rz?,"’z )
T TRFID ST “portfélio -
1BLSIAa3 -5 %l avestmints 1750 5 Tofal
Canada 5 773 S S 773
United States i 19,428 |, . 19,428
South America o BT 62
United Kingdom & Europe 3,740 - 3,740
Asia & Middle East Vlgay 521
S 24,524 S - $ 24,524
- 2006
RFID Portfolio
Business investments Total
Canada $ 420 $ - $ 430
United States 18,061 - 18,061
South America . 129 - 129
United Kingdom & Europe 2,633 - 2,633
Asia & Middle East 462 - 462
LAY v $ 2,715 0§ - § 2715

TNTST T,
T o
Of the 524,524 revenue in the RFID business segment in 2007, the three largest individual customers represent 25.7%, 14.7% and 7.6% respectively (2306 - 521,715 revenue
of which the three largest individual customers represent 28.5%, 14.0% and 9.8% respectively).
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16. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In 2007, no consulting or professional fees were paid to directors (2006 - paid $5 to one director for legal services).

4

17. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain of the Lomparative ﬁgurés have been reclassified to conform to the prezenatipn‘adopted in the current year.
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SIRIT INC. SAIRENT I
NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS AT T

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual Meeting of Shareholders (the “Meeting”) of Sirit Inc.
(the “Company”) will be held at The Gallery, First Canadian Place, 100 King Street West, Toronto,
Ontario, on Thursday April 24, 2008 at 3:30 p.m. {Toronto time), for the following purposes:

(1 receive and consider the annual report of management to the shareholders
including the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended December 31, 2007 and the report of the auditors thereon;

(2) elect directors of the Company for the ensuing year;

(3) appoint Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the
Company for the ensuing year and to authorize the Company’'s directors to fix
their remuneration; and,

{4) transact such other business as may properly come hefore the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

This notice is accompanied by a management information circular, a form of proxy, a
supplemental mailing list request form and if requested, the annual report which includes the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31,
2007.

Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meeting are requested to complete, date, sign and
return the enclosed form of proxy to ensure as large a representation of Shareholders responses
as possible may be reflected at the Meeting.

The board of directors of the Company has, by resolution, fixed the close of business on March
20, 2008 as the record date, being the date for the determination of the registered holders of
common shares entitled to this notice of the Meeting and any adjournment thereof.

The board of directors of the Company has by resolution fixed 48 hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays) before the time for holding the Meeting or any adjournment thereof as the
time before which proxies to be used or acted upon at the Meeting or any adjournment thereof
shall be deposited with the Company c/o the Company’s transfer agent, Equity Transfer & Trust
Company, 200 University Avenue, Suite 400, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 4H1.

DATED at Toronto, Ontario this 14™ day of March, 2008.

By order of the Board of Directors,

“Anastasia Chodarcewicz”

Anastasia Chodarcewicz

Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Secretary




SIRIT INC.
'MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR
‘Solicitation of Proxies

This management information circular is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies
by the management of Sirit Inc. (the “Company”) for use at the annual meeting of shareholders
(the “Meeting”) of the Company to be held at the time and place and for the purposes set forth in
the accompanying Notice of Meeting. References in this management information circular to the
Meeting include any adjournment or adjournments thereof. It is expected that the solicitation will be
primarily by mail, e-mail, facsimile or other electronic communication, however, proxies may also be
solicited personally by regular employees of the Company and the Company may use the services of an
outside proxy solicitation agency to solicit proxies. Any costs of solicitation will be bome by the
Company.

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”} has fixed the close of business on March 20, 2008
as the record date, being the date for the determination of the registered holders of securities entitled to
receive notice of the Meeting. Duly completed and executed proxies must be received by the Company's
transfer agent at the address indicated on the enclosed envelope no later than 3:30 p.m. (Toronto time)
on April 22, 2008, or no later than 48 hours (excludlng Saturdays and holidays) before the time of any
adjourned Meeting.

Unless otherwise stated, the' information contained in this management information circular is as of March
14, 2007. All dollar amounts referenced herein, unless otherwise indicated, are expressed in Canadian
dollars and United States dollars are referred to as “US$".

Appointment and Revocation of Proxies

The persons named in the enclosed form of proxy are officers and/or directors of the Company. A
shareholder desiring to appoint some other person, who need not be a shareholder, to represent
him at the Meeting, may do so by inserting such person’s name in the blank space provided in the
enclosed form of proxy or by completing another proper form of proxy and, in either case,
depositing the completed and executed form of proxy at the office of the Company’s transfer
-agent indicated on the enclosed envelope noTater than 3:30 p.m. (Toronto time) on April 22, 2008,
or no later than 48 hours {excluding Saturdays and holidays) before the time of any adjourned
Meeting.

A shareholder forwarding the enclosed form of proxy may indicate the manner in which the appointee is
to vote with respect to any specific item by checking the appropriate space. If the shareholder giving the
form of proxy wishes to confer a discretionary authority with respect to any item of business, then the
space opposite the item is to be left blank. The shares represented by the form of proxy submitted by a
shareholder will be voted or withheld from votlng in accordance with the dlrectlons if any, given in the
form of proxy. . .

A proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by an instrument in writing executed by a
shareholder or by a shareholder’s attorney authorized in writing {or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by
a duly authorized officer or attorney) and deposited either at the Company's head office address, Sirit
Inc., 372 Bay Street, Suite 1100, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 2W8 or with the Company's transfer agent
Equity Transfer & Trust Company, 200 University Avenue, Suite 400, Toronto, Ontario, MSH 4H1 at any
time up fo and including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or with the Chairman of
the Meeting on the day of the Meeting or in any other manner permitted by law.

-z,




Exercise of Discretion by Proxies

The persons named in ihe enclosed form of proxy will vote the shares in respect of which they ar2
appointed in accordance with the direction of the shareholders appointing them. In the absence of such
direction, such shares will be voted in favour of the passing of all the resolutions described
below. The enclosed form of proxy confers discretionary authority upon the persons named
therein with respect to amendments or variations to matters identified in the Notice of Meeting
and with respect to other matters which may properly come before the Meeting. At the time of
printing of this management information circular, management knows of no such amendments, variations
or other matters-to come before the Meeting. However, if any other matters which are not now known to
management should properly come before the Meeting, the form of proxy will be voted on such matters ia
accordance with the best judgment of the named proxies.

Voting by Non-Registered Shareholders

Only registered shareholders of the Company or the persons they appoint as their proxies are permitted
to vote at the Meeting. . . .

Most shareholders of the Company are “non-registered” shareholders (“Non-Registered Shareholders”)
because the shares they own are not registered in their own names but are instead registered in the
name of the brokerage firm, bank or trust company through which they purchased their shares. Shares
beneficially owned by a Non-Registered Shareholder are registered either: (i) in the name of an
intermediary (an “Intermediary”) that the Non-Registered Shareholder deals with in respect of the shares
of the Company (Intermediaries include, among others, banks, trust companies, securities dealers or
brokers and trustees or administrators of self-administered RRSPs, RRIFs, RESPs and similar plans); cr
(i) in the name of a clearing agency (such as The Canadian Depository for Securities Limited). of which
the Intermediary is a participant.

As the Company generally does not have access to the names of the Non-Registered Shareholders and
in accordance with applicable securities law requirements, the- Company will have distributed copies of
the Notice of Meeting, this management information circular, the form of proxy and the supplemental
mailing list request form (collectively, the “Meeting Materials”) to the clearing agencies and Intermediaries
for distribution to Non-Registered Shareholders.

Intermediaries are required to forward the Meeting Materials to Non-Registered Shareholders unless a
Non-Registered Shareholder has waived the right to receive them. Intermediaries often use service
companies to forward the Meeting Materials to Non-Registered Shareholders. Generally, Non-Registered
Shareholders who have not waived the right to receive Meeting Materials will either:

(i) be given a voting instruction form which is not signed by the Intermediary and which, when
properly completed and signed by the Non-Registered Shareholder and returned to the
Intermediary or its service company, will constitute voting instructions (often called a *voting
-instruction form”) which the Intermediary must follow. Typically, the voting instruction form waill
consist of a one page pre-printed form. Sometimes, instead of the one page pre-printed form, the
voting instruction form will consist of a regular printed proxy form accompanied by a page of
instructions which contains a removable label with a bar-code and other information. In order for
the form of proxy to validly constitute a voting instruction form, the Non-Registered- Shareholder
must remove the label from the instructions and affix it to the form of proxy, properly complete
and sign the form of proxy and submit it to the Intermediary or its service company in accordance
with the instructions of the Intermediary or its service company; or

i) be given a form of proxy which has already been signed by the Intermedlary {typically by a
facsimile, stamped signature), which is restricted as to the number of shares beneficially owned
by the Non-Registered Sharehalder but which is otherwise not completed by the Intermediary.
Because the Intermediary has already signed the form of proxy, this form of proxy is not required
to be signed by the Non-Registered Shareholder when submitting the form of proxy. In this case,

Sirit Inc.
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the Non-Registered Shareholder who wishes to submit @ proxy.should propefly complete the form
of proxy and deposit it with the Company, clo Equlty Transfer & Trust Company, Suite 400,
200 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5H 4H1.

"In either case, the purpose of these procedures is to permit Non-Registered Shareholders to direct the
voting of the shares of the Company they beneficially own. Should a Non-Registered Shareholder who
receives one of the above forms wish to vote at the Meeting in person (or have another person attend and
vote on behalf of the Non-Registered Shareholder at the Meeting), the Non-Registered Shareholder
should strike out the persons named in the form of proxy and insert the Non-Registered Shareholder or
such other person’s name in the blank space provided. In either case, Non-Registered Shareholders
should carefully follow the instructions of their Intermediary, including those regarding when and
where the form of proxy or voting instruction form is to be delivered.

A Non-Registered Shareholder may revoke a voting instruction form or a waiver of the right tc receive
Meeting Materials and to vote which has been given to an Intermediary at any time by written notice to
‘the Intermediary provided that an Iritermediary is not required to act on a revocation of a voting instruction
form or of a waiver of the right to receive Meeting Materials and to vote which is not received by the
Intermediary at least seven (7} days prior to the Meeting.

Voting Securities

As of the date hereof, 145,703,308 common shares (the “Common Shares”) in the capital of the
Company are issued and outstanding. Each Common Share entitles the holder thereof to one vote on all
matters to be acted upon at the Meeting. The record date for the determination of shareholders entitled
to receive notice of the Meeting has been fixed at March 20, 2008.

In accordance with the provisions of the Business Corporations Act (Yukon Territory) (the “YBCA”), the
Company-will prepare a list of holders of Common Shares as of such record date. Each holder of
Common Shares named in the list will be entitled to vote the shares shown opposite his or her name on
the list at the Meeting, except to the extent that (a) the shareholder has transferred any of his or her
shares after the record date, and (b) the transferee of those shares produces properly endorsed share
certificates or otherwise establishes that he or she owns such shares and demands not later than ten
days prior to the Meeting that his or her name be included in the list before the Meeting, in which case the
transferee is entitled to vote his or her shares at the Meeting. All such holders of record of Common
Shares are entitled either to attend and vote thereat in person the Common Shares held by them or,
provided a completed and executed form of proxy shall have been delivered to the Company's transfer
agent within the time specified in the attached Notice of Meeting, to attend and vote thereat by proxy the
Common Shares held by them.

Principal Shareholdérs

To the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of the Company, as of the date hereof, the only
person or company who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, or exercises control or direction over,
voting securities of the Company carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to the voting
securities of the Company is as follows:

Number of Percentage of

Name , __Common Shares Outstanding Common Shares
J.L. Albright lll Venture Fund 27,685,068 ' 19%
Sirit Inc.
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Statement of Executive Compensation

The following table provndes information for the three most recently comp|eted financial years ended
December 31 regarding compensation paid to or earned by the Company's President and Chief
Executive Officer, the Company’s Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary and the Company’s

three most highly .compensated executive officers other than the President and Chief Executive Officer
and Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary (the “Named Executive Officers”).

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Annual Compensation Compensation
Other Annual | Securities Under All Other
Name and Principal Salary’ Bonus Compensation | Options Granted | Compensation

Position Year ($) % ($) 1T - w ($)
Norbert Dawalibi 2007 | 380,000 43,000 Nil 200,000 Nil
President and Chief 2006 | 380,000 171,000 Nil 340,000 Nit
Executive Officer 2005 | 2236150 Nil 25,000 1,500,000 Nit
Anastasia Chodarcewicz 2007 | 170,0009 23,000 Nil 100,000 Nil
Chief Financial Officer and | 2006 | 170,0009 95,000 Nil 140,000 Nil
Corporate Secretary 2005 | 165,000 Nil 4,985 Nil Nl
Bruce Roesner 2007 | 189,360% 22,000 Nil - 100,000 Nil
Chief Technology Officer | 2006 Nil - - Nil 145,512 - 210,000 Nil
Sirit Technologies Inc.
Donald Bergeron 2007 | 177,408 21,000 9,677 100,000
Vice President Operations | 2006 | 181,440% 39,690 10,206 140,000 Nil
Sirit Technologies Inc. 2005 | 150,144 36,342 10,903 Nil Nil
John Freund 2007 | 155,000 25,000 9,000 100,000
Vice President AVI 2006 | 145,0009 60,000 9,000 140,000 Nil
Sirit Technologies Inc. 2005 | 140,000% Nil 9,000 Nit "+ Nil
William W. Staudt 2007 Nil Nil 161,280 Nil Nil
Former President and 2006 Nil Nil - 170,100® -Nil- Nil
Chief Executive Officer 2005 | 328,476® Nil Nil Nil Nil

(1) Mr, Dawalibi was appointed President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company on June 1, 2005 at an annual salary of
$380,000. On June 1, 2005, Mr. Dawalibi became an eligible member of the Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan. Refer
to "Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibililies and Employment Confracts™ for further details. Other annual

compensation in 2005 relates to consulting services prior to the date Mr. Dawalibi became President and CEO.

{2) These monies were paid to Ms. Chodarcewicz at a rate of $165,000 from May 1, 2004 to February 6, 2006 and at a ratz of
$170,000 per annum thereafter. Refer to “Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts' for
further details. Other annual compensation consists of a car allowance.

(3) Mr. Bruce Roesner joined the Company as a consuitant from May 15, 2006 through December 31, 2006 at a monthly consuiting
fee of US$18,000. Effective January 1, 2007 Mr. Roesner become Vice President Engineering and Chief Technology Officer of
Sirit Technologies Ing, at an annual salary of US$180,000. Refer to “Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and
Employment Contracts” for further details.
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These monies were paid to Mr. Bergeron in equivalent US dollars at a rate US$135,000 per annum from January 1, 2005 to June
13, 2008, at a rate of US$160,000, from June 13, 2005 to February 6, 2006 and at a rate of US$165,000 thereafter. Refer to
“Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Emptoyment Contracts” for further details. Other annual
compensation consists of a car allowance.

These monies were paid to Mr. Freund at a rate of $140,000 per annum, from February 6, 2006 at a rate of $145,000 per annum
and since February-6, 2007 at a rate of $155,000. Refer to "Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and
Employment Contracts” for further details. Other annual compensation consists of a car allowance.

These monies were paid to Mr. Staudt in equivalent US dollars at a rate of US$300,000 per annum for 2004 and through to May
31, 2005 when Mr. Staudt retired from the Company. On May 31, 2005, Mr. Staudt was granted a retirement allowance equivalent
to 18 months of his then current base salary of US$300,000 plus benefits to be paid in three equal instalments on June 1, 2005,
January 1, 2006 and January 1, 2007. On May 31, 2005, all of Mr. Staudt's options immediately vested and Mr. Staudt ceased to
be a participating member of the Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan.

Stock Options

The following table provides details of stock optiohs granted to the Named Executive Officers during the
financial year ended December 31, 2007 pursuant to the Company’s stock option plan (the “Plan”).

Option Grants During the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2007

Market Value of
Securities
Securities % of Total Underlying
Under Options Granted | Exercise or | Options on the
Options to Employees in | Base Price Date of Grant )
Name Granted (#) " | Financial Year ® | ($/Security) ($/Security) Expiration Date
Norbert Dawalibi 200,000 9% $0.29 $0.29 May 17, 2014
Anastasia 100,000 5% - $0.29 $0.29 May 17, 2014
Chodarcewicz
Bruce Roesner 100,000 5% $0.29 $0.29 May 17, 2014
Donald 100,000 5% $0.29 $0.29 May 17, 2014
Bergeron
| John Freund 100,000 5% $0.29 $0.29 May 17, 2014

(1) The class of.securities underlying all stock options is Common Shares.
{2) Based on the total humber of options granted to employees of the Company and its subsidiaries pursuant to the Stock Option
Plan during the financial year ended December 31, 2007 of 2,125,334,

The following table provides details regarding stock options exercised by the Named Executive Officers
during the financial year ended December 31, 2007 and year-end option values.
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Aggregated Option Exercises During the Financial Year Ended December 31, 2007
and Year-End Option Values

Value of Unexercised in-the-
Unexercised Options at money Options at Decembt-
December 31, 2007 : 31, 2007
Securities Aggregate
Acquired on Value
Exercise Realized Exercisable | Unexercisable | Exercisable | Unexercisab’e
Name # ($) {#) (#) $) {$

Norbert Dawalibi Nil Nil 1,113,333 926,667 4,200 8,400
Anastasia
Chedarcewicz 30,000 3,900 - 216,666° | 193,334 ‘ 1,400 2,800
Bruce Roesner Nil Nil 70,000 240,000 4900 9,800
Donald Bergeron 23,067 3,231 216,666 193,334 1,400 2,800
John Freund 52,305 7,323 136,666 193,334 1.400 2,800

(1} Calculated using the closing price of the Common Shares on the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX") on December 31, 2007
of $0.27 less the exercise price of in-the-money stock options. These options have not been exercised and actual gains, if any,
on exercise will depend on the value of the Common Shares on the date of exercise.

Termination of Employment, Change in Responsibilities and Employment Contracts

Employment Agreements

Pursuant to an employment agreement (the “Dawalibi Employment Agreement”) dated May 26, 200E
between the Company and Norbert Dawalibi, President and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, |f
the Company wishes to terminate the Dawalibi Employment Agreement other than for cause, the
Company is required to pay on the termination date, a lump sum amount equal to the current base salary,
presently $380,000, plus benefits for a twelve month period from the date of notice plus an additionz|
month for each complete year of service after June 1, 2005 to a maximum of 24 months and a sum
equivalent to a 50% bonus pro-rated for the percentage of the year worked as of the date of termination.
Any granted but unvested options will immediately vest and the exercise period will be one year from date
of termination.

Pursuant to an employment agreement (the “Chodarcewicz Employment Agreement”) dated January 30,
2003, as amended October 7, 2003 and June 9, 2006, between the Company and Anastasia
Chodarcewicz, Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary of the Company, if the Company wishes
to terminate the Chodarcewicz Employment Agreement other than for cause, the Company is required to
pay a lump sum amount equal to six months of the current base salary, presently $170,000 per annum
plus continuation of medical benefits for a period of up to six months. In the event of a change of contrct
of the Company, as defined in the Chodarcewicz Employment Agreement, the Company is required to
pay a lump sum amount of six months remuneration, with medical benefits continuation for up to six
months, should Ms. Chodarcewicz’s employment not be continued following a change of control.
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Each of Mr. Roesner, Mr. Bergeron and Mr. Freund has an employment agreement-with the Company.
The key terms of the agreements state that if the Company wishes to terminate any of Mr. Roesner,
Mr. Bergeron or Mr. Freund other than for cause, the Company is required to pay the then current base
salary for a period of six months.

Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan

On January 14, 2005, the Board approved a Key Employee Incentive Compensation Plan (the “Ptan”)
which provides for up to 10 key employee positions of the Company, including the Named Executive
Officers, to be eligible to share in an incentive payment equal to 5% of the value of the gross aggregate
proceeds paid pursuant to and upon a Sale Transaction. A Sale Transaction is defined under the Plan as
(a) any sale or exchange of the Common Shares (other than from the Company's treasury), or any
merger, take-over bid, exchange offer, amalgamation, business combination or similar transaction which,
in any such case, results in the holders of the Common Shares immediately before the consummation of
such transaction hotding less than 50.1% of the Common Shares or securities of any successor entity
outstanding immediately following the consummation of the transaction; or (b) the sale, lease, exchange
or other disposition, in a-single transaction or a series of related transactions, of all or substantially all of
the assets, rights or properties of the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis to
any other person or entity, save and except where it involves a disposition to a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company in the course of a reorganization of the assets of the Company and its subsidiaries.

The purpose of the Plan is to (a) create an environment whereby key employees have an incentive to
work together as a team and in the best interests of the Company; (b) strengthen the alignment of
interests between key employees and shareholders of the Company in order to obtain the maximum
realizable value of the Company upon the completion of a Sale Transaction; and (¢) advance the
- interests of the Company through the motivation, attraction and retention of key employees, it being
"generally recognized that such a plan will aid in attracting, retaining and encouraging the commitment
and performance of key employees.

Except as disclosed above, there are no compensatory plans or arrangements with respect to the Named
Executive Officers resulting from the resignation, retirement or other termination of employment or from a
change of control of the Company or a change in the Named Executive Officers’ responsibilities following
a change of control.

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

The following table provides details of compensation plans under which equity securities of the Company
. are authorized forissuance as of the financial year ended December 31, 2007.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

Number of securities to be | Weighted-average price | Number of securities remaining
issued upon exercise of of outstanding options, available for future issuance
outstanding optlons warrants and rights under equity compensation
Plan Category warrants and rlghts ! plans
Equity compensation
plans approved by 7,707,683 . $0.48 14,073,624
securityholders )
Equity compensation
plans not approved : ) Nil N/A N/A
by securityholders )
Total 7,707,683 $0.48 14,073,624

(1) Represents the number of Common Shares reserved for issuance upon exercise of outstanding options.
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Security Based Compensation Arrangements
Stock Option Plan for Key Persons of Sirit Inc.

The Company maintains a stock option plan (the “Plan”) for directors (that have met the minimurn
Board attendance requirement), officers, employees, consultants, and other persons who providz
services to the Company who are, in the judgement of the Board, of special value to the Company cr
in a position to contribute to the success of the Company (collectively, “Key Persons”} of Sirit Inc. (tha
“Plan™). The Plan is designed as a form of long-term incentive to match the interests of the
shareholders with those of the employees and to promote growth of the business by encouraging
eligible participants to have equity participation in the Company through the acquisition of Common
Shares. The Plan was last amended and approved by the shareholders on April 26, 2007. The
aggregate maximum number of shares that are reserved for issuance under the Plan is 21,750,000,
representing approximately 15% of the Company's issued and outstanding Common Shares at December
31, 2007. Options to purchase an aggregate of 7,677,683 Common Shares, representing approximately
5.3% of the Company's issued and outstanding Common Shares; were outstanding at December 31,
2007 under the Plan. During the year ended December 31, 2007, nil Common Shares were issued upon
exercise of options granted under the Plan. This leaves 14,072,317 Common Shares, representing
approximately 9.7% of the Company s issued and outstandmg Common Shares, available for issuance
under the Plan. .

The Plan provides that the maximum number of Common Shares which may be reserved for issuance to
any one person pursuant to stock options granted under the Plan or any other security based
compensation arrangement may not exceed 5% of the Common Shares outstanding at the time of grant
(on a non-diluted basis). In addition, the maximum number of Common Shares which may be reserved
for issuance to insiders (and their associates and affifiates) pursuant to stock options granted under the
Plan and any other security based compensation arrangement may not exceed 10% of the Common
Shares outstanding at the time of grant (on a non-diluted basis). In addition, the maximum number of
Common Shares issued to insiders (and their associates and affiliates) within any one year period under
the Plan and any other security based compensation arrangement shall not exceed 10% of the Common
Shares outstanding at the time of the grant (on a non-diluted basis). Any Common Shares subject to a
stock option which for any reason are cancelled or terminated without having been exercised are again
available for grant under the Plan.

The Board reserves the right to amend, suspend or terminate the Flan at any time if and when it is
advisable in the absolute discretion of the Board. The Board reserves the right to make amendments
or modifications (including fundamental changes) to the Plan or to terminate the Plan, withous
shareholder approval subject to any necessary approvals by the Toronto Stock Exchange or any other
applicable securities regulatory authority. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the Board of
Directors reserves the right, without shareholder approval, to:

. make amendments of a clerical nature that clarify Ianguage or understanding of the terms of the:
Plan;

. amend the terms of options granted to non-insiders;

. amend the vesting provisions of an option or the Plan;

. amend the provisions with respect to termination of employment and death of an optionee,
including but not limited to the length of time to exercise an option upon termination of
employment or death;

. add a cashless exercise feature, payable in cash or securities, which provides for a full deduction

of the number of underlying securities from the Plan reserve;
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. amend'the definition of “Key Persons” (or categories of persons thét‘rare; eligible to receive
' options under the Plan); . ' ' Lo

. change the method of calculating a minimum exercise price per Common Share for options under
the Plan; and _
. adjust accordingly the number of Common Shares available under the Plan, the Common Shares

subject to any option and the exercise price of the common shares subject to options as a result
of a reorganization, recapitalization, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares, merger,
amalgamation, consolidation, rights offering or other change in the corporate structure of the
Company (each a “Corporate Change”). - :

However, any amendment or maodification to the provisions of the Plan or any options granted under the
Plian, which would: :

e . increase the maximum number of-Common Shares reserved for |ssuance under the Plan, other
than as a result of a Corporate Change;

] add any form of financial assistarice to optionees; or
. reduce the exercise price or extend the term of an option issued to an insider (or their associates
or affiliates),

shall require approval by a majority of the votes cast by shareholders at a duly called meeting of
. shareholders of the Company.

Options granted under the Plan have an exercise price of not less than the closing price of the Cormmon
Shares on the TSX on the trading day immediately preceding the date on which the options are granted.
The Plan does not set out vesting provisions and options will vest according to the terms set out in the
respective oplion agreements. All options granted under the Plan are non-transferable except in the event
of the death of the optionee. The Plan does not provide any form of financial assistance to optionees.

Each option (unless sooner terminated) shall expire on the later of: (i) a fixed term not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant of the option (“Fixed Term™); and (ii} 10 business days following the lifting of a
Company self-imposed blackout period {"Blackout Period"), provided that: (A) the Blackout Period applies
to the optionee; and (B) the Fixed Term expires during the Blackout Period or within 10 business days
following the lifting of the Blackout Period. . .

Options granted under the Plan terminate: (i) within a period of 30 days following an optionee ceasing to
be a Key Person, unless otherwise amended by the Board; (ii) in the case of director optionees, within a
period of 12 months following their ceasing to be a Key Person; and (iii) within a period of 12 months
following the death of an optlonee

The Plan grants the Board the rlght if there is a take-over bid, issuer b|d or gomg private transaction with
respect to Company's Common Shares, to permit all vested and non-vested options outstanding to
become immediately exercisable in order to permit the Commaon Shares issuable under such options to
- be tendered {0 such transactions.

Sinit Transaction Opfions
In connection with the abquiéition of Sirit Technologies Inc. on November 1, 2002 (the “Sirit

Transaction”), the shareholders approved the one-time listing of an additional 1,682,084 Common
Shares generally on the same terms and conditions as the Plan noted above.
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Options to purchase an aggregate of 30,000 Common Shares, representing less than .01% of the
Company's issued and outstanding Common Shares remaining outstanding pursuant to the Sirit
Transaction. During the year ended December 31, 2007, 167,027 Common Shares were issued upon
exercise of options granted and 30,770 options expired pursuant to the Sirit Transaction. This leaves
1,307 Common Shares, representing less than .01% of the Company'’s issued and outstanding Common
Shares, available for issuance pursuant to the Sirit Transaction.

Composition, Responsibilities and Report of the Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee is composed of three independent directors who are neither officers ncr
employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and who meet periodically without managemert
present. The Compensation Committee is responsible for establishing.the compensation of the directors,
the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer as well as reviewing and approving the overall
compensation strategy for the Company as presented by the Chief Executive Officer. The process by
which director compensation and executive compensation is determined is by understanding market
available data for similar positions, reviewing the mix of cash and non-cash compensation, comparison
analysis with similar sized companies in similar industries and obtammg the assistance_ of external
consultants when necessary.

The Compensation Committee follows a mandate it has established for addressing its approach to
compensation practices. At December 31, 2007, the members of the Compensation Committee were:

Cal Haverstock (Chairman})
Howard Johnson
Richard I. Segal

On April 26, 2007, Mr. Cal Haverstock replaced Mr. Suresh Kumar as Chairman of the Compensation
Commiitee.

Report on Executive Compensation

The Compensation Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board compensation for the
President and Chief Executive Officer as well as the Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary. In
addition, the Compensation Committee reviews the compensation policies and practices and defines the
executive compensation philosophy of the Company and reports its results to the Board. The total
compensation paid to the executive management is designed to encourage their full and enthusiastic
commitment to the success of the Company with the goal of increasing shareholder value. Executive
compensation includes base salary and incentives and is based on a combination of factors, including
historical precedent. Stock options may also be granted under the terms of the Plan.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation. The Chairman of the Compensation Committee presents the
Committee's recommendations to the Board with respect to the compensation of the President and Chief
Executive Officer-of the Company. The Compensation Committee recommended a salary for the position
of President and Chief Executive Officer of $380,000 per annum. Total salary was determined based
upon comparable market and industry remuneration standards, risks and responsmilltles of the position,
and relevant past mdustry knowledge and experience.

The bonus structure is based upon the achievement of financial and operattonal targets weighted
towards financial targets and annual operational objectives. Financial targets include revenue, cash and
operating expense targets and operational targets include product development, husiness development,
customer relationships and internal management objectives. For the fiscal year ended December 31,
2007, the President and Chief Executive Officer was granted a bonus of $43,000.

During the financial year ended December 31, 2007, the President and CEO was also granted options to
purchase 200,000 Common Shares under the Plan. (see “Option Grants During the Financial Year Endec!
December 31, 2007" table above for further details). Options are granted on a periodic basis in relation to
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achievements during the fiscal year and are considered an imponani element in the overall compensation
package for the President and Chief Executive Officer. Of the total options issued to the President and
Ch[ef Executive Officer during 2007, 200,000 remain outstanding at December 31, 200'('.

The Compensation Committee's recommendation for the salary, bonus and other remuneration for the
President and Chief Executive Officer is approved by the Board.

Base Salaries and Bonus Payments. Base salaries for executive management team, including the
Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary, were established at an industry competitive level for
each job description and based on an equal weighting of quantitative and qualitative factors. These
factors include financial targets as well as personal objectives relative to job description and
responsibility, overall individual contribution to the Company’s growth; actual financial results compared to
budget and demonstrated commitment to the Company. For 2007, salaries for the executive
management team were increased between 0% and 8% of base salary.

For the financial year ended December 31, 2007 the executive management team, excluding the
President and Chief Executive Officer, was granted bonuses based on financial targets including revenue,
gross margin and operating expenses as well as demonstrated commitment and personal contribution to
the Company in accordance with overall Company strategy. Total bonus payments made to the
executive management team, excluding the President and Chief Executive Officer, were $127,000
relating to fiscal 2007.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, the executive management team, excluding the President
and CEO, was granted 600,000 options as compensation for setvices in accordance with the overall
strategy of the Company. Of the total options issued to the executive management team during 2007,
600,000 remain outstanding at December 31, 2007.

Options. The Plan is administered by the Board. The Plan is designed to give each holder of an option
an interest in preserving and maximizing shareholder value in the longer term, to enable the Company to
attract and retain individuals with experience and ability and to reward individuals for current and future
performance. The Compensation Committee will consider option grants when reviewing key employee
compensation packages. Any grant recommendations require approval by the Board. In determining the
number of options to be granted, the Compensation Committee gives consideration to an individual's
present and potential contribution to the success of the Company. See “Security Based Compensaﬂon
Arrangements” for details regarding the Plan,

Compensation of Directors

The Compensation Committee of the Board meets at least annually to review the adequacy and form of
directors’ compensation. This review includes changes to individual director’s risks and responsibilities,
changes in legal and reporting envuronments as well as comparisons to independent market information
regarding director's compensation. ~ Based on this review, the Board will update as necessary, the
adequacy and form of directors’ compensation.

Curing 2007, each independent, non-executive director of the Company was entitled to receive the
following:

« Annual retainer fee equivalent to US$12,000, paid quarterly in arrears for each director in place at
the end of the quarter,;
Additional US$4,000 per annum to the chair of the board, paid quarterly in arrears;

* Additional US$4,000 per annum to the chair of the audit committee, paid quarterly in arrears;

e Additional US$2,000 per annum to the remaining members of the audit committee, pa:d quarterly

©in arrears;

e Additional US$1,000 per annum to the chairs of the remaining committees, pald quarterly in
arrears; and
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» Additional 40,000 stock options per annum for each director upon election at each annual general
meeting. C

During the financial year ended December 31, 2007, an aggregate of $87,000 in directors’ fees were paid
and 340,000 options were granted under the Plan to six non-executive directors.

Other Arrangements
None of the directors of the Company were compensated in their capacity as a director by the Company
during the financial year ended December 31, 2007 pursuant to any other arrangement or in lieu of any
standard compensation arrangement.
The foregoing report has been submitted by:  Cal Haverstock (Chairman)

Howard Johnson

Richard |. Segal

Performance Graph ‘ B . SRR

The following graph compares the yearly percentage change in the cumulative total shareholder return for
$100 invested in Common Shares on December 31, 2002 against the cumulative total shareholder return
of the S&P/TSX Composite Index for the five most recently completed financial years of the Company,
assuming the reinvestment of all dividends.
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The dollar amounts indicated in the graph above and in the chart below are as of December 31 in éach of
the years 2002 through 2007.

2002 2003. 2004 - 2005 2006 2007
Sirit Inc. 100 380 1,033 246 123 177
S&P/TSX Composite Index 100 127 145 - 180 211 232
Statement of Corporate Governance Practices
Pursuant to National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices, the Company i3
required to disclose on an annual basis its approach to corporate govemnance. The Company and the

Board recognize the importance of corporate governance to the effective management of the Company
and to the protection of its employees and shareholders. The Company’s approach to significant issues
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of corporate governance is designed with a view to ensuring that the business and affairs of the Company
.are effectively managed so as to enhance. shareholder value The Governance and Nominating
Committee has a mandate in place. - : - .

The Company’s corporate governance practices -have been and continue to be in compliance with
applicable Canadian requirements. The Company continues to monitor developments in Canada and the
United States with a view to further revising its governance policies and practices, as appropriate.

. The Company's disclosure addressing its approach to corporate governance practices is attached as
Schedule “A” to this management information circular. This disclosure statement, including Schedule “A”,
has been approved by the Board. :

indebtedness of Directors and Executive Officers

None of the Company’s directors, executive officers or employees, or former directors, executive officers
or employees, nor any associate of such individuals, is as at the date hereof, or has been, during the
financial year ended December 31, 2007, indebted to the Company or any of its subsidiaries in
connection with a purchase of securities or otherwise. In addition, no indebtedness of these individuals to
another entity has been the subject of a guarantee, support agreement, letter of credit or similar
arrangement or understanding of the Company-or any of its subsidiaries.

Dlrectors and and Officers’ Llabllltv Insurance

The Company has purchased for the benet’ t of the Company, its subsidiaries and their directors and
officers, insurance against liability incurred by the directors or officers in their capacity as directors or
officers of the'Company or any subsidiary. The following are particulars of such insurance:

“(a) the total amount of insurance is U$$10,000,000 and, subject to the deductible portion referred to
below, up to the full face amount of the policy is payable regardless of the number of directors
and officers involved;

(b) the annua! premium for the financial year ended December 31, 2007 was approximately
$131,000. . The policy does not specify that a part of the premlum is pald in respect of either
directors as a group or officers as a group; and

(c) the policy provides for deductibles as follows:

(i} -- with respectto individual directors and officers there is no deductible appl:cab!e and
(ii) with respect to Company indemnification and employment practices liability there is a
deductible of US$100,000 per claim.

interest of Informed Persons in Material Transactions

Since the commencement of the Company's last completed financial year, no informed person ‘of the
Company, nominee for election as a director of the Company, or any associate or affiliate of an informed
person or nominee, has ‘or had any material interest, direct or-indirect, in any transaction or any proposed
transaction which has matenally affected or will matenally affect the Company or any of its subsidiaries.

Additional Information

Information regarding the Company’s Audit Committee, comprised of three independent directors, in
accordance with Multilateral Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees, is contained in the Company's annual
information form (the “AlF”) for the year ended December 31, 2007 under the heading “Audit Committee”.
A copy of the Audit Committee Charter is attached to the AIF as Schedule “A". The AIF will be available
on SEDAR at www.sedar.com prior to March 31, 2008,

Additional information relating to the Company can be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. Financial
information is provided in the Company's audited consolidated financial statements and management's
discussion and analysis for the financial year ended December 31, 2007 which are included in the annual
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‘report. These can also be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com. Shareholders may -also contact
- Anastasia Chodarcewicz, Chief Financial Officer. of the Company by phone at (416) 367 1897 or by e-
mail at achodarcewicz@sirit.com to request copies of these documents. -

Interest of Certain Persons in Matters to be Acted Upon
No (a) director or executive officer of the Company who has held such position at any time since January
1, 2007; (b) proposed nominee for election as a director of the Company; or (c) associate or affiliate of a
person in (a) or (b) has any material interest, direct or’indirect, by way of beneficial ownership of
'securities or otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon at the Meeting, other than the election of directors
or the appointment of auditors.

PARTICULARS OF MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON

1. Election of Directors

The term of office of each of the present directors expires at the Meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Incorporation provide that the ‘Board consist of a minimum of three and a maximum of 15 directors. The
Board currently consists of six directors. .One new nominee will 'stand for election as a director at the
Meeting. At the Meeting, the seven persons named hereunder will be proposed for election as directors
of the Company (the “Nominees”). Unless authority to do so is withheld, the persons named in_the
accompanying form of proxy intend to vote for the election of the Nominees. Management dces
not contemplate that any of the Nominees will be unable to serve as a director, but if that should occur for
any reason prior to the Meeting, it is intended that discretionary authority shall be exercised by the
persons named in the accompanying form of proxy to vote the form of proxy for the eleclion of any other
person or persons in place of any Nominee or Nominees unable to serve. Each director elected wili hold
office until the close of the first annual meeting of shareholders .of the Company following his or her
election or until his or her successor is duly elected or appointed unless his or her office is earller vacated
in accordance with the by-laws of the Company or with the prov:snons of the YBCA.

The following table sets. forth the name, province/state and country of residence, principal occupation,
date they first became a director of the Company -and number of shares beneficially owned by each
Nominee. The statement as to the Common Shares beneficially owned, directly or indirectly, or over
which control or direction is exercised by thé Nominees is in each instance based upon information
furnished by the Nominee concerned and is as at March 14, 2008.

Number of Common
. Shares Beneficially

Name, o . ) Owned, Directly or
Province/State and : : Date First Became Indirectly, or Over
Country . . "3 . aDirector Which Control or
of Residence <Principal Occupation of the Company Direction is Exercised
Norbert Dawalibi President and Chief April 21, 2005 _ . 1,571,500 _
Ontario, Canada Executive Officer of
: . . Sirit Inc.
Cal-Haverstock - - President, Haverstock . September 28, 2005 - .- 100.-000
Ontario, Canada (@@ Associates Inc. . . - -
Howard Johnson Partner, Campbell  April 20, 2006 50,000
Ontario, Canada @ Valuation Partners S
Limited .
Sirit Inc.
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~Number of Common
Shares Beneficially

Name, _ L ' . Owned, Directly or
Province/State and ) ‘ Date First Became Indirectly, or Over
Country 7 ‘ ) a Director . Which Control or
of Residence - Principal Occupation. of the Company  Direction is Exercised
B George C. McKinnis Founding andﬁ ' December 20, 2001 -270,000

New York, United States™” Managing Partner,
McKinnis Law Offices

of New York City
Robert G. Beauchemin President and Chief April 26, 2007 50,000
Ontario, Canada ¢ Executive Officer, RGB

Global Management

Consultlng

" Richard I. Segal @ 'Partner J. L Albright  November 24, 2003 27,685,068 %

Ontario, Canada Venture Partners :
Barry D. Clark Princip.al, B.D. Clark New Nominee ) -
Ontario, Canada and Asscciates, Inc. :

(1)  Member of the Company’s Audit Committee.

{2)  Member of the Company’s Compensation Committee.

(3)  Member of the Company's Goevermnance and Nominating Committee

(4y  Member of the Company's Investment Committee.

(5) . Mr. Segal is the nominee of the Company’'s significant shareholder, J.L. Albright Il Venture Fund and as Partner of J.L.
. Albright Venture Partners has voling control over the Common Shares owned by J.L. Albright Ill Venture Fund.

The principal occqﬁations, businesses or employments of each of the Nominees within the past five years
are disclosed in the brief biographies set forth below.

Norbert Dawalibi — President, Chief Executive Officer and Director

From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Dawalibi was the Vice President, Marketing Strategy and then President and
Chief Executive Officer of Psion Teklogix. Psion Teklogix is a $300 million company and global provider
of solutions for mobile computing, wireless data collection and RFID. From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Dawalibi
was the President and Chief Executive Officer of Rhythms Canada. In addition to his deep understanding
of RFID technology and markets, Mr. Dawalibi is a proven and skilled manager with a solid background in
sales and marketing resulting from his 24 years at IBM where he progressed through increasingly
executive roles in Canada and the U.S., including managing marketlng for IBM Systems in the Americas
and leading sales operations generating in excess of $1 billion in revenue.

Cal Haverstock — Director )

Since 1996, Mr. Haverstock has been President of Haverstock Associates Inc., a consulting company
dedicated to turnarounds, executive coaching and Boards of Directors. Most recently, he was President
and CEO of Playdium Corporation which was sold in January of 2007. Mr. Haverstock is a member of
the Institute of Corporate Directors and has completed the Rotman School of Business Corporate
Directors Program.

Howard Johnson - Director )

Since 1996 Mr. Johnson has been a partner at Campbell Valuation Partners Limited, a firm specializing in
business and intangible asset valuations and damages quantification. Since 2005, Mr. Johnson has also
been President of Veracap Corporate Finance Limited, an affiliate of Campbell Valuation Partners
Limited, a firm which specializes in acquisitions and dlvestltures private equity financing, succession
planmng and shareholder value enhancement services.
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George C. McKinnis — Director

Since 2001, Mr. McKinnis has been a director of the Company since it was iTech Capital Corporation,
which after the acquisition of Sirit Technologies Inc. changed its name to Sirit Inc. Mr. McKinnis practices
law in New York State and Connecticut with offices in New York City, Bronxville, New York and Shelton,
Connecticut. Mr. McKinnis concentrates in representing high technology companies’ and has aided as a
principal and as a lawyer in multiple technology startups, two of which.are at present public companies.
Prior to returning to private practice, he was for fourteen years a member of the Legal Department of ITT
Corporation in New York City concentrating in the overseas aspects of the telecommunications industry
and was General Counsel of ITT's central telecommunications laboratories and chief Headquarters
counsel for its computer and software companies. Prior to ITT he was a Vice President and General
Counsel of Deltec Banking Corporation, an Anglo-American merchant bank in Nassau, Bahamas, and
was with Chadbourne & Parke in New York City. He has for 14 years been the Magistrate for his
community - Bronxville, NY. Mr. McKinnis has a BA from Oklahoma Umver5|ty and a JD from Michigan
Law School.

Richard I. Segal - Director

Prior to joining J.L. Albright Venture Partners in March 2001, Mr. Segal was President and Chiaf
Executive Officer of Microforum, from July 2000 to June 2001 and prior thereto, from 1997 to June 2000,
was President and Chief Operating Officer of Chapters Online Inc. Prior to joining Chapters Online Inc.,
Mr. Segal worked at Microsoft Corporation in Redmond, Washington from 1992 until 1996 with his most
recent position at the company being the Director of technical services for the Internet Customer Unit. Mr.
Segal is also the author of four books on Network Management and Windows software dévelopment. Mr.
Segal also serves as a director of B5 Media, Paymentus, MusiclP, PlanetEye and Truition Marketplace
Solutions.

Robert G. Beauchemin - Director

Since 2005, Mr. Beauchemin has been the Chief Executive at RGB Global Management Consultlng,
firm providing senior management advisory services to Boards of Directors, Presidents and Chief
Executive Officers.  Previously, Mr. Beauchemin was chief executive of Polyplan Technologies. (2002-
2005), a Manufacturing Process Management (MPM) software developer; CNC Global (2000-2002), a
North-American Information Technology contract consulting and staffing company; as well as
J.D. Edwards Canada (1999-2000} and.SAP Canada (1997-1998), both global leaders in Enterprise
Resource Planning (ERP) software. .

Barry Clark — New Nominee .

Barry D. Clark has been a principal of B.D. Clark and Associates Inc a Toronto based software and
services consulting company since 1993. Mr. Clark has extensive experience in the IT industry including
hardware, software, educational software, mergers and acquisitions and venture capital. A 30 year
career at IBM Canada included Canadian General Manager of the General Systems Division, Divisional
Vice President, Regicnal Vice President and Vice President of Software and Services. Since that time he
has been Vice President of Unisys Canada, Chairman of Iconix International (the former worldwide K-12
Education Division of Unisys) and President and COO of Tengtu International, a U.S. Nasdaq.based
public company that produced educational courseware in the Mandarin language for sale to China's K-12
Education Marketplace.

Cease Trade Orders 6r Bankrupicies

No Nominee is, or within the ten years prior to the date hereof has been, a director or executive officer of
any company (including the Company} that, while that person was acting in that, capacity, (i) was the
subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied the relevant ‘company access to any
exemption under securities legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive days; (i) was subject to
an event that resulted, after the director or executive officer ceased to be a director or executive officer, in
the company heing.the subject of a cease trade or similar order or an order that denied’ the relevart
company access to any exemption under securities legislation for a period of more than 30 consecutive
days; or (iii} within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a
proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any
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proceedings, arrangement or compromise with-creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee
appointed to hold its assetls.

2. Appointment of Auditors

Unless authority to do so is withheld, the persons named in the accompanying form of proxy intend to
vote for the appointment of Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of the Company
until the close of the next annual meeting of shareholders and to authorize the directors of the Company
to fix their remuneration. Deloitte & Touche LLP, Chartered Accountants, were first appointed as auditors
of the Company in March 2006 for the fiscal period commencing January 1, 2006.

Directors’ Approval
The contents of this managerﬁent information circular and the seﬁding thereof to each shareholder

entitled to receive notice of the Meeting, to each director of the Company, to the auditors of the Company,
and to the appropriate governmental agencies, have been approved by the Board.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“Anastasia Chodarcewicz"

Anastasia Chodarcewicz
Chief Financial Officer and
Corporate Secretary ..

Toronto, Ontario
March 14, 2008
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SCHEDULE “A”
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In accordance with the requirements of National Instrument 58-101 Disclosure of Corporate Govemance
Practices, the following is a description of the Company’s corporate governance practices.

Board of Directors Composition and Governance

The Board of Directors is constituted at all times of a majority of independent directors. For the year
ended December 31, 2007, the Board consisted of seven individuals. Mr. Suresh Kumar did not stand for
re-election to the Board at the annual and special meeting of shareholders held on April 26, 2007 ard
was replaced by Mr. Robert Beauchemin. The following six individuals are considered to be independer.t:
Cal Haverstock, Howard Johnscn, Robert G. Beauchemin, Art Mesher, George C. McKinnis and Richard
I. Segal. Mr. At Mesher was nominated by the directors as Chairman 6f the Board on April 26, 2007 {o
serve as Chairman until the next Annual General meeting. A director is considered to be independent if
he or she has no direct or indirect material relationship which could, in the view of the Board, reasonably
interfere with the exercise of a director's independent judgement. Norbert Dawalibi is the President and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company and is therefore not considered to be independent. The
Chairman of the Board is responsible for ensuring meetings are properly convened and legally
conducted, setting agendas and ensuring all issues are dealt with at the meetings, maintaining open
communications between the Chief Executive Officer and the Board as well as between Board members
as well as providing overall leadership to the Board including good corporate governance.

Any additional directorships held by the directors are included in the section entitled “Election of
Directors” in the management information circular to which this Schedule “A” is attached.

The Company has one significant security holder, J.L. Albright Ill Venture Fund (“JLA") which owns
27,685,068 (approximately 198%) common shares of the Company. A significant security holder is
defined as a security holder that owns or controls 10% or more of any class of an issuer's voting
securities or is able to affect materially the control of the issuer, whether alone or by acting in concert with
others. JLA has been represented by Richard |. Segal on the Board during fiscal 2007.

The Board holds at least six meetings annually which include the non-independent director and members
of management. At the end of each Board meeting, it is Board practice to excuse the non-independent
director and members of management while the remaining independent members continue the meeting
“in camera” where they are able to hold open and candid discussions. In addition, meetings of
independent Board members may be called at any time.

Board Meeting Attendance

During the year ended December 31, 2007, there were a total of @ Board meetings held by the directors
including the Annual General Meeting. The following table summarizes the number of meetings attended
out of the number of meetings held since each director's appointment.

Number of Meetings Attended out of

Director Number of Meetings Held While a Director
Norbert Dawalibi 9outof 9
Cal Haverstock 9outof 9
Howard Johnson 9outof &
Suresh Kumar " 2 out of 3
George C. McKinnis 9outof 9
Art Mesher Boutof9
Richard . Segal Soutof 9
Robert G. Beauchemin®® 6 out of 6

(1 Not re-elected as director at the annual meeting of shareholders held on April 26, 2007.




2 - Elected as director at the annual meeting of shareholders held on April 26, 2007. .

2. Mandate of the Board A

The Company's Board is governed by the standard of care set out in the Business Corporations Act
(Yukon) which requires that each director or officer act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best
interests of the Company and exercise the care, diligence and skill of a reasonably prudent person. The
Charter of the Company's Board follows at the end of this Schedule A.

3. Position Descriptions

The Chair of the Board is selected annually by the directors. Based on relevant industry or technical
knowledge, experience, educational background and ability to take on additional responsibility, the Chair
of each Committee of the Board is selected at least annually by the entire Board. The Board has not
prepared a formal position description for the Chair of the Board nor any Committee Chair position.

The Board and the Chief Executive Officer have formalized a position description for the Chief Executive
Officer position involving the definition of the limits to management's responsibilities. There are formal
corporate objectives set which the Chief Executive Officer is responsible for meeting as noted in the
section entitled “Report on Executive Compensation™ in the management information circular to which this
Schedule “A” is attached.

The directors expect management to operate the business of the Company under the supervision of the
directors, in accordance with the mandate referred to above, so as to maximize shareholder value and in
a manner which is consistent with public and émployee safety and the other objectives referred to in the
section entitled “Report on Executive Compensation” in the management information circular to which this
Schedule “A” is attached. The results of management activities are reviewed regularly by the Board.

4, Orientation and Continuing Education

New directors of the Company are generally seasoned.executives with extensive experience at senior
levels with other entities. Upon joining the Company, each new director is provided with detailed written
materials regarding the Company and its operations, including strategic planning documents, operating
budgets, internal policies and procedures, recent internal. business update presentations and internally
prepared Board reports in addition to publicly available information. The director also meets with
members. of the executive management team who provide a detailed description of their respective
backgrounds and ongoing responsibilities within the Company. The director will visit the primary
operating locations of the Company in order to meet staff and to obtain a personal perspective on the
overall operations. ‘

The Board does not provide formal continuing education for its directors. Regulatory and financial
updates are provided to each Board member as they occur. Directors are encouraged to attend
tradeshows, seminars or external presentations made by management to maintain current industry
knowledge. As well, having an actively practicing lawyer as well as a Chartered Accountant on the Board
provides direct access to all directors of updates and recent changes to laws or accounting
pronouncements through the knowledge of these individual directors.

5. Ethical Business Conduct

The Company has adopted a formal Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (*Code”) which applies to all
directors and employees. A copy of the Code is available to the Board through the Chief Executive
Officer or Chief Financial Officer and to all employees through both an e-mail copy when they join the
Company as well as placement on an internal policies database accessible by all employees. A copy of
the Code may alsc be accessed under the Company’s profile at www.sedar.com.
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The Board monitors compliance with the Code through enquiries of the Chief Executive Officer and Chiif
Financial Officer of the Company. In addition, ali employees are encouraged to report any illegal or
unethical behaviour in a timely manner. Individual directors are required to immediately notify the
remaining Board members of any transactions or agreements where the individual may have a materlal
interest.

There have not been any material change reports filed regarding any conduct of a director or executive
officer that constitutes a departure from the Code at any time during the year ended or since December
31, 2007.

6. Nomination of Directors

The search for new directors is undertaken by the members of the Governance and Nominating
Committee who understand the current and upcoming needs of the Board and the Company. Individuals
are sought who have a high level of skill and experience and if possible have prior directorship
experience. Prior to nomination, it is usual practice that a nominee meets with the Chief Executive Officer
and the Chief Financial Officer to allow them to gain a detailed understanding ‘of Board requirements and
needs of the Company. The recommendations of Governance and Nominating COmmlttee are then
taken to the Board for approval. All members of the Governance and Nominating Committee are
independent.

7. Compensation

See the section entitled “Composition and Responsibilities of the Compensation Committee” and the
“Report of the Compensation Committee™ in the management information circular to which this Scheduls
“A” is attached.

8. Other Standing Board Committees

In addition to the Audit Committee, the Compensation Committee and the Governance and Nominating
Committee as described in the text of the management information circular to which this Schedule “A” is
attached, the Board has instituted an Investment Committee.

The Investment Committee meets on an intermittent basis to consider potential transactions that may bz
outside of day to day activities, such as merger and acquisition activity, funding decisions, etc. to facilitatz
interim decision making as related to these transactions. Final decisions related to such activities require
full Board approval. The members of the Investment Committee are Richard I. Segal (Chair), Howard
Johnson and Robert G. Beauchemin. -

9. Assessments

The Governance and Nominating Committee is dedicated to ensuring that proper corperate governance
is in place, including at the director level. The Governance and Nominating Committee completes an
annual assessment process for its Board members. This process will include peer evaluatlons in the
form of questionnaires completed by each member
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CHARTER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SIRIT INC.

Purpose :
The primary function of the directors (individually a “Director” and collectively the “Board”) of Sirit Inc.

(including its subsidiary or subsidiaries, the “Corporation”) is to supervise the management of the
business and affairs of the Corporation. The Board has the responsibility to supervise the management of
the Corporation which is responsible for the day-to-day conduct of the business of the Corporation. The
fundamental objectives of the Board are to enhance and preserve long-term sharcholder value and to
ensure that the Corporation conducts business in an ethical and safe manner. In performing its functions,
the Board should also consider the legitimate interests that stakeholders, such as employees, customers
and communities, may have in the Corporation. In carrying out its stewardship responsibility, the Board,
through the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”), should set the standards of conduct for the Corporation.

Procedure and Organization

The Board operates by delegating certain- responsibilities and duties set out below to management or
committees of the Board and by reserving certain responsibilities and duties for the Board. The Board
retains the responsibility for managing its affairs, including selecting its chairman and constituting
committees of the Board. :

Responsibilities and Dutle
The principal responsibilities and duties of the Board fall into a number of categones that are summarized

below.

Legal Requirements
The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that applicable legal requirements are complied
with and documents and records have been properly prepared, approved and maintained. ..

The Board has the statutory responsibility to, among other things:

- supervise the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation;

- act honestly and in good faith with a view to the best interests of the Corporation;

- exercise the care, diligence and skill that reasonably prudent people would exercise in

comparable circumstances; and :

- act in accordance with the obligations contained in the Canada Business Corporations Act

(the “CBCA™), the Yukon for the Business Corporation Act and the regulations thereunder,
© = the articles and by-laws of the Corporation, applicable securities laws and policies and other

applicable legislation and regulations.

The Board has-the responsibility for considering the following matters, which in law may not be
delegated to management or to a committee of the Board:
- any submission to the shareholders of any question or matter requiring the. approval of the
sharcholders;
- the filling of a vacancy among the directors or in the office of auditor and the appointing or
removing of any of the CEQ, the chairman of the Board or the prestdent of the Corporation;
the issue of securities except as authorized by the Board;
- the declaration of dividends;
- the purchase, redemption or any other form of acquisition of shares issued by the
Corporation; ‘
- the payment of a commission to any person in consideration of the person purchasing or
agreeing to purchase shares of the Corporation from the Corporation or from any other person,
or procuring or agreeing to procure purchasers for any such shares except as authorized by the
Board;
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- the approval of a management proxy circular; L

- the approval of a take-over bid circular, directors’ circular or issuer bid circular;

- the approval of all acquisitions, amalgamations, divestitures and investments of the
Corporation; ’ '

- the approval of an amendment to the articles of the Corporation;

- the approval of annual financial statements of the Corporation;

- the adoption, amendment or repeal of any by-law of the Corporation, and

- the approval of all equity based compensation including but not limited to stock options plans
and grants thereunder.

Strategic Planning

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that there are suntable long-term goals and a strategic
planning process is in place in the Corporation. This includes participating with management directly
or through appropriate committees in developing and approving strategic plans by which the
Corporation sets long term goals and proposes strategies to achieve these goals (taking into account,
among other things, the opportunities and risks of the business of the Corporation).

Operational Management

The Board has the responsibility to review and approve annual financial budgets, capital expenditurcs
budgets, and significant expenditures outside of approved operational spending forecasts and
operational plans, providing directions to management regarding these matters. The Board has the
further responsibility to monitor the company performance against the approved budgets and
forecasts and to provide direction to management regarding corrective action to reestablish
performance against plans and forecasts.

Risk Management -

The Board has the responsibility to work with management to ensure that there are appropriate
systems and policies in place that effectively monitor and manage risks, with a view to the long-terrn
viability of the Corporation, and to provide directions to manage regarding those matters.

Appointment, Training and Monitoring Senior Management

The Board has the responsibility to:
- appoint the CEQ, and together with the CEQ, to develop a position descnptlon for the CEQ;
- with the advice of the Compensation Committee of the Board (the “Compensation Committee™),
develop corporate goals and objectives that the CEQ is responsible for meeting and to monitor and
assess the performance of the CEO in light of those corporate goals and objectives and to
determine the compensation of the CEQ,
- provide advice and counsel to the CEO in the execution of the duties of the CEO;
- develop, to the extent considered appropriate, position descriptions for the chairman of the Board
and the chairman of each committee of the Board;
- approve the appointment of all corporate officers;
- consider, and if considered appropriate, approve, the compensation recommendatlons of the
Compensation Committee;
- ensure that adequate provision has been made to train and develop management and members of
the Board and for the orderly succession of management, including the CEO; and
- in the event that for any reason, the Corporation loses the services of its CEO, the Board witl
elect a member of the Board to the temporary office of the acting CEO, to hold office until a new
full-time CEO is appointed.
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Ensuring Integrity of Management

The Board has the responsibility, to the extent consndered appropnate to satlsfy itself as.to the
integrity of the CEO and other officers of the Corporation and to ensure that the CEO and such other
officers are creating a culture of integrity throughout the Corporation.

Pohaes, Procedures and C omplmnce ) .
The Board is responsible for the oversight and review of the following matters and may rely on
management of the Corporation to the extent appropriate in connection with addressing such matters:
- the Corporation operates at all times within applicable laws and regulations and to appropriate
ethical and moral standards; '
- approving and monitoring compliance with 51gn1ﬁcant policies and procedures by which the
business of the Corporation is conducted;
- the Corporation sets appropriate environmental standards for its operations and operates in
material compliance with environmental laws and legislation;
- the Corporation has a high regard for the health and safety of its employees in the workplace and
has in place appropriate programs and policies relating thereto;
- developing the approach of the Corporation to corporate governance, including to the extent
appropriate developing a set of govemance prmc:lpals and guidelines that are specifically
applicable to the Corporation; and
- examining the corporate governance practices within the Corporatlon and altering such practices
when circumstances warrant.

Reporting and Communication -
The Board is responsible for the oversight and review of the followmg matters and may rely on
management of the Corporation to the extent appropriate in connection with addressing such matters:
- the Corporation has in place policies and programs to enable the Corporation to communicate
effectively with management, shareholders, other stakeholders and the public generally;
- the financial results of the Corporation are adequately reported to shareholders, other security
holders and regulators on a timely and regular basis;
- the financial results are reported fairly and in accordance with applicable generally accepted
accounting standards;
- timely and accurate reporting of any developments that could have a significant and material
impact on the value of the Corporation; and
- - reporting annually to the shareholders of the Corporatlon on the affairs of the Corporation for the
preceding year. -

Monitoring and Acting

The Board is responsible for the oversight and review of the following matters and may rely on

management of the Corporation to the extent appropriate in connection with addressing such matters:
- monitoring the Corporation’s progress in achieving its goals and objectives and revise and,
through management, altering the direction of the Corporation in response to changing
circumstances,
- considering taking action when performance falls short of the goals and objectives of the
Corporation or when other special circumstances warrant;
- monitoring the adequacy of the Corporation internal control pollc:les and management
information systems;
- assessing the individual performance of each Director and the collective performance of the
Board; and overseeing the size and composition of the Board as a whole to facilitate more effective
decision-making by the Corporation.
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Board’s Expectations of Management

The Board expects each member of management to perform such dutles as may be reasonably assigned
by the Board ‘frem time 1o time, faithfully, diligently, to the best of his or her ability and in the best
interests of the Corporation. Each member of management is expected to devote substantially all'of his or
her business time and efforts to the performance of such duties. Management is expected to act in
compliance with and to ensure that the Corporatlon is in compliance with all laws, rules and regulations
applicable to the Corporation.

Resnon51blllt|es and Expectations of Directors
The responsibilities and expectations of each Director are as follows:

Commitment and Attendance
All Directors should make every effort- to attend all meetings of the Board and meetings of
committees of which they are members. Members may attend by telephone.

L%

kS

Participation in Meetings
Each Director should be suffi cnently familiar with the busmess of the Corporatlon including its
financial position and capital structure and the risks and competition it faces, to actively and
effectively participate in the deliberations of the Board and of each committee on which he or she is a
member. Upon request, management should make appropriate personnei available to answer any
questions a Director may have about any aspect of the business of the Corporation. Directors should
also review the materials provided by management and the Corporation’s advisors in advance of
meetings of the Board and committees and should arrive prepared to discuss the matters presented.

Code of Conduct and Ethics

The Corporation has adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethlcs to deal with the busme*
conduct of Directors and officers of the Corporation. Dlrectors should be familiar with the provisions
of the Code of Business Conduct and Ethics.

Other Directorships

The Corporation values the experience Directors bring from other boards on which they serve, but
recognizes that those boards may also present demands on' a Director’s time and availability, and may
also present conflicts issues. Directors should consider advising the chairman of the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee before accepting any new membership on other boards of
directors or any other affiliation with other businesses or governmental bodies which involve a
significant commitment by the Director.

Contact with Management

All Directors may contact the CEO at any time to dISCUSS any aspect of the business of the

Corporation. . Directors also have complete access to other members of management. The Board
. expects that there will be frequent opportunities .for Directors to meet with 'the CEO and other

members of management in Board and committee meetings and in other formal or informal settings.

Confidentiality
The proceedings and deliberations of the Board and its committees are, and shall remain, confidential.

Each Director should maintain the confidentiality of information received in connection with his or
her services as a director of the Corporation.. o

Evaluating Board Performance
The Board, in conjunction with the Corporate Governance and Nommatmg Commlltce and each of
the committees of the Board should conduct a self-evaluation at least annually to assess their
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effectiveness. In addition, the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee should periodically
consider the mix of skills and experience that Directors bring to the Board and assess, on an ongoing
basis, whether the Board has the necessary composition to perform its oversight function effectively.

Qualifications and Directors’ Orientation

Directors should have the highest personal and professional ethics and values and be committed to
advancing the interests of the Corporation. They should possess skills and competencies in areas that are
relevant to the business of the Corporation. The CEO is responsible for the provision of an orientation
and education program for new Directors.

Meetings and Board Independence

The Board should meet on at least a quarterly basis and should hold additional meetings as required or
appropriate to consider other matters. In addition, the Board should meet as it considers appropriate to
consider strategic planning for the Corporation. Financial and other appropriate information should be
made available to the Directors in advance of Board meetings. Attendance at each meeting of the Board
should be recorded.

Management may be asked to participate in any meeting of the Board. The Board should from time to
time meet separately from management as considered appropriate to ensure that the Board functions
independently of management. The Directors independent of management should meet with no members
of management of the Corporation present as considered appropriate.

Committees

To assist the Board in discharging its responsibilities, the Board has established an Audit Committee, a
Compensation Committee, a Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee, and an Investment
Committee with the delegation from the Board to provide the CEO with quick Board reactions and
approvals for strategic acquisitions, divestments and significant financings.

Special committees of the Board may be established from time to time to assist the Board in connection
with specific matters. The chairman of each committee should report to the Board following meetings of
the committee. The charter of each standing committee should be reviewed annually by the Board.

Evaluation

The collective performance of the Board and of each committee of the Board will also be subject to
annual review. Directors should be encouraged to exercise their duties and responsibilities in a manner
that is consistent with this mandate and with the best interests of the Corporation and its shareholders
generally.

Resources

The Board has the authority to retain independent legal, accounting and other consultants. The Board
may request any officer or employee of the Corporation or outside counsel or the external/internal
auditors to attend a meeting of the Board or to meet with any member of, or consultant to, the Board.

Directors are permitted to engage an outside legal or other adviser at the expense of the Corporation
where for the purpose of auditing possible violations of the Company’s process policies or to carry out
specific mandates of the Board for example he or she is placed in a conflict position through activities of
the Corporation, but any such engagement shall be subject to the prior approval of the Corporate
Governance and Nominating Committee,

Currency of the Charter
This Charter was enacted by the Board of Directors on July 18, 2007,
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2007 Management Information Circular
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CAUTIONARY NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Except for the statements of historical fact contained herein, the information presented
constitutes “forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. The words “expect”, “anticipate”, “estimate”, “may”, “will”, “should”,
“intend”, “believe”, and similar expressions, are intended to identify forward-looking
statements. Such forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties
and other factors which may cause the actual results, performance or achievement of Sirit to b
materially different from any future results, performance or achievements expressed or implied
by such forward-looking statements. Readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on thes:
Sforward-looking statements. Actual results may differ materially from those indicated by thesz
Jorward-looking statements as a result of risks and uncertainties impacting Sirit’s business
which are discussed in the section entitled “Description of the Business — Risk Factors” in this
annual information form. Although Sirit has attempted to identify important factors that could
cause actual results to differ materially, there may be other factors that cause results not to be as
anticipated, estimated or intended.  Sirit does not undertake any obligation to update any
Sforward-looking statements contained in this document as a result of new information, further
events or otherwise.

CORPORATE STRUCTURE

Sirit Inc. (“Sirit” or the “Company”) was incorporated in the Province of British Columbia,
pursuant to the Company Act (British Columbia) on January 15, 1987 by registration of its
memorandum and articles with the name Jordex Resources Inc. On July 27, 1998, the Company
was continued into the Yukon under the Yukon Business Corporations Act. On September 175,
1998, the Company was registered as an extra-provincial company under the Company Act
(British Columbia).

Sirit's articles have been altered as follows:

June 27, 1991 - to increase the authorized capital from 20,000,000 common shares to
100,000,000 common shares;

December 23, 1993 - to increase the authorized capital by an additional 100,000,000 shares
so that the authorized capital consists of 200,000,000 shares divided into 100,000,000
common shares (“Common Shares”) and 100,000,000 preferred shares (“Preferred Shares”);

March 18, 1994 - the 100,000,000 preferred shares are issuable in series, of which the first
series, consisting of 6,500,000 shares, is designated cumulative redeemable convertible
preferred shares Series A (“Series A Shares”). The Company's articles were also amended to
add provisions setting out the special rights and restrictions attached to the Series A Shares;

March 10, 2000 - the name of the Company was changed from Jordex Resources Inc. to
iTech Capital Corp.;

May 5, 2003 - the nameof the Company was changed from iTech Capital Corp. to Sirit Inc.
to better reflect its current form of business; and,

April 21, 2005 - to increase the number of common shares authorized for issuance from
100,000,000 to an unlimited number of common shares.



The registered office of the Company is Sirit Inc., c/o Lackowicz & Shier at 300-204 Black
Street, Whitehorse, Yukon, Canada, Y1A 2M9. The head office of the Company is located at
Suite 1100, 372 Bay Street, Toronto, Ontario, Canada, M5SH 2W9.

The following chart depicts the corporate structure of the Company together with the jurisdiction
of incorporation of each of the companies:

Sirit Inc.
(Yukon Territory, Canada)

100% 100% 100%
Sirit Technologies Inc. Jordex (Bahamas) Limited Jordex Capital Corp.
(Canada) {Bahamas) {Nevada, USH)
{inactive) (inactive)
I
100% 100% 100%
|
4050 Lid,
- — (Caymans, British West
Sirit Corp. Sirit Indies)
{Ontario, Technologies (inactive)
Canada) Limited
(United
| Kingdom)
100% {inacrive)
|
Sirit Corp.
(Texas,
USA) \
| 100%
100%
1 ~
SAMSys (US) Inc. Sirit NC Corp.
{Delaware, USA) (North Carolina, USA)
(inactive) (inactive)

The active operating companies are Sirit Inc., Sirit Technologies Inc. Sirit Corp. (Canada) and
Sirit Corp. (Texas). Jordex (Bahamas) Limited along with its subsidiary 4050 Ltd. and Jordex
Capital Corp. are holding companies from when Sirit (formerly known as iTech Capital Corp.)
was a business development company. As used in this annual information form, except as
otherwise required by the context, reference to the “Company” or “Sirit” means Sirit Inc. and its
active subsidiaries.




GENERAL DEVELOPMENT OF THE BUSINESS

THREE YEAR HISTORY

2007

In fiscal 2007, Sirit’s strategy was to demonstrate it could effectively execute its plan at a level
which allowed for growth across all applications while simultaneously maintaining key assets to
ensure long-term sustainability. This was managed very effectively throughout the year. The
Company successfully built new partnerships as well as executed on maintaining key customers
while exploring new avenues for future growth. Financially, the Company was able to achieve
its key strategic objectives including:

Achieved record revenue level of $24.5 million or 13% growth over fiscal 2006 revenue;
Decreased operating expenses {(excluding foreign exchange toss) by $3.9 million or 24%
from 2006; and

Cash used in operations decreased to $1.0 million in 2007, a $6.4 million improvement
over the prior year.

The following highlights some of the key achievements throughout 2007:

In January 2007, Sirit was appointed NXP Software’s first global reseller and integration
partner for Java-based NFC middleware. In connection with this, the Company also
announced the availability of the Sirit Mobile NFC Platform (“Sirit MNP”) middleware
solution for mobile phone OEMs.

During 2007, the Company sold its two remaining non-core investments. On January 10},
2007, Sirit sold its investment in Applied Data Systems, Inc. for total proceeds of US$1.8
million (CDN$2.1 million), resulting in a gain on the sale of $1.4 million. On December
14, 2007, the Company sold its investment in Horizon Wimba, Inc. for total proceeds of
US$0.4 million (CDN$0.4 million), resulting in a gain on the sale of CDN$0.3 million.

In February 2007, Kyocera Technololgy Research Corp. (“KTRC”) selected Sirit to
supply its MNP NFC software and related technology engineering services. KTRC will
make the NFC technology available for new wireless handsets from Kyocera Wireless
Corp., a leading global supplier of code-division multiple access wireless devices and
accessories.

In April 2007, Sirit introduced a European version of its market leading [Dentity MaX
UHF RFID reader for use in vehicle parking and access control deployments. The reader
operates at the 865-868 MHz band for automatic vehicle identification performance in
single-lane read applications.

In June 2007, Sirit was awarded a contract worth approximately US$10.6 million over
three years from the Transportation Corridor Agencies in Southern California. Sirit will
supply its RFID Title-21-based toll transponders with shipments under this renewal
contract which began in July 2007.

In June 2007, Sirit secured a NFC contract with BenQ Corporation (“BenQ”), one of the
world’s largest consumer electronics OEMs. Sirit will serve as BenQ’s supplier of
embedded NFC software and technology engineering services for BenQ’s forthcoming
NFC mobile smartphones and handsets.




e In June 2007, METRO Group, the world’s fourth largest retailer, selected Sirit’s INfinity
510 UHF reader for its 2007 rollout program at 99 Real hypermarket locations
throughout Germany. This rollout program installed one INfinity 510 reader at each of
the 99 locations to track incoming products using Gen?2 tag technology.

e In August 2007, Sirit hosted its first interactive Webinar with ODIN Technologies
(“ODIN”) and reviewed the ODIN European RFID reader in Benchmark™, the first
vendor neutral evaluation of European RFID readers available on the market. In the test,
Sirit’s [Nfinity 510 worldwide Gen2 certified reader took top rankings over six othe:
leading competitive European Telecommunication Standards Institute compliant readers.

e In October 2007, Sirit introduced its latest AV reader solution, the [Dentity 5100, which
builds on the Company’s AVI expertise and advanced architecture to deliver an RFID
reader solution for use in a variety of traditional and new AVI applications including
Electronic Vehicle Registration (“EVR”) and Electronic Vehicle Identification (“EVI™)
deployments.

Subsequent Event

On March 4, 2008, the Company announced that it had entered into a definitive agreement to
acquire RSI ID Technologies, Inc. (“RSI”). RSI is an industry leading, vertically integrated
manufacturer of antennas, inlays and tags for specialized, passive RFID applications. The deal is
to be structured as an all stock transaction with an initial payment of 10 million Sirit Common
Shares plus additional shares to be issued over a 21 month period based on achieving certain
financial targets. The transaction is subject to receipt by Sirit of all requisite regulatory
approvals including the Toronto Stock Exchange and is expected to close on or about April 1,
2008.

2006

Fiscal 2006 can be characterized as an active year for Sirit. The Company completed two
acquisitions, a public offering raising net $11.5 million, integrating the operations and staff from
the acquisitions, new product releases, divestiture of two of its remaining three legacy long-term
investments (one during the year and one subsequent to year end) as well as reaching a historic
high level of revenue at $21.7 million for the year representing over a 30% annual growth rate.

The following presents some of the key activities completed in 2006.

o In February 2006, Sirit announced the first of two acquisitions. The first acquisition was
of Tennessee-based TradeWind Technologies LLC (“TradeWind”). TradeWind
specialized in the development of HF and Near Field Communications (“NFC”)
technology. The acquisition brought to Sirit an immediate complementary suite of HF
“plug-n-play” readers ideally suited to a number of closed loop applications which
include contactless/cashless payments, asset management and high value product
authentication as well as NFC capabilities. The total acquisition price, including
associated costs, was $1.9 million and was consolidated into Sirit’s results using the
purchase method effective April 3, 2006.

e In March 2006, Sirt was selected as a supplier of its UHF Title 21, FasTrak, toll
transponders and reader hardware to the new South Bay Expressway in San Diego




2005

County, California extending the current SR-125 highway from SR-54 to Spring Valley,
through eastern Chula Vista, to SR-905 in Otay Mesa near the International Border. This
order represented a new toli customer for Sirit.

In April 2006, Sirit announced its second acquisition, through a court appointed
receivership process, of all of the assets and undertakings of SAMSys Technologies Inc.
(“SAMSys™). The acquisition brought to Sirit a new line of UHF based products,
engineering talent as well as a broad set of customers in the US and Europe. The total
acquisition price, including associated costs, was $4.3 million including cash acquired of
$2.5 million and was consclidated into Sirit’s results using the purchase method effective
April 13, 2006.

In May 2006, Sirit introduced its next-generation, INfinity 510, UHF RFID reader for use
in a variety of applications including global supply chain deployments. The INfinity 510
had been developed from the ground-up as a Gen 2 compliant multi-protocol reader by
the recently acquired SAMSys operations. In September 2006, EPCglobal Inc. awarded
its hardware certification and interoperatbility marks to the INfinity 510. This was
followed in December 2006 by EPCglobal Inc. awarding its compliance mark to Sirit for
Dense Reader Mode (“DRM?”) support for the INfinity 510 UHF RFID reader, being the
first reader to achieve US and European DRM certification.

In the third quarter of 2006, one of the Company’s minority, passive investments
inherited from previous operations of the Company, Medsite Inc., announced the sale of
substantially all of its assets to an industry competitor. The conclusion of this transaction
resulted in cash proceeds to Sirit of US$1.8 million, received in the fourth quarter of
2006.

In the fourth quarter of 2006, the Company announced it had undertaken actions to align
its organizational structure with expected revenue levels and market opportunities. Some
of these actions included a headcount reduction of over 25%, closing 2 locations,
including the office in the UK and streamlining its development efforts to focus on
revenue generating opportunities. In addition, these initiatives are expected to make it
possible for the Company to meet its objective of becoming cash flow neutral by the end
of 2007.

With a temporary decline in revenue and slower than expected deployment of RFID in the
supply chain, Sirit focused on operational effectiveness, strategic evaluation of shorter term
opportunities and continued development efforts. During the third quarter of 2005 the head
office was moved from Mississauga to Toronto, Ontario.

The following highlights some of the key events from fiscal 2005:

In March 2005, Sirit signed a multi-year supplier agreement totalling approximately $16.0
million with the E-470 Public Highway Authority in Colorado. The agreement calls for the
Company to deliver its UHF RFID toll transponder technology over a 60 month period, the
longest supply commitment ever made by a Sirit tolling customer.

In March 2005, Sirit filed three new patent applications related to UHF RFID technology
with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office: two patent applications in the area of RFID



reader architecture and one patent application addressing high-efficiency RFID antenna
technology.

e In June 2005, Mr. Norbert Dawalibi became President and Chief Executive Officer
solidifying Sirit’s vision to be a leading developer and provider of enabling RFID hardware
technology across all frequencies and tag protocols worldwide.

e In September 2005, the Company announced an expected revenue decline from prior year of
between 20% to 25% as well as taking some headcount reductions.

e Sirit earned 1SO 9001:2000 certification for its US operations following an extensive and
comprehensive audit by British Standards Institution (BSI), Inc.

o In November 2005, Sirit announced the successful completion of its first Hybrid High
Occupancy Vehicle (“HOV™) lane conversion project in the San Francisco Bay Area. The
implementation was based on federal transportation legislation that allows certain Jow-
emission hybrid vehicles to use HOV lanes. The State of California has implemented
Assembly Bill 2628 which allows certain hybrid car owners access to HOV lanes regardiess
of the number of occupants.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

For over 14 years, Sirit and its subsidiaries have been involved in designing, developiny,
manufacturing and selling RFID hardware and solutions. Sirit has been providing its RFID
technology to customers based primarily in the United States and Europe and continues to
expand throughout the Americas and Asia.

The operations of Sirit are dedicated to RFID technology and the practical applications of this
technology. The first of the Company’s targeted RFID sales efforts is towards Automatic
Vehicle Identification (*AVI”) applications. Sirit provides technology for use in vehicle
tracking, tolling, access control as well as parking and fleet management applications. AVI is
considered one of the most accepted as well as most widely implemented uses of RFID
technology in the world today. Additional markets and sales efforts utilizing RFID technology
are combined within Sirit’s Radio Frequency Solutions (“RFS”) applications. Some of these
areas include asset tracking, cashless payments, supply chain, inventory control, contactless
transactions and NFC. Sirit manages its sales, development and strategic efforts along these two
primary application areas, all within the RFID Business Segment.

The operations of Sirit were purchased by iTech Capital Corp. in November 2002. iTech Capital
Corp. had previously been a business development company with a few remaining long-term
portfolio investments. The name was changed to Sirit Inc. and since November 2002 the
combined operations of the Company have been dedicated to the RFID business. From the
operations as iTech Capital Corp, Sirit inherited these portfolio investments. During 2006 and
2007, Sirit liquidated its three remaining private U.S. based long-term portfolio investments,
Medsite, Inc., Applied Data Systems Inc. and Horizon Wimba, Inc.

AVI applications include the sale of readers, tags, antennae, maintenance services and complets
tolling systems and will continue to be a major focus for the Company in 2008 and beyond.



These operations include toll solutions utilizing the UHF based Title 21 standard, Traffic
Management Systems, integration and Parking and Access Control Systems (“PACS”). In the
2007 financial year, the Company’s two top AVI customers accounted for approximately 25.7%
and 14.7%, respectively, of total consolidated revenue.

RFS applications include the design, assembly and sale of low frequency (“LF”), high
frequency (“HF”) and UHF RFID INfinity Series readers and reader modules which are
embedded primarily into original equipment manufacturers’ (“OEM?”) products such as handheld
devices, portable data terminals, mobile computers, printers and fixed position readers. RFS
applications are anticipated to generate strong revenue growth for the Company over the next
several years.

RFID BUSINESS SEGMENT
Business of Sirit

Sirit designs, develops, manufactures and sells RFID products and solutions. Targeted at a
diverse set of markets, RFID technology has become a core technology for applications
including: electronic toll collection, access control, cashless payment systems, product
authentication, security, supply chain applications including logistics, warehousing and
manufacturing and asset management.

It is estimated that more than 14 million vehicles in the U.S. use transponders to pay their tolls
automatically. In addition, it is estimated that over 8 million people pay for their gasoline
purchases using key-chain transponders. Many retailers, manufacturers, warehouses and
logistics companies are increasingly relying on RFID technology to identify assets and manage
their internal inventory and control processes.

Through a combination of organic growth in existing and emerging industry applications an:
possible strategic acquisitions, Sirit seeks to increase its position in the RFID industry as a
technology designer, manufacturer and supplier. Sirit markets its products and solutions througn
its direct sales force and its partnerships with OEMs, distributors, integrators and value added
resellers.

RFID Technology

RFID is considered a powerful and versatile automatic identification technology that allows
vehicles, pallets, cases, cartons, animals and various other articles and objects to be identified,
tracked and managed in a wide range of environments.

A basic RFID system consists of three components:

» A transponder (commonly called a tag) that is electronically programmed with unique
information;

® A reader consisting of a transceiver with decoder; and

* Anantenna or coil.




RFID Tags

An RFID tag is an “electronic memory” with the following characteristics:

e Each tag usually stores a untque and unalterable identification code. Tags may also store
additional, variable information that may be modified by the user at any time;

e Tags may be read and written to, from distances from less than | centimetre over 30 metres,
with no line of sight requirement;

* [nformation stored in a tag’s memory cannot be unintentionally changed, nor can it be easily
replicated. Information can be written, erased and re-written (and even permanently locked),
as required within an application;

e Tags can be attached to, or buried in, most non-metallic materials;

* Tags are available in a wide range of sizes and formats and operate at various frequencies
including LF, HF and UHF; and

e Tags may be used in a wide range of physical environments. They are mechanically robust,
and can survive extreme temperatures, humidity and pressure.

In its AVI applications, including toll collection, integration, Traffic Management Systems and
PACS, Sirit manufactures tags and readers along with additional system components to deliver a
complete integrated solution.

Traditional semiconductor companies, such as Texas Instruments, STMicroelectronics, EM
Microelectronic-Marin SA and NXP Semiconductors, dominate chip production for RFID tags.
These chips are then integrated into various forms of tags for use in RFID applications. We
consider these companies to be one of the main driving forces behind the continued development
and expansion of the RFID industry since high volume production drives down the cost of chip
manufacturing thereby opening up new RFID applications.

RFID Readers

A reader is an electronic unit that transfers information to and from one or more tags and has the
ability to process information that is obtained from, or sent to, a tag (the term ‘reader’ is
commonly used to represent a read/write device). The size and capabilities of readers vary
considerably. In its RFS applications, Sirit designs, develops, manufactures and sells primarily
OEM reader modules and readers which are then integrated into an overall RFID solution by
OEMs, end-users, integrators and distributors.

An RFID reader may operate in total isolation or be connected to a remote computer/controller
for an increased comprehensive use and manipulation of data derived from a tag. Sirit readers
vary in size, cost and performance across all frequencies and most protocols.

Sirit produces and sells multi-protocol readers designed to provide support for tags from
different manufacturers and to operate across all commonly used frequencies. Sirit has a base set
of reader products and can produce application specific readers for customers with unique or
high volume requirements. The user is then free to select the tag with the most appropriate
price/performance characteristics at any point during the lifetime of their application. In this
way, obsolescence of tag and reader technologies becomes a less critical consideration in the
purchasing cycle and provides a degree of legacy protection.
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Antennae

RFID readers are connected to antennae that transmit information to a tag and receive
information sent by a tag. The antenna emits radio signals to activate the tag and read and write
data to it. Antennae are the conduits between the tag and the reader, which control the system’s
data acquisition and communication. Antennae are available in a variety of shapes and sizes;
they can be built into a door-frame or a dock door to receive tag data from persons or objects
passing through or mounted in a toll plaza to permit tolls to be collected electronically.

RFID Industry Developments

Based on our current knowledge of the RFID industry, some of the recent developments and
changes occurring in the industry that impact market growth and expansion include the following
highlights.

Throughout the year there were several consolidations in the industry demonstrating that key
large players are willing to invest in and support the RFID technology evolution. Some of these
consolidations included Motorola purchasing Symbol, Avery Dennison purchasing Paxar and
Zebra purchasing WhereNet.

Early in 2007, Intel Corporation introduced the R1000 chipset for Gen 2 based RFID readers.
The new silicon based readers are expected to result in tower production costs as well as
improved performance for less complex readers and operating environments.

In May 2007, China announced it was ready to embrace UHF as its RFID frequency in two
segments, between 840-845MHz and 920-925MHz. The 840MHz range is below the low end of
the current RFID UHF range of 860MHz, which is used in Europe. The 920MHz band is used in
North America. China will require certification of equipment by the Ministry of Informatics
Industry (RW Baird).

In addition, the International Standards Organization ratified standard 1S0O/24730 protocol, an
application program interface for real time location systems (RTLS). RTLS are electronic
systems that are intended to locate small electronic devices on people or things at any time
within a specified area.

In July, the NFC Forum recommended technical specifications for 4 types of NFC tags. These
specifications are based on 1SO14443 A and B and Japanese industrial standard X6319-4, more
commonly known as Sony's FeliCa protocol. By standardizing the tag types and formats with
the specifications announced, the NFC Forum is encouraging interoperability across the NFC
market, low-cost volume production and a global, cost-effective market adoption.

Throughout 2007, the RFID industry experienced an increasing number of smaller scale but full
production rolls-outs across many application areas including pharmaceutical, defence and retail.
A few of the key publicly announced users of the technology include Marks and Spencer, Glaxo
SmithKiein, Department of Defence, Metro Group, Staples and Best Buy. These high profilz
users indicate an acceptance and understanding of RFID that demonstrate ongoing commitment
as well as positive ROl resulting from these implementations of RFID technology.
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The RFID Consortium, which was formed in 2005, is an industry based, central "depository”
where patents deemed essential for UHF RFID will be placed into a pool to provide access to the
patents for various licencees. Contributors to the consortium will share royalties earned by the
consortium based on the patents they submitted. In December 2007, seven companies were
named as having contributed essential patents within the pool with further contributors expected.
The anticipated result of the consortium is that as patents are contributed to the pool, the entire
industry will become less litigious and readily available for all industry participants to utilize.

The dedicated short range communication (“DSRC”) industry consortium (“DIC”) continues to
test and modify prototypes of next generation 5.9 GHz DSRC communications technology, a
powerful new communication medium between moving vehicles and the roadway as well as
directly among moving vehicles. DSRC uses an allocation of radio frequency spectrum
established by the FCC to enable a broad slate of public and private safety applications and
traffic management capabilities that promise to enhance the nation’s transportation system. The
development of 5.9 GHz DSRC is a critical milestone toward introduction of numerous
applications such as intersection collision warning, curve speed warning, rollover waming,
emergency electronic brake lights, nationally interoperable electronic toll collection and many
others, some of which have not yet been conceived. Focusing on safety applications is part of
the federal government’s commitment to reducing vehicle fatalities by 50 percent in 10 years.

Market Verticals

Within the RFID Business Segment, the primary areas in which Sirit currently participates are as
follows:

AVI

Cashless payment systems using a tag as the activator of a payment transaction have been a key
market for RFID technology for many years. Electronic toll collection systems were introduced
as early as 1986 and flourished through the 1990s as new toll roads were built and existing toll
roads added electronic payment capability.

In the toll collection markets in North America that are served by the Company, Sirit is one ¢f
only 3 primary technology providers. Sirit currently has in excess of three million transponders
in use and the rate of adoption continues to grow.

Sirit has been one of the key suppliers of RFID tag and reader technology for these cashless
payment systems and will continue to pursue opportunities to provide readers with greater
functionality, multi-protocol, multi-frequency capability and other features that are increasingly
in demand by service providers.

Dedicated Short Range Communication (“DSRC”) is an emerging technology which is
anticipated to improve such things as highway safety, traffic management, tolling etc. which are
a key priority of the United States Department of Transportation. DSRC based systems are
expected to save lives by warning drivers of impending dangerous situations. Sirit, along with
Raytheon Company, Mark IV Industries, Inc. and Transcore, comprise the development team
which is being funded by the United States Department of Transportation. Pilots will be taking
place sometime in 2008 and into 2009.
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A Sirit PACS system is comprised of a transponder mounted in the vehicle, an antenna to power
the transponder and a reader to convert the data for processing by a computer for use in parking
lots, pated communities and secure vehicle access points. Each transponder has a unique
identifying code that is read by the antenna once the transponder enters into the read zone. This
identifying code is then transmitted through the reader to a computer where it is checked against
a user database. If the identifying code is valid (i.e. the patron has a fully paid account or the
transponder is not registered as lost or stolen), then the gate is raised and the patron can proceed
into a facility or access a secure location. Transponders, antennae and readers have been
designed and manufactured by Sirit and have been adopted primarily in North America with
growing opportunities worldwide.

RFS

Global supply chains increasingly rely on accurate, real time data for the complex and
sophisticated software packages that are used to generate information, and therefore actions, that
will determine visibility and flow of product throughout the supply chain.

Although bar codes are widely used to identify products (either individually or in groups),
inherent limitations can restrict supply chain operation and efficiency - specifically their
requirement for line of sight and the inability to convey variable data. RFID tags and labels do
not share these limitations and their effective deployment within the supply chain, operating
across many industries, provide substantial efficiency and other operational benefits.

According to several industry analysts and sources, the market for RFID readers in supply chain
applications is expected to experience significant growth over the next several years. Numerous
entities including Wal-Mart, Target and Metro Group have announced and begun to implemerit
pilots and limited production roll-outs involving the use of RFID technology within their
respective supply chains.

An example of RFS applications in use today utilizing RFID technology includes cashless
payment systems. An example of a cashless payment system using Sirit’s RFID technology, is
the SpeedPass™ network, originally developed by Mobil and now implemented within both
Exxon and Mobil gas stations, has over eight million users and is rivaling the toll collection
market in terms of overall acceptance.

AVI Products

IDentity Title 21 Product

Sirit’s [Dentity Title 21 transponder is used in high-speed highway applications. It complies with
the open standard for electronic toll collection adopted by the California Department of
Transportation. Sirit has a large installation base of Title 21 compliant systems with installations
that include California (Orange County toll rcads, San Francisco bridges, State Route 91),
Denver (E-470 toll road), South America and China.

[Dentity 5100

Supporting recent advancements to Gen2 technology and unique design innovations, Sirit’s
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IDentity 5100 eliminates cost barriers to address large-scale opportunities such as the emerging
EVR and EVI markets. This UHF reader system was designed using Sirit’s industry recognized
RFID architecture to support worldwide regulatory compliance from a single platform.

IDentity FleX and IDentity ZiP

Sirit’s UHF IDentity FleX and ZiP systems consist of transponders, readers and antennae, and
have been designed to meet the price point and performance required for the vehicle access
control market. The IDentity FleX reader will read both the 1Dentity FleX and IDentity Zi?
transponders as well as Sirit’s [Dentity Title 21 transponder. This unique feature allows existing
users of Title 21 toll products to co-exist with the lower cost IDentity FleX product line. The
[Dentity FleX and ZiP systems are designed for PACS applications such as parking, security and
gated communities.

IDentity MaX

Sirit’s [Dentity MaX reader uses UHF RFID technology to create an integrated AVI syster
offering superior price/performance characteristics over traditional long range proximity card
systems. Protected against the elements by a weather resistant enclosure, this self-contained
combination reader and antenna unit is intended as a single read point in a pedestal, pole, wall or
ceiling mounted configuration. The integrated reader provides an economical solution for AVI
and access contol applications alike.

RFS Products
RFID Modules and Readers

Sirit designs, develops and manufactures a full line of readers and reader modules designed to be
embedded in products from OEMs, system integrators, value added resellers and end users.
These products are targeted at many RFID applications including cashless payment systems,
product identification and authentication, security and access control, supply chain and asset
management. Some of Sirit’s main products are listed as follows.

INfinity 176/177

Sirit’s INfinity 176/177 reader scan modules provide a singie unit capable of simultaneously
reading standard bar code symbols and most leading RFID LF (125/134.3 kHz) tags. This
product can be used as a direct replacement by system integrators and OEMs who wisk. ‘o enablz
existing products with the two identification technologies. These readers are primarily targeted
at industrial hand-held terminals for supply chain applications, robotics, point of sale terminals,
vending machines and medical equipment.
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INfinity 210 UHF Multi-Protocol EPC Module

Sirit’s INfinity 210 is a multi-protocol UHF {902-928 MHz) RFID reader module supporting
EPCglobal. The INfinity 210 is a compact and powerful OEM module designed for medium and
high performance applications. This robust RFID module is designed for integration into
handheld portable data terminals, printers, label applicators, mobile computers and other OEM
devices.

INfinity 510 Reader

The INfinity 510 was designed from the ground-up to support worldwide regulatory compliance
from a single platform. This powerful UHF reader system is designed for enterprise class
applications and features best-in-class air interface performance. In addition, the robusi,
software-based architecture provides a rich application platform that addresses the needs of
today’s deployments and ensures that future features and capabilities can be added as RFID
technology evolves in the future. The design provides optimal performance in North American,
European and Asia-Pacific environments.

Major Customer Relationships
AVi

Sirit has long-standing customers in the toll industry including the Transportation Corridor
Agencies in Orange County, California, the Bay Area Toll Authority in San Francisco and E-470
Public Highway Authority in Denver, Colorado.

RES

As Sirit’s RFS business continues to be mainly in design and support of development initiatives,
tests and pilots, Sirit continues to build upon and establish new customer relationships. Part of
the Sirit strategy is to establish strategic partnerships with sizeable, well established and
reputable companies. Sirit believes there are three major categories of companies to target with
the Sirit range of reader products. The primary is selling readers and modules directly to OEMs
of specific products such as hand-held devices or printers. The second is selling directly to end
users who will be testing products for their own internal processes and ultimately installing their
own complete RFID system. The third is selling readers to system integrators who are in the
business of designing and instailing complete RFID systems for their customers.

Research and Development

Sirit conducts research and development activities at both its Morrisville, North Carolina and
Carrollton, Texas facilities. Both locations focus on LF, HF and UHF developments. Examples
of LF and HF products are proximity readers for integration in third-party equipment like hand-
held scanners and printers, as well as OEM readers for auto-payment applications and closed-
loop applications. UHF product development supports both Sirit's AVI market (Toll and
PACS) as well as stationary readers and reader module developments targeted at the RFS
markets.
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Sirit’s engineering strength is its ability to work with and respond on a timely basis to customer
needs and translating this into products that meet or exceed these requirements. Sirit’s
development team consists primarily of internal staff that have a proven track record in the RF11)
industry.

Competition

Competition within the electronic toll collection market segment is based upon price, technical
knowledge, provision of strong reference accounts and customer service.

Sirit’s competitors in the market for electronic toll collection systems include systems integrators
and manufacturers. These companies include manufacturers such as Transcore and Mark IV
Industries, Inc., and systems integrators such as Raytheon Transportation Management Systems
and UTC Inc. who can implement competitive RFID systems as part of an overall systems
integration contract.

Sirit’s competitors in the RFID reader marketplace for RFS applications are companies that have
both a fundamental understanding and practical experience involved with designing,
manufacturing and deploying this technology.  Primary competitors include Symbol
Technologies (recently purchased by Motorola), Intermec, Impinj, Thingmagic and Alien
Technologies.

Intellectual Property

Sirit relies on a combination of trade secret laws, license agreements and patenis to protect
proprietary rights in its products and technology. The source code for Sirit’s products and
technology are protected as trade secrets in its licensing agreements with customers and partners.

Sirit has the rights to certain intellectual property, including patents, copyrights, know-how and
trade secrets that are owned or licensed by Texas Instruments used in the continued sales of the
[Dentity brand and Title 21 products. Sirit has filed over 20 patent applications with the U.S.
Patent and Trademark Office and has 10 granted patents.

Outsourced Manufacturing

Substantially all of the Company’s manufacturing activities are outsourced from a few qualified
and reliable contract manufacturers based in the United States and Malaysia. Sirit tests all
products prior to shipment to customers. Sirit maintains strong, long-standing relationships with
its suppliers and has not experienced any product shortages or disputes with its suppliers that are
out of the normal course of business. In the event that Sirit’s third party manufacturers
experience production problems or reach their capacity, Sirit believes that manufacturing could
be switched to other manufacturers with minimal cost or disruption.

Facilities

Sirit operates primarily from three offices. The head office and related functions are located in
Toronto, Ontario. The primary development and design teams are located in both Carrollton,
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Texas and Morrisville, North Carolina. The Carrollton, Texas office also performs the assembly,
distribution and sales activities.

Employees

As at December 31, 2007 Sirit had a total of fifty-two full-time employees. None of Sirit’s
employees are represented by unions; management considers its relationship with its employees
to be very good. During 2007, Sirit made greater use of contract employees. As of the year
ended December 31, 2007, Sirit is utilizing up to 15 such contractors in all areas of the
operations, in addition to its full-time employees.

PORTFOLIO INVESTMENTS BUSINESS SEGMENT

At December 31, 2007, Sirit has divested of all of its remaining minority interest investments in
private U.S. companies (2006 - owned two minority interest investments totalling $849
thousand).

RISK FACTORS

The following risk factors could each have a material adverse effect on the Company’s business,
financial condition and results of operations and could cause actual events to differ materially
from those described in forward-looking statements relating to the Company.

Ability to Achieve Commercialization on a Timely Basis

Sirit’s success will depend, to a great extent, on its ability to achieve commercial sales of
products incorporating its RFID technology on a timely basis. There can be no assurance tha
Sirit’s technology and products based on such technology will achieve commercial acceptance
on a timely basis or that, if market acceptance is achieved, Sirit will be able to maintain such
acceptance for a significant period of time. Failure to obtain commercial sales, or to achievz
commercial sales on a timely basis, would have an adverse impact on Sirit’s financial condition
and its ability to sustain its operations.

Ability to Achieve Commercial Acceptance

Sirit’s targeted end-users will be required to make significant investments in their business
processes and systems in order to achieve the intended benefits associated with RFID
technology. There is no assurance that targeted end-users will be willing to make thesz
investments and adopt RFID technology or, if they are, that they will choose Sirit’s RFID
products and services. Although development of Sirit’s products has been largely completed,
sales of some of Sirit’s current products, which to date have been primarily for evaluation and
pilot testing purposes, have yielded inconsistent revenues. There is no assurance that all of
Sirit’s products will achieve commercial acceptance.




RFID Market Evolution

Future revenue generation and profitability will depend on the adoption rate of RFID both in the
supply chain as well as in other verticals and the Company’s ability to effectively respond to the
changing demands of an emerging market. As with any emerging technology such as RFIL,
adoption rates have been slow on initial introductions of technological advancements. While
EPC has recently released finalized protocols and standards primarily for open loop UHF supply
chain management applications, this initial introductory phase has been met by the industry with
hesitation as extensive testing and piloting continues to be the norm. Sirit has been able to
effectively weather this slow transition period with its recurring AVI revenue stream providing
cash to support operations. Renewed efforts to both grow the AVI vertical as well as expand into
new closed loop and emerging verticals will position Sirit to take advantage of future high
growth opportunities.

Dependence on Market Growth

Sirit is dependent upon growth in the market for RFID products. There are a number of
impediments to broader adoption of RFID technology including: (1) the cost of implementing a
fully functional RFID system which, in addition to the cost of tags, includes the cost of readers
and the supporting infrastructure and software required to manage RFID data; (2) the use of
different frequencies in different geographic areas could impair the adoption of or growth of thz
use of RFID technology by global customers; (3) the limited read range of low-cost tags makes
them unsuitable for certain uses; (4) potential inaccuracy in RFID data caused by interferencs
from other tags and/or readers or from other wireless devices and industrial equipment, or
proximity to liquids or metals; and (5) concerns regarding the privacy of consumers who havs
purchased tagged items.

Strategic Partnerships

Sirit is focusing current sales and marketing efforts on establishing, formalizing and maintaining
long-term strategic relationships. These relationships will enable Sirit to act in a timely manner
in response to customers’ changing requirements. The establishment of these relationships is onz
of the key inputs to generating revenue growth for the Company. Should these partnerships nct
materialize in a timely manner, this may negatively impact Sirit’s ability to gain market share
and achieve growth targets in the future. A key strategic focus is to continue to develop new
relationships and nurture those already established.

Dependence on Resellers and Distributors

Sirit intends to achieve some of its sales through value-added resellers and distributors. Reliance
upon third-party distribution sources subjects Sirit to risks of business failure by such value-
added resellers and distributors, as well as credit, inventory and business concentration risks. In
addition, if there is a shortfall in demand from third-party distribution sources, Sirit’s operating
results may be negatively affected.
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Dependence on Customers

Sirit is dependent on a number of significant customers and on large complex contracis with
respect to sales of the majority of its products and services. In fiscal 2007, two customers
accounted for approximately 25.7% and 14.7% of total consolidated revenues. !f any significant
customer discontinues its relationship withk Sirit for any reason, or reduces or postpones currernt
or expected purchase commitments for its products and services, it could have a material adverse
effect on Sirit’s business, operating results and financial condition.

New Product Introduction / Technology Risk

Sirit’s development process makes use of the optimal mix of strong internal engineering talent as
well as external consultants and developers. The process of developing technology from concepit
stage through design to final production involves time to complete proper testing, redesigning,
standards approvals and conversion to production. Unexpected testing results or performance
irregularities are the norm in a development process and can result in new product offerings
being deferred beyond projected timeframes. Management continually assesses market demands
and attempts to mirror those demands with internal development initiatives. The risk of not
developing and introducing reliable product on a timely basis into customer tests or pilots
presents one of the greatest risks to Sirit. Sirit can mitigate this risk through its product
development plan, continuous communications with customers and partners, assessment of
market trends, and participation in standards development groups such as EPC and the DSRC
development group.

Volatility of Research and Development

Sirit is active in the research and development of new products and technologies. Sirit’s research
and development efforts may not lead to the successful introduction of new or improved products
and Sirit may encounter delays or problems in connection with its research and development
efforts. New products may take longer to develop, have greater or fewer features than originaily
considered desirable and achieve higher cost targets than initially estimated. There may be
delays in starting volume production of new products and new products may not be
commercially successful. Products under development are often announced before being
available and these announcements may cause customers to delay purchases of existing products
until the new or improved versions of those products become available. Delays or deficiencies in
development, manufacturing, delivery of or demand for new products or higher cost targets may
have a material adverse effect on Sirit’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Complexity of Products
Many of Sirit’s new products and prcducts under development are highly complex and
innovative. As a result, they may contain defects or errors that are detected only after installation

into its customers’ systems which could have a negative impact on Sirit’s future revenues and its
ability to meet its projections.
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Management of Expanding Operations

If Sirit achieves significant commercial sales of its products, it wiil be required to expand its
operations rapidly, which will place significant demands on Sirit’s managerial, operational and
financial personnel and systems. There can be no assurance that Sirit’s systems, procedures,
controls and existing facilities will be adequate to support expansion of Sirit’s operations. Sirit’s
future operating results will substantially depend on the ability of its officers and key employees
to manage changing business conditions and to implement and improve its operational, financial
control and reporting systems. [f Sirit is unable to respond to and manage changing business
conditions, the quality of Sirit’s products and services, its ability to retain key personnel and its
results of operations could be materially adversely affected.

Profitability and Cash Flow Requirements

The Company does not expect it will acnieve a profitable level of sales volumes in 200%.
Revenue growth during 2008 is anticipated, however recurring large volume orders are not
expected until pilot projects are converted into full scale RFID implementations. Sirit believes
that at current operating levels, it has sufficient cash and liquidity to support its ongoing
requirements for the next twelve months and beyond. However, there is the possibility that other
unanticipated events may impact the Company’s cash position.

Fluctuations in Quarterly Financial Results

Our revenues, gross margin and earnings may vary from quarter to quarter. Quarterly variations
in operating results, changes in financial estimates by securities analysts, or other events or
factors may result in wide fluctuations in the market price of our stock. In addition, the financial
markets have experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have often been
unrelated to the operating performance of these companies. Broad market fluctuations or any
failure of the Company’s operating results in a particular quarter to meet market expectations
may adversely affect the market price of our common shares.

Staff Retention

In an expanding market where innovation, new product development and customer suppoit
require specialized technical knowledge, there is an increased demand for skilled resources. The
Company attempts to maintain market accepted remuneration levels and continuously seeks to
complement strategic needs with a qualified workforce. Sirit faces the risk of not being able to
meet increasing market expectations or face the loss of current employees to competitors,
customers or suppliers. The Company attempts to manage this risk of loss through
communication of corporate goals and strategy, individual contribution to achieve these goals as
well as remuneration emphasizing longer-term commitment to the Company.

Competition

The principal competitive factors affecting the market for Sirit’s products include vendor and
product reputation, expertise and experience in implementing products in the customer’s industry
sector, product architecture, functionality and features, cost of ownership, ease and speed of

implementation, customer support, product quality, price and performance and product attributes
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such as flexibility, scalability, compatibility, functionality and ease of use. In order to be
successful in the future, Sirit believes it must continue to respond promptly and effectively to
technological change and competitors’ innovations.

Current and potential competitors may have longer operating histories, greater financial,
technical, marketing and other resources, greater name recognition and a larger installed base of
customers than Sirit. There can be no assurance that Sirit’s current or potential competitors will
not develop products comparable or superior in terms of price, performance or other factors to
those developed by Sirit. In addition, there can be no assurance that Sirit will not be required to
make substantial additional investments in connection with its research, development, marketing,
sales and customer service efforts in order to meet any competitive threat, or that it will be able
to compete successfully in the future. Increased competition may result in reductions in market
share, pressure for price reductions and related reductions in gross margins, any of which may
adversely affect the Company’s ability to reach its financial and business goals.

Competitive Pricing

Recurring toll revenue is generated through successful bids in a competitive tender process. Sirit
won all bids submitted for transponder contracts in 2006 and 2007. In order to procure these
results and secure long-term contracts in a competitive environment, price concessions ars
required. While volumes of sales are expected to increase with increased number of cars as well
as increasing penetration within the existing driving population on toll highways, revenue growth
and gross profit will be at risk due to lower sales price per tag. Sirit is mitigating some of this
risk by constantly seeking ways to reduce product costs including purchasing parts in bulk and
manufacturing products overseas. Although Sirit continues development efforts aimed at
lowering costs to build products, there is no guarantee that Sirit will be able to maintain
competitive pricing.

Intellectual Property Rights

Sirit’s success and competitiveness substantially depends on its internaily-developed proprietary
technologies which are protected through trade secrets, trademarks, copyrights and patents:.
Patent applications and trademark registrations may not be approved, or, if approved, may be
challenged by third parties or invalidated. In addition, patents granted to Sirit may not provide a
distinctive or enduring competitive advantage.

Sirit is also dependent on proprietary technologies licensed from third parties. There can be nio
assurance that these third party licenses will continue to be available to Sirit in the future or that
they will not be successfully challenged by third parties.

From time to time, third parties may assert claims or initiate litigation against Sirit alleging that
Sirit’s products infringe upon their proprietary rights and Sirit may become increasingly subject
to claims of infringement or misappropriation of the intellectual property rights of others. In
addition, Sirit may in the future initiate claims or litigation against third parties for infringement
of its proprietary rights. Litigation claims, with or without merit, could be time-consuming and
costly, divert management’s attention, cause product shipment delays, and require Sirit to
develop non-infringing technology or enter into royalty or licensing agreements. Such

21




agreements, if required, may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all, which could have a
material adverse effect on Sirit’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Sirit may be subject to additional risks as it enters into transactions in countries where
intellectual property laws are not well developed or are poorly enforced. Legal protections of its
rights may be ineffective in such countries. Litigation to defend and enforce its intellectual
property rights could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and could have a
material adverse effect on Sirit’s business, financial condition and results of operations,
regardless of the final outcome of such litigation. Despite Sirit’s efforts to safeguard and
maintain its proprietary rights in Canada, the United States and abroad, there can be no assurance
that it will be successful in doing so, or that the steps taken by Sirit in this regard will be
adequate to deter misappropriation or independent third-party development of its technology cr
to prevent an unauthorized third party from copying or otherwise obtaining and using its
products or technology. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on Sirit’s
business, financial condition and results of operations.

Integration of Acquisitions

Sirit will continue to investigate new opportunities that may arise to acquire or invest in
businesses, products and technologies that expand, complement or are otherwise related to Sirit’s
current business. These activities create risks such as the need to integrate and manage the
businesses and products acquired with the business and products of Sirit, additional demands on
Sirit’s management, resources, systems, procedures and controls, disruption of Sirit’s ongoing
business, and diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns. Such
acquisitions, investments or other business collaborations may involve significant commitments
of financial and other resources of Sirit. Any such activity may not be successful in generating
revenue, income or other returns to Sirit, and the financial or other resources committed to such
activities will not be available to Sirit for other purposes. Sirit’s inability to address these risks
could negatively affect Sirit’s operating results.

Dependence on Third Party Manufacturers

Sirit outsources the manufacturing of its products to third party contract manufacturers. If theszs
third party manufacturers are unable to either deliver on a timely basis or produce high quality
products, customer relationships and future sales orders may be adversely impacted.

Government Regulation

The Company is subject to regulatory changes in each of the jurisdictions it serves. The RFID
market may be subject to further regulation due to concerns over consumer privacy. As the
introduction of RFID tracking technology has become more public, various consumer privacy
groups including Consumers Against Supermarket Privacy Invasion and Numbering have
protested item tagging. Although these protests are geared more towards post-purchase tagging
rather than warehouse tracking, the industry needs to be prepared to face opposition in the years
to come as the use of RFID technology expands.
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

As Sirit continues to purchase and sell product in various currencies, maintain international
locations and employ staff in various countries, Sirit will be subject to foreign exchange risk.
While the majority of revenue and a large portion of operating expenses are incurred in US
Dollars resulting in an almost natural hedge position, fluctuations between the Canadian and US
Dollar will impact financial results which are reported in Canadian Dollars. Sirit does not enter
into any foreign currency hedging or other similar contracts and has no plans to enter into thess
forms of financial instruments in the next year.

Dividend Policy

No dividends on the Common Shares have been paid by Sirit to date. Sirit anticipates that it will
retain all future earnings and other cash resources for the future operation and development of its
business. Sirit does not intend to declare or pay any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.
Payment of any future dividends will be at the discretion of Sirit’s board of directors after taking
into account many factors, including Sirit’s operating results, financial condition and current and
anticipated cash needs.

Conflicts of Interest

Certain of the directors and officers of Sirit also serve as directors and/or officers of other
companies and consequently there exists the possibility for such directors and officers to be in a
position of conflict. Any decision made by any of such directors and officers involving Sirit will
be made in accordance with their duties and obligations to deal fairly and in good faith with a
view to the best interests of Sirit and its shareholders. In addition, each of the directors is
required to declare and refrain from voting on any matter in which such directors may have a
conflict of interest in accordance with the procedures set forth in the Business Corporations Act
{Yukon) and other applicable laws.

Dilution to Sirit Shareholders

As of the date of this Annual Information Form 145,703,308 Common Shares were outstanding.
The Company also had outstanding options to purchase an additional 7,707,683 Common Shares
at prices ranging from $0.13 to $1.43 per share with expiry dates ranging from May 23, 2003
through August 13, 2014, During the life of the options, the holders are given an opportunity to
profit from a rise in the market price of the Common Shares with a resulting dilution in the
interest of the other shareholders. Sirit’s ability to obtain additional financing during the period
such options are outstanding may be adversely affected and the existence of such options may
have an adverse effect on the price of the Common Shares. The holders of the options mav
exercise such securities at a time when Sirit would, in all likelihood, be able to obtain any needed
capital by a new offering of securities on terms more favourable than those provided by the
outstanding options.

The increase in the number of Common Shares in the market upon exercise of any of such
convertible securities and the possibility of sales of such shares may have a depressive effect on
the market price of the Common Shares. In addition, as a result of such additional Common
Shares being issued, the voting power of the Company’s existing shareholders will be diluted.
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Product Liability and other Claims related to its Customers’ Business Operations

Many of Sirit’s products will be critical to the operations of its clients’ businesses and provide
benefits that may be difficult to quantify. Any failure in a client’s system or any intellectual
property infringement claims against Sirit by third parties could result in a claim for substantial
damages against Sirit by its customers, regardless of its responsibility for the failure or for the
alleged intellectual property infringement. There can be no assurance that Sirit’s customer
contracts will protect it in the event of any such claim. In addition, although it maintains general
liability insurance coverage, including coverage for errors or omissions, there can be no
assurance that this coverage will continue to be available on reasonable terms or will be available
in sufficient amounts to cover one or more large claims, or that the insurer will not disclairn
coverage.

Future Need for Capital and Uncertainty of Additional Financing

Sirit may need to raise funds through public or private debt or equity financing in the event that
its estimates of capital requirements change or prove inaccurate, or to enable the Company (o
respond to unanticipated competitive pressures or to take advantage of unanticipated
opportunities. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available on terms
favourable to Sirit, or at all. If adequate funds are not available or are not available on
acceptable terms, Sirit may not be able to continue its technological development or take
advantage of market opportunities to develop new products or otherwise to respond to
competitive pressures or continue to be viable. Such inability could have a material adverse
effect on Sirit’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

Market Price of Company’s Common Share may be Volatile

The market price of the Company’s outstanding common shares in the past has been and may in
the future be volatile due in part to highly volatile markets. Wide fluctuations in the market price
could occur due to a variety of reasons including, but not limited to, quarter-to-quarter variations
in operating results, news announcements by the Company or its competitors and entering into or
failing to enter into material contracts or orders.

Safety Risk

RFID products emit electromagnetic radiation which may result in various safety and health
issues. The Company’s products only emit low levels of this radiation and operate within all
safety regulatory limits. When used properly, Sirit’s products do not, to its knowledge, pose any
health risk. However, there can be no assurance that Sirit’s products will not become the subject
of safety concerns in the future. If safety concerns were to arise in the future, this could have an
adverse effect on the Company’s business and results of operations.

DIVIDENDS

The Company has not patd and does not intend in the foreseeable future to pay any dividends on
its Common Shares and has no dividend policy in regard to the payment of dividends to
Common Shares. Sirit intends to retain its earnings in order to fund the anticipated growth in the
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RFID business. The Series A Shares are entitled to receive fixed cumulative preferential cash
dividends at the rate of 7.5% per annum, however, there were no Series A Shares issued and
outstanding as at December 31, 2007.

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Company is authorized to issue an unlimited number of Common Shares and 100,000,000
Preferred Shares. As at the date hereof 145,703,308 Common Shares and nii Preferred Shares
were outstanding.

Common Shares

Holders of Common Shares are entitled to vote at any meeting of the shareholders of the
Company and have one vote in respect of each Common Share held by them. Common
shareholders are entitled to receive the remaining property and assets of the Company in th=
event of dissolution, subject to the rights of the holders of the Preferred Shares and any other
shares ranking senior to the Common Shares.

Preferred Shares

The Preferred Shares are non-voting and are issuable in series, of which the first series,
consisting of 6,500,000 shares, is designated as Series A Shares. The Series A Shares arz
entitled to receive fixed cumulative preferential cash dividends at the rate of 7.5% per annum. In
the event of dissolution, the Series A shareholders are entitled to repayment of capital and any
arrears of cumulative preferential dividends before any amount is paid or any property or assets
of the Company are distributed to Common shareholders or any other class or series ranking
junior to the Series A Shares.

MARKET FOR SECURITIES

The Common Shares are listed and posted for trading on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the
symbol “SI”. The following table sets forth the price ranges and volume traded of the Common
Shares on a monthly basis for the year ended December 31, 2007:

High Low Volume
January $ 025 % 018 11,113,100
February 0.33 0.24 10,020,100
March 0.31 0.23 3,787,000
April 0.28 0.23 2,276,700
May 0.36 .23 15,504,000
June 0.42 0.32 10,952,800
July 0.52 0.40 14,314,700
August 0.50 0.34 6,422,900
September 0.39 0.33 3,869,400
October 0.37 0.32 3,209,000
November 0.36 0.25 6,066,900
December 0.27 0.22 2,396,100
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On March 14, 2008, the closing price of the Common Shares was $0.28.

DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The articles of the Company require a board of directors consisting of not less than three and no
more than 15 directors, at least two of whom are not officers or employees of the Company. The
term of office for each director elected at an annual general meeting of the Company’s
shareholders is until the next annual general meeting of the Company’s shareholders or until the
director resigns or is removed. The next election of directors is scheduled for April 24, 2008 at
the annual general meeting of the Company’s shareholders. The Company does not have an
executive committee of the board of directors.

The following table sets forth the names, province/state and country of residence of the directors
and executive officers of the Company, their positions held with the Company and their principal
occupations as at December 31, 2007:

Name, Province/State and Positions Held Director
Country of Residence Since Present Principal Occupation
Norbert Dawalibi President, Chief 2005 President and Chief Executive Officer
Ontario, Canada Executive Officer of Sirit
& Director
Robert G. Beauchemin®®  Director 2007 President & Chief Executive Officer of
Ontario, Canada RGB Global Management Consulting
Cal Haverstock (" @®) Director 2005 President of Haverstock Associates Inc.
Ontario, Canada
Howard Johnson (" @ Director 2006 Partner with Campbell Valuation
Ontario, Canada Partners Limited
George C. McKinnis & Director 2001 Founding and Managing Partner,
New York, U.S.A. McKinnis Law Offices
Arthur Mesher Director 2005 Chief Executive Officer of The
Ontario, Canada Descartes Systems Group Inc.
Richard 1. Segal V@ ®©) Director 2003 Principal and General Partner, J.L.
Ontario, Canada Albright Venture Partners
Anastasia Chodarcewicz Chief Financial Vice President Finance, Chief Financial
Ontario, Canada Officer & Officer and Corporate Secretary of Sirit
Corporate
Secretary
Bruce Roesner Chief Chief Technelogy Officer and Vice
North Carolina, U.S.A. Technology President, Engineering of Sirit
Officer & Vice
President,

Engineering
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Dornald Bergeron Vice President, Vice President, Operations of Sirit
Texas, U.S.A. Operations

John A. Freund Vice President, Vice President, Automatic Vehicle
Ontario, Canada Automatic Identification Solutions of Sirit
Vehicle
Identification
Solutions
Chris Leong Vice President, Vice President, NFC and Contactless of
New York, U.S.A. NFC and Sirit
Contactless
Tony Sabetti Vice President, Vice President, RF Solutions of Sirit
Texas, U.S.A. RF Solutions
NOTES:

() Member of the Audit Committee.

@ Member of the Compensation Committee.

) Member of the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee.
@ Member of the Investment Committee.

B M. Segal is the nominee of the Company’s significant shareholder, I.L. Albright 111 Venture Fund.

The principal occupations, businesses or employments of each of the directors and executive
officers of the Company within the past five years are disclosed in the brief biographies set forta
below:

Norbert Dawalibi — Mr. Dawalibi has been President and Chief Executive Officer of the
Company since June 1, 2005. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Dawalibi was the Vice President,
Marketing Strategy and then President and Chief Executive Officer of Psion Teklogix. Psion
Teklogix is a $300 million company and global provider of solutions for mobile computing,
wireless data collection and RFID. From 2000 to 2001, Mr. Dawalibi was the President and
Chief Executive Officer of Rhythms Canada. In addition to his deep understanding of RFID
technology and markets, Mr. Dawalibi is a proven and skilled manager with a solid background
in sales and marketing resulting from his 24 years at IBM where he progressed through
increasingly executive ro'es in Canada and the U.S., including managing marketing for IBM
Systems in the Americas and leading sales operations generating in excess of $1 billion in
revenue.

Robert G. Beauchemin — Since 2005, Mr. Beauchemin has been the Chief Executive at RGB
Global Management Consulting, a firm providing senior management advisory services to
Boards of Directors, Presidents and Chief Executive Officers. Previously, Mr. Beauchemin was
chief executive of Polyplan Technologies (2002-2005, a Manufacturing Process Management
software developer; CNC Global (2000-2002), a North-American Information Technology
contract consulting and staffing company; as well as J.D. Edwards Canada (1999-2000) and SAP
Canada (1997-1998), both global leaders in Enterprise Resource Planning software.

Cal Haverstock — Since 1996, Mr, Haverstock has been President of Haverstock Associates inc.,
a consulting company dedicated to turnarounds, executive coaching and Boards of Directors.
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Most recently, he was President and CEO of Playdium Corporation which was sold in January of
2007. Mr. Haverstock is a member of the Institute of Corporate Directors and has completed the
Rotman School of Business Corporate Directors Program.

Howard Johnson ~ Since 1996, Mr. Johnson has been a partner at Campbell Valuation Partners
Limited, a firm specializing in business and intangible asset valuations and damages
quantification. Since 2005, Mr. Johnson has also been President of Veracap Corporate Finance
Limited, an affiliate of Campbell Valuation Partners Limited, a firm which specializes in
acquisitions and divestitures, private equity financing, succession planning and shareholder value
enhancement services.

George C. McKinnis — Since 2001, Mr. McKinnis has been a director of the Company since it
was iTech Capital Corporation, which after the acquisition of Sirit Technologies Inc. changed its
name to Sirit Inc. Mr. McKinnis practices law in New York State and Connecticut with offices
in New York City, Bronxville, New York and Shelton, Connecticut. Mr. McKinnis concentrates
in representing high technology companies and has aided as a principal and as a lawyer in
multiple technology startups, two of which are at present public companies. Prior to returning to
private practice, he was for fourteen years a member of the Legal Department of ITT
Corporation in New York City concentrating in the overseas aspects of the telecommunications
industry and was General Counsel of ITT’s central telecommunications laboratories and chief
Headquarters counsel for its computer and software companies. Prior to ITT he was a Vice
President and General Counsel of Deltec Banking Corporation, an Anglo-American merchant
bank in Nassau, Bahamas, and was with Chadbourne & Parke in New York City. He has for 14
years been the Magistrate for his community - Bronxville, NY. Mr. McKinnis has a BA from
Oklahoma University and a JD from Michigan Law School.

Arthur Mesher — Since 2004, Mr. Mesher has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Descartes
Systems Group Inc., a leading provider of on-demand delivery management solutions for
transportation, logistics, manufacturing, retail, distribution and service provider enterprises.
From 1998 to 2004, Mr. Mesher was the Executive Vice President Strategic Development at
Descartes. Prior to this, Mr. Mesher launched Integrated Logistic Strategies Services for the
Gartner Group building the practice into a leading advisor to major global corporations. Prior to
Gartner, Mr, Mesher was president of Advanced Logistics Research where he helped numerous
multinational companies develop and deploy emerging technology based supply chain strategies.
Mr. Mesher also serves as a director for Descartes Systems Group Inc.

Richard I. Segal — Prior to joining J.L. Albright Venture Partners (“JLA”) in March 2001, Mr.
Segal was President and Chief Executive Officer of Microforum, from July 2000 to June 2001
and prior thereto, from 1997 to June 2000, was President and Chief Operating Officer of
Chapters Online Inc. Prior to joining Chapters Online Inc., Mr. Segal worked at Microsoft
Corporation in Redmond, Washington from 1992 until 1996 with his most recent position at the
company being the Director of technical services for the Internet Customer Unit. Mr. Segal i3
also the author of four books on Network Management and Windows software development.
Mr. Segal also serves as a director of Genesis TP Inc. and Truition Marketplace Solutions.

Anastasia Chodarcewicz joined Sirit in February 2003 as Vice President of Finance and was
appointed Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretraty in November 2003. From Januarv
1995 through January 2003, Miss Chodarcewicz was with PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, in



various departments including audit, mergers and acquisitions and litigation support, reaching
the position of Director.

Bruce Roesner prior to joining Sirit as Chief Technology Officer in October 2006, was an
entrepreneur and technologist in the domains of IC design and RFID from 1982 to 2005. rle was
the founder of a number of technology companies including Instant Circuit Holdings, SCS
Corporation and ClarIDy Solutions.

Donald Bergeron joined the Company with the acquisition of the TIRIS division from Texas
Instruments in 1998 previously spending 18 years at Texas Instruments where he held numerous
managerial positions. During his last four years at Texas Instruments, Mr. Bergeron served as
TIRIS North American Operations Manager.

John A. Freund joined Sirit in September of 2001 as Director of Customer Operations and was
appointed to the role of Vice President in April 2002. Prior to this, Mr. Freund spent 6 years
with Xerox Business Services in a variety of progressive sales and operational managemenit
positions.

Chris Leong consulted for the Company since November 2002 and joined Sirit in June 2003. He
currently holds the position of Vice President NFC and Contactless. Prior to this, Mr. Leong was
a Senior Associate with Argentum Capital Partners and an analyst with Lehman Brothers
Merchant Banking Partners.

Tony Sabetti joined Sirit in September 2006 as Vice President RF Solutions. Prior to this, Mr.
Sabetti was Director of UHF Retail Supply Chain Solutions for Texas Instruments RFid Systems,
where he lead the development and launch of TI’s UHF EPC-compliant products.

As at December 31, 2007 and the date hereof the Company’c directors and executive officers as
a group beneficially own, directly or indirectly, or exercise control or direction over an aggregatz
of 30,580,410 Common Shares representing approximately 20.9% of the issued and outstanding
Common Shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee is responsible for monitoring the Company’s systems and
procedures for financial reporting and internal control, reviewing certain public disclosure
documents and monitoring the performance and independence of the Company’s external
auditors. The committee is also responsible for reviewing the Company’s annual audited
financial statements, unaudited quarterly financial statements and management’s discussion and
analysis of financial results of operations for both annual and interim financial staterents and
review of related operations prior to their approval by the full board of directors of the Company.

The Audit Committee’s charter sets out its responsibilities and duties and procedures for
reporting to the Company’s board of directors. A copy of the charter is attached hereto a3
Exhibit A. Qualifications for Audit Committee membership and procedures for committec
member removal and appointment remain with the board of directors. These procedures are
specifically detailed within the charter.
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The members of the Company’s Audit Committee as at December 31, 2007 were Mr. Howard
Johnson (Chairman), Mr. Cal Haverstock and Mr. Richard 1. Segal. Each of Messrs. Johnson,
Haverstock and Segal are independent and financially literate within the meaning of Multilateral
Instrument 52-110 Audit Committees (“MI 52-1107). In addition to being independent directors
as described above, all members of the Company’s Audit Committee must meet an additional
“independence” test under MI 52-110 in that, other than their directors’ fees, an Audit
Committec member, or their firms, cannot receive more than $75,000 in direct compensation
from the Company during any 12 month period within the last three years and that they are not
affiliated with the Company. The meaning of independence is specifically detailed within the
charter.

The Audit Committee met four times during the financial year ended December 31, 2007 and all
members were present at each meeting.

Relevant Education and Experience

Set out below is a description of the education and experience of each Audit Committee member
that is relevant to the performance of his responsibilities as an Audit Committee member.

Howard Johnson — As President of Veracap Corporate Finance Limited and Partner with
Campbell Valuation Partners Limited, Mr. Johnson has extensive experience with reviewing
financial statements and understanding financial statement requirements. Mr. Johnson holds the
designations of Chartered Accountant, Chartered Business Valuator and Certified Managemert
Accountant.

Cal Haverstock — As past-President and Chief Executive Officer of Playdium Corporation, Mr.
Haverstock has extensive experience with reviewing financial statements and understanding
financial requirements of public companies.

Richard I. Segal — In his current position as Partner of J.L. Albright Venture Partners, Mr. Segal
has been involved in numerous transactions with various companies and has extensive
experience in reviewing financial statements and understanding financial statement requirements.

Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

Inherent in the responsibilities of the Audit Committee are the responsibilities regarding the
provision of non-audit services by the Company’s external auditors, The Company practice
requires senior management to report to the Audit Committee any provision of services by the
auditors and requires consideration by the Audit Committee as to whether the provision of
services other than audit services is compatible with maintaining the auditor’s independence. All
audit and non-audit related services are pre-approved by the Audit Committee. This practice is
detailed within the charter.
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External Auditor Service Fees
Audit Fees

The aggregate audit fees billed by the Company’s external auditors, Deloitte & Touche LLP, for
the financial year ended December 31, 2007 were $169,250 (December 31, 2006 — Deloitte &
Touche LLP and PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP for a total of $158,900).

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees billed by the Company’s external auditors for the financial year ended
December 31, 2007 were $3,500 (December 31, 2006 - $27,744). Audit-related fees in 2007 and
2006 relate to consultations regarding financial accounting and reporting matters.

Tax Fees

Tax fees in respect of tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning billed by the Company’s
external auditors for the financial year ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 were nil.

All Other Fees

Other fees billed by the Company’s external auditors for the financial year ended December 31,
2007 were nil (December 31, 2006 — $92,000). Other fees in 2006 relate to consultations
regarding the short-form prospectus and business acquisition report filed in 2006.

INTEREST OF MANAGEMENT AND OTHERS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS

In connection with the private placement of Common Shares with JLA, the Company granted
JLA the right to appoint one member to the Company’s board of directors and agreed to put forth
such nominee for election at each annual meeting of shareholders of the Company so long as
JLA continues to own at least 10% of the issued and outstanding Common Shares. The JLA
nominee is Richard . Segal who was appointed to the Company’s board of directors an
November 24, 2003.

TRANSFER AGENT AND REGISTRAR

The transfer agent and registrar for the Common Shares is Equity Transfer & Trust Company
with its principal offices at 200 University Avenue West, Suite 400, Toronto, Ontario.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

The Company does not have any material contracts, other than those entered into in the ordinary
course of business, except the proposed acquisition of RSI ID Technologies, Inc. which is
expected to close on our about April 1, 2008 as noted in the “Three Year History” section of this
annual information form.
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Additional information relating to the Company can be found on SEDAR at www.sedar.com.
Additional information, including directors’ and officers’ remuneration and indebtedness,
principal holders of the Company’s securities and securities authorized for issuance under equity
compensation plans is contained in the management information circular of the Company dated
March 14, 2008. Additional financial information is provided in the Company’s audited
consolidated financial statements and management’s discussion and analysis for the financial
year ended December 31, 2007 which can be found at www.sedar.com and on the Company’s
website, www sirit.com.
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EXHIBIT A — AUDIT COMMITTEE CHARTER

1. Policy Statement

It is the policy of Sirit Inc. (including its subsidiary or subsidiaries, the “Corporation™) to
establish and maintain an Audit Committee (the “Committee”) to assist the directors
(individually a “Director” and collectively the “Board”) of the Corporation in carrying out
the Board’s oversight responsibility for the accounting and financial reporting practices cf
the Corporation and the audits of the Corporation’s financial statements and to exercise the
responsibilities and duties set forth below, including, but not limited to, assisting the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities in reviewing the following: financial disclosures and internal
controls over financial reporting; monitoring the systems of internal control; monitoring the
Company’s compliance with applicable requirements; selecting the auditors for shareholder
approval; reviewing the qualifications, independence and performance of the auditors; and
reviewing the qualifications, independence and performance of the Company’s financial
management.

2. Membership and Organization

a. Composition: The Committee shall consist of two or more Directors appointed by the
Board on recommendations of the Governance and Nominating Committee.

b. Appointment and Removal of Audit Committee Members: Each member of the
Committee shall be appointed by the Board on an annual basis and shall serve at the

pleasure of the Board, or until the earlier of (a) the close of the next annual meeting of
the Company’s shareholders at which the member's term of office expires, (b) the
death of the member or (c) the resignation, disqualification or removal of the member
from the Committee or from the Board. The Board may fill a vacancy in the
membership of the Committee.

c. Chair: The Board may appoint one member of the Committee to be the Chair of the
Committee, or may delegate such authority to appoint the Chair of the Committee to
the Committee. The Chair shall be a member of the Committee, preside over all
Committee meetings, coordinate the Committee's compliance with this charter, work
with management to develop the Committee's annual work-plan and provide reports
of the Committee to the Board.

d. Membership Requirements:

i. Each member of the Committee must be a Director who is independent to the
extent required by (and subject to the exemptions and other provisions set out
in) applicable laws, rules and regulations, and stock exchange requirements
(collectively “Applicable Laws™). In this Charter, the term “independent” has
the meaning ascribed to such term by Applicable Laws, and includes the
meanings given to similar terms by Applicable Laws.
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c.

ii. Each Member of the Committee must be, or must become, within a reasonable
period of time after appointment, “financially literate,” which qualification
shall be determined by the Board. In addition, at least one Member of the
Committee shall have accounting or related financial management
background/experience.

External guests: At the invitation of the Committee, members of the Company’s
senior management and others may attend Committee meetings as the Committee
considers necessary or desirable.

3. Meetings of the Committee

a.

Meetings: The Committee shall convene as often as it deems necessary to fulfill its
responsibilities, but at a minimum of four times eack year at such time and place as
may be acceptable to the Chair of the Committee and whenever a meeting is
requested by the Board, a member of the Committee or the Chief Executive Officer of
the Corporation (the “CEQO”).

Notice: Notice of each meeting of the Committee shall be given to each member of
the Committee, who shall each be entitled to attend each meeting of the Committes.
Notice of a meeting of the Committee shall:

i. be in writing, which includes electronic communication facilities;

ii. state the nature of the business to be transacted at the meeting in reasonable
detail;

iii. to the extent practicable, be accompanied by a copy of documentation to be
considered at the meeting; and

iv. be given at least two business days prior to the time stipulated for the meetirg
or such shorter period as the members of the Committee may permit.

Agendas: Committee meeting agendas shall be the responsibility of the Chair of the
Committee in consultation with Committee members, senior management and the
external auditors.

Quorum: A quorum for the transaction of business at a meeting of the Committee
shall consist of a majority of the members of the Committee. However, it shall be the
practice of the Committee to require review, and, if necessary, approval of important
matters by all members of the Committee.

Participation: A member or members of the Committee may participate in a meeting
of the Committee by means of such telephonic, electronic or other communication
facilities as permits all persons participating in the meeting to communicate with each
other. A member participating in such a meeting by any such means ic deemed to be
present at the meeting.
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f.

Meeting Chair: In the absence of the Chair of the Committee, the members of the
Committee shall choose one of the members present to be Chair of the meeting. In
addition, the members of the Committee shall choose one of the persons present to be
the secretary of the meeting.

Minutes: Minutes shall be kept of all meetings of the Committee and shall be signed
by the Chair of the meeting and shall be provided to each member of the Committee
and to each director of the Corporation in a timely fashion,

4. General Operating Provisions

a.

External Consultants: Subject to the oversight of the Governance and Nominating
Committee, the Committee has the authority to retain independent consultants to
assist the Committee in fulfilling its mandate.

Self Evaluation: The Committee shall perform an evaluation of its performance at
least annually to determine whether it is functioning effectively, and report its
findings to the Governance and Nominating committee.

Extended Authority: The Committee shall, to the extent permissible by applicable
requirements, have such additional authority as may be reasonably necessary or
desirable, in the Committee’s discretion, to exercise its powers and fulfill the duties
under this Charter.

Committee Values: The Committee expects the management of the Corporation to
operate in compliance with prudent corporate ethics, code of conduct and corporate
practices; with laws and regulations governing the Corporation; and to maintain
strong financial reporting and control processes.

Communications: The Chair (and others on the Committee) expects to have direct,
open and frank communications throughout the year with management, other
Committee Chairs, the external auditors and other key Committee advisors as
applicable.

Committee Expectations and Information Needs: The Committee shall communicate
its expectations to management and the external auditors with respect to the nature,
timing and extent of its information needs. The Committee expects that written
materials will be received from management and the external auditors a reasonable
time in advance of meeting dates.

In Camera Meetings: As appropriate, the members of the Committee shall have the
flexibility to meet in private session with the external auditors; with management and
with the Committee members only.

External Auditors: The Committee expects that, in discharging their responsibilitizs
to the shareholders, the external auditors shall be accountable to the Board through
the Audit Committee. The external auditors shall report all material issues or
potentially material issues to the Committee.
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5. Duties and Responsibilities of the Committee

To fulfill its responsibilities and duties, the Committee shail:

a. Financial Reporting

ii.

iii.

vi.

vii.

review the Corporation’s annual and quarterly financial statements with
management and the external auditors to gain reasonable assurance that the
statements are accurate, complete, represent fairly the Corporation’s financial
position and performance and are in accordance with Canadian generally
accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and report thereon to the Board
before such financial statements are approved by the Board,

review with management the financial statements of the Corporation’s
significant subsidiaries;

receive from the external auditors reports, written or verbal, on their
engagements related to the annual and quarterly financial statements;

receive from management a copy of the representation letter provided to the
external auditors and receive from management any additional representations
required by the Committee;

review and, if appropriate, recommend approval to the Board of news
releases, if any, and reports to shareholders issued by the Corporation with
respect to the Corporation’s annual and quarterly financial statements;

review and, if appropriate, recommend approval to the Board of prospectuses,
material change disclosures of a financial nature, management discussion and
analysis, annual information forms and similar disclosure documents to ke
issued by the Corporation; and

review and determine that adequate procedures are in place for the review of
the Corporation’s public disclosures of financial information extracted or
derived from the Corporation’s financial statements, other than public
disclosures described in Subsection (vi), above, and periodically assess the
adequacy of these procedures and report the results of such assessments (¢
management and the Board.

b. Accounting Policies

1.

ii.

review with management and the external auditors the appropriateness of the
Corporation’s accounting policies, disclosures, reserves, key estimates and
judgements, including changes or variations thereto;

obtain reasonable assurance that they are in compliance with Canadian GAAP
and report thereon to the Board; and
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review with management and the external auditors the degree of conservatism
of the Corporation’s underlying accounting policies, key estimates and
judgements and reserves.

¢. Risk and Uncertainty

ii.

iil.

iv.

vi.

acknowledging that it is the responsibility of management to identify the
principal business risks facing the Corporation and determine the
Corporation’s tolerance for risk, the Committee shall focus on financial risk
and gain reasonable assurance that financial risk is being effectively managed
or controlled by:

A. reviewing with management the Corporation’s tolerance for financial
risks;

B. reviewing with management its process for identifying significant risks
facing the Corporation;

C. reviewing with management its assessment of the significant financial
risks facing the Corporation;

D. reviewing with management the Corporation’s policies and any
proposed changes thereto for managing those significant financial
risks; and

E. reviewing with management its plans, processes and programs (o
manage and control such financial risks;

ascertain that policies and procedures are in place to minimize environmentzl,
occupational health and safety and other risks to asset value and mitigate
damage to or deterioration of asset values and review such policies ard
procedures periodically;

review policies and compliance therewith that require significant actual or
potential liabilities, contingent or otherwise, to be reported to the Board in a
timely fashion;

review foreign currency, interest rate and commodity price risk mitigation
strategies, including the use of derivative financial instruments;

review the adequacy of insurance coverage maintained by the Corporation;

review regularly with management, the external auditors and the
Corporation’s legal counsel, any legal claim or other contingency, including
tax assessments, that could have a material effect upon the financial position
or operating results of the Corporation and the manner in which these matters
have been disclosed in the financial statements; and
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vil.

work with the Corporation’s Governance Committee shouid a violation of the
Corporation’s financial policies and practices be brought to the attention of
the Audit or Governance Committees. This will require aiding the Governance
Committee in investigating and, in cooperation with legal counsel for the
Corporation recommend corrective action to the Board and to management.

d. Financial Controls and Contro] Deviations

review the plans, if any, of the external auditors to gain reasonable assurance
that the combined evaluation and testing of internal financial controls is
sufficient, coordinated and cost-effective; and

receive regular reports from management, the external auditors and its legal
department on all significant deviations or indications/detection of fraud and
the corrective activity undertaken in respect thereto.

e. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

.

ii.

review regular reports from management and others (e.g. external auditors and
external legal counsel) with respect to the Corporation’s compliance with laws
and regulations having a material impact on the financial statements
including:

A. tax and financial reporting laws and regulations;

B. legal withholding requirements;

C. environmental protection laws and regulations; and

D. other laws and regulations which expose directors to liability;

review the status of the Corporation’s tax returns and those of its subsidiaries.

f. Relationship with External Auditors

i,

recoinmend to the Board the nomination of the external auditors;

approve the remuneration and the terms of engagement of the external
auditors as set forth in the Engagement Letter;

review the performance of the external auditors annuaily or more frequently
as required;

receive annually from the external auditors an acknowledgement in writing
that the sharecholders, as represented by the Board and the Committee, ar:
their primary client;

receive a report annually from the external auditors with respect to their
independence, such report to include a disclosure of all engagements (and fees
related thereto) for non-audit services by the Corporation;
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vi.

vii.

viii.

Xi.

review with the external auditors the scope of the audit, the areas of special
emphasis to be addressed in the audit and the materiality levels which the
external auditors propose ic employ;

obtain satisfactory comfort that no management restrictions have bzen placed
on the scope and extent of the audit examinations by the external auditors cr
the reporting of their findings to the Commiitee;

establish effective communication processes with management and the
Corporation’s external auditors to assist the Committee to monitor objectively
the quality and effectiveness of the relationship among the external auditors,
management and the Cornmittee;

oversee the work of an external auditor that is engaged for the purpose of
issuing an auditor’s repo:t or performing other audit reviews or attest services
for the Corporation;

approve all services requested of outside auditors, whether in connection with
financial reporting or non-auditing services; and,

resolve disputes between external auditors and management regarding
financial reporting.

g. Other Responsibilities

iii.

vi.

vii.

periodically review the form, content, level of detai! of financial reports to the
Board;

at least annual'y ensure the reasonableness of the expenses of the Chief
Executive Officer;

after consultation with the Chief Executive Officer and the external auditors,
gain reasonable assurance, at least annually, of the quality and sufficiency of
the Corporation’s accounting and financtal personnel and other resources;

review in advance new appointments of the Corporation’s senior financial
executives;

investigate, and report to the Board on, any material issues brought to the
attention of the Committee by the Corporation’s employees, shareholders,
lenders, regulatory authorities or other parties, that fall within the scope of the
Committee;

investigate any matters that, in the Committee’s discretion, fall within the
Committee’s duties;

petform such other functions as may from time to time be assigned to the
Committee by the Board; and,
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viii. review and approve the Corporation’s hiring practices and policies regarding
former partners and employees of the present or former external auditors for
the Corporation.

h. Accountability
i. review and update this Charter on a regular basis for approval by the Board;

ii. from time to time, as requested by the Board, disclose its mandate and this
Charter in the Corporation’s statement of corporate governance practices; and

iii. review the description of the Committee’s activities as set forth in the
Corporation’s statement of corporate governance practices.

6. Reporting to the Board

a. The Chair shall report to the Board on material matters arising at Committee meetings
and, where applicable, shall present the Committee's recommendations to the Board
for its approval.

b. After each meeting of the Committee, the Chair shall report to the Board on matters
considered by the Committee.

7. Currency of the Committee Charter

This Charter was enacted by the Board of Directors on July 18, 2007.

. END




